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Sub : Annual Report for F.Y 2017-18 

Further to our letter dated 1 lth July, 2018, we submit the Annual Report for the financial 
year 20 17- 18 as approved and adopted in the 94th Annual General Meeting of the Company 
held on 3rd August, 2018 in compliance with Regulation 34 of the SEBI (Listing 
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BERGER PAINTS INDIA LIMITED
(CIN : L51434WB1923PLC004793) 

 
 

 

NOTICE

 

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

` `  

 
 

 

SPECIAL BUSINESS:
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`  

`  
`  

`  

 
`

    
Aniruddha Sen

NOTES:
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www.bergerpaints.com

www.bergerpaints.com.
consumerfeedback@bergerindia.com

 

 `

`  

 
 

Instructions

Step 1 https://www.evoting.nsdl.com

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com

https://eservices.nsdl.com
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Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat  
(NSDL or CDSL) or Physical Your User ID is

 

 
 

 

.pdf .pdf .pdf 
.pdf

 
www.evoting.nsdl.com.

www.evoting.nsdl.com.

e-voting@nsdl.co.in  

Step 2 

 

 



General Guidelines for shareholders

 
aklabhcs@gmail.com/aklabh@aklabh.com  

e-voting@nsdl.co.in.

 

www.evoting.nsdl.com

www.evoting.nsdl.com
e-voting@nsdl.co.in

 

 

 
 

 
 

evoting@nsdl.co.in rta@cbmsl.com  consumerfeedback@bergerindia.com  
 

www.evoting.nsdl.com.
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www.bergerpaints.com www.evoting.nsdl.com

MEMBERS ARE REQUESTED TO BRING THEIR COPIES OF THE ANNUAL REPORT AND ADMISSION SLIP TO  
THE MEETING.

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT
(Pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013)

ITEMS NO. 5 and 6

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

ITEM NO. 7

 
`

`  
 

`

`

`

`
 

Aniruddha Sen
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INFORMATION RELATING TO DIRECTOR PROPOSED TO BE  
RE-APPOINTED UNDER REGULATION 36(3) OF THE SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND 

DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015

Item No. 3 Item No. 4 Item No. 5 Item No. 6

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
`

 
`

 
`
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ROUTE MAP OF THE VENUE OF NINETY THIRD ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Map not to scale



11

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL RESULTS
(`

Particulars
Financial Year ended

Standalone Consolidated
2017-18 2016-17 2017-18 2016-17

 789.93 710.43 852.86 773.10

Less:

Less:

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Highlights of the Standalone Results:

` `

`
`

Highlights of the Consolidated Results: 

` `

`
`
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

PAINT INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENT

 

 

COMPANY’S OPERATION
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https://www.bergerpaints.com/media/media

FOCUS AND OUTLOOK FOR 2018-19
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PROJECTS

 

`

 

OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS

 

 

 

 
 

 



RISKS AND CONCERNS

https://www.bergerpaints.com/about-us/risk-
management-policy.html

 

 

 

 

 

 

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY
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ACQUISITION OF SABOO COATINGS PRIVATE LIMITED

`

 
https://www.bergerpaints.com/media/media

AMALGAMATION WITH BJN PAINTS INDIA LIMITED

INCREASE OF AUTHORISED SHARE CAPITAL 

`
` `

` `

`
`

`
`

ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS RELATED TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION SCHEME



NAME OF KMP DESIGNATION NO. OF OPTIONS GRANTED

 
`  

NAME OF KMP DESIGNATION NO. OF EQUITY SHARES 
ALLOTTED

https://www.bergerpaints.com/investors/esop-disclosure.
html

HUMAN RESOURCES
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TRANSFER OF SHARES TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND

 

 
 

SEXUAL HARASSMENT POLICY

 
 

 

SUBSIDIARY AND JOINT VENTURES

 
 

`

`

`

 

`
`
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`

 
`

`

 

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

 

TECHNOLOGY AGREEMENTS

 

FIXED DEPOSIT

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
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MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND ATTENDANCE THEREAT

A. AUDIT COMMITTEE

VIGIL MECHANISM

 

 

https://www.bergerpaints.com/about-us/whistleblower-policy.html

B. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE

The 

D. SHAREHOLDERS’ COMMITTEES

BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY REPORT

 

 
 
 

https://www.bergerpaints.com/about-us/business-responsibility-policy.html.
 

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
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STATEMENT OF DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

POLICY ON APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS, KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL  AND 
OTHER  EMPLOYEES

www.bergerpaints.com/about-us/remuneration-policy.html

QUALIFICATION OR RESERVATIONS IN STATUTORY AUDIT REPORTS

LOANS, COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES, INVESTMENTS

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

 

https://www.bergerpaints.com/about-us/rpt-policy.html
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MATERIALITY POLICY

 

https://www.bergerpaints.com/about-us/policy-determine-material-events.html

POLICY FOR PRESERVATION OF DOCUMENTS

https:// www.bergerpaints.com/about-us/policy-preservation-documents.html

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES

DIVIDEND

`

`
` `

https://www.bergerpaints.com/
about-us/dividend-distribution-policy.html

 
`  

Particulars of Employees
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STATEMENT OF EVALUATION OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND COMMITTEES THEREOF

 
https:/bergerpaints.com/about-us/criteria-policy.html

https:/bergerpaints.com/about-us/criteria-policy.html

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDER PASSED BY REGULATORS OR COURTS OR TRIBUNALS IMPACTING 
THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND OPERATIONS OF THE COMPANY

DIRECTORS

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
`
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Structure of the Board of Directors

Name of Director Independent Lady
N N N
N N N

N N N
N N
N N N

N N
N N
N N
N N
N N

FAMILIARISATION PROGRAMME OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

 

https://www.bergerpaints.com/about-us/familiarization-program.html

INFORMATION AS TO REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES

Name of Director / KMP Remuneration 
Received (`)

Ratio as to that of the 
Median Employee

Percentage increase in 
Remuneration

 

`



Name Nature of Transaction Amount (`)

 

 

 
 

LISTING WITH STOCK EXCHANGES

COST AUDITORS

STATUTORY AUDITORS
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APPRECIATION

 

Kuldip Singh Dhingra 
 



DISCLOSURES  WITH   RESPECT   TO   EMPLOYEES  STOCK   OPTION   SCHEME  PURSUANT 
TO REGULATION 14 OF THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE BOARD OF INDIA (SHARE  
BASED  EMPLOYEE BENEFITS) REGULATIONS, 2014 AS  ON MARCH 31, 2018:

A) Relevant disclosures  in terms of  Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS – 102) under Section 133 of the Companies  
Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015.    

B)  Diluted EPS on issue of shares pursuant to all the schemes covered  under the regulations shall be disclosed   
in accordance with 'Ind AS – 33' – Earnings per Share under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015.      

`

C) Details related to Employee Stock Option Scheme (ESOS) of the Company: 

 

Particulars Employee Stock Option Scheme, 2010 Employee Stock Option Scheme, 2016

  

` `

` `  

`
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Particulars Employee Stock Option Scheme, 2010 Employee Stock Option 
Scheme, 2016

Grant III Grant IV Additional 
Grant (in 

lieu of 
bonus issues 
from ESOP 

2010)

Grant I Grant II

 

`1 `1 `1 `1 `1

` ` ` ` ` 
 

     

Serial no. Senior Management 
Personnel

Designation No. of options granted 
in 2017-18 option

`1

`1

`1



30

   
   

 
 

 
     

 

Serial no. Particulars 2017-2018

                 `

                  `
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ANNEXURE 1

FORM NO. MGT- 9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
As on the Financial Year ended on 31st March, 2018

  

I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS

i) CIN  L51434WB1923PLC004793
ii)
iii)

 
 

consumerfeedback@bergerindia.com 
www.bergerpaints.com

 
 

 
 

rta@cbmsl.com

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

Sl. No. Name and Description of main 
Products/Services NIC Code of the Product/Service % of total Turnover of the 

Company
1 20221

PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

Sl. No. Name and Address of the Company CIN/GLN Holding/Subsidiary/ 
Associate

% of 
Shares held

Applicable 
Section

1 U.K. Paints (India) Private Limited 
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Sl. No. Name and Address of the Company CIN/GLN Holding/Subsidiary/ 
Associate

% of 
Shares held

Applicable 
Section

Berger Becker Coatings Private 
Limited 

 
 

 

3 Berger Nippon Paint Automotive 
Coatings Private Limited 

 
 

 

4 Beepee Coatings Private Limited 
 
 

 
005049 100

Saboo Coatings Private Limited 
 

 
 

 
015100 100

 
(Nepal) Private Limited 100

Berger Paints (Cyprus) Limited 
 100

Lusako Trading Limited 
100

  % holding

 
 

 
 
 
 

Notes:
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IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

 (i) Category wise Share Holding

Category  
of 

Share holders

No. of Shares (face value of `1/-) held at the 
beginning of the year (01.04.2017)

No. of Shares ( face value of `1/-) held at 
the end of the year (31.03.2018)

% 
Change 
during 

the  
YearDemat Physical Total

% of  
Total 

Shares
Demat Physical Total

% of  
Total 

Shares

A. Promoters

(1) Indian

0 0

0 0

(f) Others

Sub-total (A)(1) 587487919 0 587487919 60.50 587487919 0 587487919 60.50 (-)0.01

(2) Foreign

0 0

Sub-total (A)(2) 140656782 0 140656782 14.49 140656782 0 140656782 14.49 0.00

Total Shareholding of 
 

Group  
(A) = (A)(1) + (A)(2)

728144701 0 728144701 74.99 728144701 0 728144701 74.99 (-) 0.01
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Category  
of 

Share holders

No. of Shares (face value of `1/-) held at the 
beginning of the year (01.04.2017)

No. of Shares ( face value of `1/-) held at 
the end of the year (31.03.2018)

% 
Change 
during 

the  
Year

Demat Physical Total
% of  
Total 

Shares
Demat Physical Total

% of  
Total 

Shares
B. Public Shareholding

1. Institutions

11409093  4410 11413503 4410

277939

0 0

0 0

0 0

 0  0 0        0 0

Sub-total (B) (1) 136990270 19798 137010068 14.11 138333821 19798 138353619 14.24 (+) 0.13

B 2. Non- Institutions

`

70497999

`

3293321 0 3293321 0

1740270 322939

0 0
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Category  
of  

Share holders

No. of Shares (face value of `1/-) held at the 
beginning of the year (01.04.2017)

No. of Shares ( face value of `1/-) held at 
the end of the year (31.03.2018)

% 
Change 
during 

the  
Year

Demat Physical Total
% of  
Total 

Shares
Demat Physical Total

% of  
Total 

Shares

504315

0 0 0 0 0

 0  1241435 0 1241435

Sub-total (B)(2) 91310334 14521544 105831878 10.90   92871700 11661408 104533108 10.77 (-) 0.12
B. Total Public 

Shareholding 
(B) = (B)(1) + (B)(2)

228300604 14541342 242841946 25.01 231205521 11681206 242886727 25.01 (+) 0.01

TOTAL (A) + (B) 956445305 14541342 970986647 100.00 959350222 11681206 971031428 100.00 0.00

C. Shares held by 
Custodian for GDRs 

Grand Total 
(A) + (B) +(C) 956445305 14541342 970986647 100.00 959350222 11681206 971031428 100.00 0.00

(ii) Share holding of Promoters

Sl.  
No.

Shareholding at the beginning of the year Shareholding at the end of the year

Shareholder’s 
Name

No. of 
Shares  

(F.V. ` 1/-)

% of total 
Shares 
of the 

Company

% of Shares 
Pledged 

encumbered 
to total 
Shares

Share holder’s 
Name

No. of 
Shares  

(F.V. `1/-)

% of  total 
Shares 
of the 

Company

% of Shares 
Pledged 

encumbered 
to total 
Shares

 0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

7952420 0 7952420 0



Sl.  
No.

Shareholding at the beginning of the year Shareholding at the end of the year

Shareholder’s 
Name

No. of 
Shares  

(F.V. ` 1/-)

% of total 
Shares 
of the 

Company

% of Shares 
Pledged 

encumbered 
to total 
Shares

Share holder’s 
Name

No. of 
Shares  

(F.V. `1/-)

% of  total 
Shares 
of the 

Company

% of Shares 
Pledged 

encumbered 
to total 
Shares

999999 0 999999 0
0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0
131712 0 131712 0
107520 0 0
107520 0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

Total 728144701 74.99 0 728144701 74.99 0

(iii)   Change in Promoters’ Share holding (please specify, if there is no change)

Sl.  
No. Shareholder’s Name

Shareholding at the  
beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding  
during the year

No. of Shares  
(F.V. `1/-)

% of total Shares  
of the Company

No. of Shares  
(F.V. `1/-)

% of total Shares  
of the Company

7952420 7952420
999999 999999
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Sl.  
No. Shareholder’s Name

Shareholding at the  
beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding  
during the year

No. of Shares  
(F.V. `1/-)

% of total Shares  
of the Company

No. of Shares  
(F.V. `1/-)

% of total Shares  
of the Company

131712 131712
107520
107520

(iv)   Share holding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs) :

Sl.  
No.

For each of the Top 
10 Shareholders

Shareholding at the  
beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding  
during the year

No. of Shares 
% of total 

Shares of the 
Company

No. of Shares 
% of total 

Shares of the 
Company

1. NALANDA INDIA FUND 
LIMITED

Date Reason

174500

2. THE NEW INDIA 
ASSURANCE COMPANY 
LIMITED

Date Reason
114110

15/12/2017
22/12/2017

3. SPAN INDIA PRIVATE 
LIMITED



Sl.  
No.

For each of the Top 
10 Shareholders

Shareholding at the  
beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding  
during the year

No. of Shares 
% of total 

Shares of the 
Company

No. of Shares 
% of total 

Shares of the 
Company

4. LIFE INSURANCE  
CORPORATION OF INDIA  

Date Reason
192527 5525751

5. MONDRIAN EMERGING 
MARKETS SMALL CAP 
EQUITY FUND, L.P.

4245994 4245994
Date Reason

240000 4005994
240000
120000

15/09/2017
29/09/2017 200000
24/11/2017 114910

6. GENERAL INSURANCE 
CORPORATION OF INDIA

Date Reason
07/04/2017 100000 3740000
12/05/2017 10000 3750000
19/05/2017 50000

40000
3900000

50000 3950000
50000 3900000

3900000
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Sl.  
No.

For each of the Top 
10 Shareholders

Shareholding at the  
beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding  
during the year

No. of Shares 
% of total 

Shares of the 
Company

No. of Shares 
% of total 

Shares of the 
Company

7. SPAN HOLDINGS PRIVATE 
LIMITED

8. FRANKLIN INDIA 
SMALLER COMPANIES 
FUND

Date Reason
100000

9. AXIS MUTUAL FUND 
TRUSTEE LTD. A/C AXIS 
MUTUAL FUND A/C AXIS 
MIDCAP FUND

3202315 3202315
Date Reason

07/04/2017
21/04/2017

3099395
3007013

07/07/2017 250000 3257013
199900

3075114

240000
01/12/2017 100000
15/12/2017 2237013

1449345
 341914 1107431

45171
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Sl.  
No.

For each of the Top 
10 Shareholders

Shareholding at the  
beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding  
during the year

No. of Shares 
% of total 

Shares of the 
Company

No. of Shares 
% of total 

Shares of the 
Company

10. VANGUARD TOTAL    
INTERNATIONAL STOCK  
INDEX FUND

Date Reason
07/04/2017 22740
14/04/2017
24/11/2017  2947131

 3145432
3145432

(v)   Share holding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel as on 31st March, 2018) :

Sl.  
No.

For each of the 
Directors and KMP

Shareholding at the  
beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding  
during the year

No of Shares 
% of total 

Shares of the 
Company

No of Shares 
% of total 

Shares of the 
Company

1. Mr. Kuldip Singh Dhingra*

Date Reason

14/07/2017
gift

2. Mr. Gurbachan Singh 
Dhingra*

3. Mr. Abhijit Roy

Date Reason
07/12/2017 1200
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Sl.  
No.

For each of the 
Directors and KMP

Shareholding at the  
beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding  
during the year

No. of Shares 
% of total 

Shares of the 
Company

No. of Shares 
% of total 

Shares of the 
Company

4. Mr. Srijit Dasgupta

Date Reason
07/12/2017 923

5. Mr. Kamal Ranjan Das

6. Mr. Pulak Chandan Prasad

7. Mr. Naresh Gujral
7000 7000

7000

8. Mr. Dhirendra Swarup

9. Mr. Gopal Krishna Pillai

10. Mrs. Rishma Kaur

Date Reason

14/07/2017



42

Sl.  
No.

For each of the 
Directors and KMP

Shareholding at the  
beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding  
during the year

No. of Shares 
% of total 

Shares of the 
Company

No. of Shares 
% of total 

Shares of the 
Company

11. Mr. Kanwardip Singh Dhingra

Date Reason

14/07/2017

12. Mr. Aniruddha Sen

Date Reason
07/12/2017 37523

37523

 

(v)   INDEBTEDNESS

(`

Secured Loans Unsecured  
Loans Deposits Total 

Indebtedness

Indebtedness at the beginning of the 
Financial Year i.e. on 01.04.2017

Total (i+ii+iii) 119.79 – – 119.79

 
 

Indebtedness at the end of the Financial 
Year i.e.on 31.03.2018

Total (i+ii+iii) 143.27 – – 143.27
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(vi) REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Sl.  
No.

Particulars of 
Remuneration

Name of MD/WTD/Manager

Total Amount Mr. Abhijit Roy (MD, Mrs. Rishma Kaur  

Business Development 
Manager, Retail)*

Mr. Kanwardip Singh 
Dhingra (Director 

Development Manager, 
Industrial)*

(`) (`) (`) (`)

 

 

 
 

Total (A) 2,54,02,484 21,65,995 22,02,595 2,97,71,074
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B. REMUNERATION TO OTHER DIRECTORS:

`)

Particulars of 
Remuneration Name of  Directors

Total  
Amount1. Independent

Directors
Mr. Kamal 
Ranjan Das

Mr. Pulak 
Chandan 
Prasad

Mr. 
Dhirendra 

Swarup

Mr. Gopal 
Krishna 

Pillai

Mr. Naresh 
Gujral

2.  Other 

Directors

Mr. 
Kuldip 
Singh 

Dhingra

Mr. 
Gurbachan 

Singh 
Dhingra

 

10,00,000

Total (2) 10,14,000 10,24,000 20,38,000
Total (B) = (1+2) 10,14,000 10,24,000 3,22,000 – 7,40,000 7,36,000 7,24,000 45,60,000
Total 
Managerial 
Remuneration

10,14,000 10,24,000 3,22,000 – 7,40,000 7,36,000 7,24,000 45,60,000



45

C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD:

`)

Sl.  
No. Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel

Mr. Srijit Dasgupta 
( Director-Finance, 

Mr. Aniruddha Sen 
(Senior Vice President Total

 

 
 

Total

VII.  PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Type Section of the 
Companies Act

Brief  Description
Details of Penalty/ 

Punishment/ 
Compounding  
fees imposed

Authority [RD/ 
NCLT/ COURT]

Appeal made, if 
any (give Details)

A. COMPANY

B.DIRECTORS

C.  OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT



ANNEXURE 2

REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES/INITIATIVE

https://www.bergerpaints.com/about-us/
csr-policy.html

Sl. No. iTrain Centres Status
1
2
3
4
5

7

9
10
11
12
13
14
15

17

19
20
21
22
23
24
25
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Sl. No. Mobile iTrain Centre Status
1
2
3
4
5

7

`

`

Details of amount spent on CSR activities during the year 2017-18:

`

`



Manner in which the amount was spent during the Financial Year is detailed below:

1 2 3 4 5 7
CSR project 
or activity 

Sector in which 
the Project is 
covered

Projects/
Programmes
1. Local area or 

other
2. State and 

district where 
projects or 
programmes 
were undertaken

Amount 
outlay 
(budget) 
project or 
program wise

Amount spent on 
the projects or 
programmes  
sub-heads:
1. Direct 

on projects or 
programmes

2. Overheads

Cumulative 

upto the 
reporting period

Amount 
spent: direct 
or through 
implementing 
agency

(`) (`) (`)

N.A.

TOTAL 10.91 crore 10.43 crore 24.53 crore
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ANNEXURE 3

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES PURSUANT TO SECTION 134(3)(q) OF THE COMPANIES 

REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014

Name
Designation/

Nature of 
Duties

Remuneration 
(`)

Nature of 
employment 

(whether 
contractual 

or otherwise)

(years)

Date of 
commencement  
of employment  
in the Company

Age
Previous 

employment/ 
Position held

`

27 52

 
 

 33

 
 

`

  
–NIL

Notes :

 
 

` `

 

 

www.bergerpaints.com  
consumerfeedback@bergerindia.com.
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ANNEXURE 4

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 31st March, 2018 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

(i) The 
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  Company Secretaries
ANJAN KUMAR ROY
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(To the Secretarial Audit Report of M/s. Berger Paints India Limited  

 
 

 
 

 

  Company Secretaries
ANJAN KUMAR ROY
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ANNEXURE 5

ANNEXURE TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 134(3)(m) OF THE 
COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH RULE 8(3) OF COMPANIES (ACCOUNTS) RULES, 2014
A) CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

1) The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy:

3) Capital investment of energy conservation equipment:
`

B) TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

Decorative Products
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Wood Coatings

Protecton

3) Future Plan of Action:

 

(`

II. Technology Absorption, Adaptation and Innovation:

 Kuldip Singh Dhingra
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ANNEXURE 6

BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2017-18

 

INTRODUCTION

 
 

Section A: General Information about the Company

www.bergerpaints.com

rajibde@bergerindia.com

Group* Description

202

201



Section B: Financial Details of the Company

`

`

`

Section C: Other Details

 

Section D: Business Responsibility Information

Sl. No. Particulars Details
1

2

3

4

5 aniruddhasen@bergerindia.com
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Sl. No. Questions P1 P2 P3 P4 P5 P6 P7 P8 P9

https://www.bergerpaints.com/about-us/business- 
responsibility-policy.html

 

https://www.bergerpaints.com/investors/annual-reports.html.



Section E: Principle-Wise Performance

Principle 1

Principle 2

 

 

 Water based coatings

 Lead, mercury and chromium free products (heavy metal free)

 

 Low VOC paints
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Principle 3

Principle 4

 

 

 

 

 

Principle 5



 

Principle 6

 

 
https://www.bergerpaints.com/about-us/quality-policy.html.

 



 

 

Principle 7

 



Principle 8

 

 https://www.bergerpaints.com/about-us/csr-policy.html

Principle 9



ANNEXURE- B

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

 

 

 



NAME OF DIRECTOR STATUS/DESIGNATION

DIRECTORSHIP 
IN OTHER 

COMPANIES 
INCORPORATED 

IN INDIA*

MEMBERSHIP/CHAIRMANSHIP ACROSS ALL OTHER 
COMPANIES IN WHICH ACTING AS A DIRECTOR

COMMITTEE CHAIRMANSHIP MEMBERSHIP

  15 3

  2

  5 NIL

 
 

 
15 1

 

 

10 1

 3
 

 
2 
 

1

1 
1 
1

 
 

 
2 
 

1

2 
1 

 15 1

 3 NIL

 2 1

NOTES:

 



 https://www.bergerpaints.com/about-us/standard-letter-of-appointment.html

MEETINGS AND ATTENDANCE:

SR. NO. DATE OF MEETING NO. OF DIRECTORS PRESENT

1 9

2
3 7
4 10

5 10

NAME OF DIRECTOR NO. OF MEETINGS ATTENDED ATTENDANCE AT THE AGM 
HELD ON 4TH AUGUST, 2017

5

5

5

5

5

5

4

4

2

4

NOTES:

`

 



MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:

 

FAMILIARISATION PROGRAM FOR INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS: 

 
 https://www.bergerpaints.com/about-us/familiarization-program.html

COMMITTEES OF DIRECTORS:

I.  AUDIT COMMITTEE:

The Composition of the Audit Committee as on 31st March, 2018 is as follows:



SR. NO. DATE OF MEETING
1
2
3
4
5

NAME OF DIRECTOR STATUS NO. OF MEETINGS ATTENDED

5

5

4

4

4

NOTES:

 

`  

VIGIL MECHANISM:



 

How to Report:

 
companysecretary@bergerindia.com

 
 
 

chairman@bergerindia.com

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
chairman@bergerindia.com

chairman@bergerindia.com

Investigations after report
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Retaliation is not tolerated

Malicious and unfounded allegations

No protection from adverse action

Action in terms of other laws

Document retention

II. COMPENSATION AND NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:

 

The Composition of the Remuneration Committee as on 31st March, 2018 is as follows:

SR. NO. DATE OF MEETING

1

2
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NAME OF DIRECTOR STATUS NO. OF MEETINGS ATTENDED

1

2

1

 

 

 

NAME OF KMP DESIGNATION NO. OF OPTIONS GRANTED

`

NAME OF KMP DESIGNATION NO. OF EQUITY SHARES ALLOTTED

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION CRITERIA FOR INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:

https://www.bergerpaints.com/about-us/criteria-policy.html

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS:

https://www.bergerpaints.com/about-us/remuneration-policy.html
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A. EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

 

DIRECTORS MR. ABHIJIT ROY 
(`)

MR. KANWARDIP SINGH DHINGRA 
(`)

MRS. RISHMA KAUR 
(`)

FIXED COMPONENTS:

 
 

 

VARIABLE COMPONENT:

TOTAL 2,57,61,955 23,31,427 23,44,057

B. NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

DIRECTORS COMMISSION  (`) SITTING FEES (`) TOTAL (`)

TOTAL 44,60,000 96,000 45,56,000



73

Total number of equity shares of (`) 1/- each held by Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) as on 31st March, 2018  
is as follows:

NAME OF KMP DESIGNATION NUMBER OF EQUITY SHARES HELD

III. SHAREHOLDERS’ COMMITTEE:

A. SHARE TRANSFER COMMITTEE:

The Composition of Shares Transfer Committee as on 31st March, 2018 is as follows:

 

SR. NO. DATE OF MEETING SR. NO. DATE OF MEETING

 

NAME OF DIRECTORS STATUS NO. OF MEETINGS ATTENDED

12

10

12

12

B. STAKEHOLDERS’ RELATIONSHIP AND INVESTOR GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE:
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The Composition of Stakeholders’ Relationship and Investor Grievance Committee as on 31st March, 2018 is as follows:

SR. NO. DATE OF MEETING
1
2
3
4

NAME OF DIRECTORS STATUS NO. OF MEETINGS ATTENDED

3

4

4

SHAREHOLDERS’ COMPLAINTS RECEIVED DURING THE YEAR:

IV. BUSINESS PROCESS AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE:

 

The Composition of Business Process and Risk Management Committee as on 31st March, 2018 is as follows:
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SR. NO. DATE OF MEETING
1
2
3
4

 

NAME OF DIRECTORS STATUS NO. OF MEETINGS ATTENDED

2

4

2

3

4

4

4

V. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Composition of CSR Committee as on 31st March, 2018 is as follows:



  

SR. NO. DATE OF MEETING
1
2

 

NAME OF DIRECTORS STATUS NO. OF MEETINGS ATTENDED

2

2

2

2

1

2

2

2

VI. COMMITTEE OF DIRECTORS FOR REGULAR MATTERS

The Composition of Committee of Directors for Regular Matters as on 31st March, 2018 is as follows:

SR. NO. DATE OF MEETING SR. NO. DATE OF MEETING SR. NO. DATE OF MEETING

1 9

2 10 19

3 11 20

4 12 21

5 13 22

14 23

7 15 24

25

17
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NAME OF DIRECTORS STATUS NO. OF MEETINGS ATTENDED

25

24

20

25

GENERAL BODY MEETINGS:

FINANCIAL YEAR VENUE DATE TIME WHETHER SPECIAL 
RESOLUTION PASSED

POSTAL BALLOT:

“Alteration of the object clause of the 

PROCEDURE ADOPTED FOR POSTAL BALLOT:



 

rta@cbmsl.com

 

 
 

https://www.bergerpaints.com/investors/scrutinizer-report.html

DISCLOSURES:

Separate posts of Chairman and CEO:  

https://www.bergerpaints.
com/about-us/rpt-policy.html
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https://www.bergerpaints.com/about-us/
rpt-policy.html

DISCRETIONARY REQUIREMENTS UNDER REGULATION 27 OF THE LISTING REGULATIONS: 

1. Shareholders’ Rights:

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION:

Hindu Business Line, Business Standard, Mint, Ei-Somoy, Aajkal, Dainik Statesman
https://www.bergerpaints.com/investors/quarterly-reports.html

www.bergerpaints.com.

CODE OF CONDUCT:

 

 

https://www.bergerpaints.com/about-us/code-of-conduct-
independent-directors.html

PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING CODE:

https://www.bergerpaints.
com/about-us/code-of-practices-and-procedures-policy.html

 

https://www.bergerpaints.com/about-us/code-of-practices-and-procedures-policy.html



NO. OF SHARES AND CONVERTIBLE INSTRUMENTS HELD BY THE NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

SR. NO. NAME OF NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS NUMBER OF SHARES HELD BY THEM

Kuldip Singh Dhingra



DECLARATION UNDER REGULATION 34(3) READ WITH PART D OF SCHEDULE V OF 
THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE BOARD OF INDIA (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND 

DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015

 
www.bergerpaints.com

Abhijit Roy



ANNEXURE- C

GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS' INFORMATION

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING : DATE

  TIME

  VENUE

FINANCIAL YEAR 

  Financial Reporting for the quarters ending on:

BOOK CLOSURE DATES  

DIVIDEND PAYMENT DATE

LISTING ON STOCK EXCHANGES 

  NATIONAL  STOCK EXCHANGE (NSE) 
 

 

  BOMBAY STOCK EXCHANGE (BSE) 
 

 

  CALCUTTA STOCK EXCHANGE (CSE) 
 

STOCK CODES 

DEPOSITORIES NATIONAL SECURITIES DEPOSITORY LIMITED 
 

 

  b) CENTRAL DEPOSITORY SERVICES (INDIA) LIMITED 
 

 

ISIN No



MARKET PRICE (HIGH / LOW) AT BSE DURING EACH MONTH FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2017-18:

MONTH HIGH (`) LOW (`)

SHARE PERFORMANCE IN RELATION TO BSE SENSEX:

NUMBER OF SHAREHOLDERS AS ON 31st MARCH, 2018: 73,480

Berger Close Price

BSE SensexShare Performance in relation to BSE Sensex (Indexed)
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SHAREHOLDING PATTERN AS ON 31st MARCH, 2018

STATUS HOLDING (%)

TOTAL 100

DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDING AS AT 31st MARCH, 2018

SHAREHOLDING OF 
NOMINAL VALUE SHARE  AMOUNT SHAREHOLDER

(`) (`) % to TOTAL NUMBER % to TOTAL

143

107

143

TOTAL 97,10,31,428 100.00 73,480 100.00

 

HOLDING (%)



SHARE TRANSFER SYSTEM:

`

DEMATERIALISATION OF SHARES AND LIQUIDITY AS ON 31st MARCH, 2018: 

OUTSTANDING GDRs/ADRs/WARRANTS OR ANY CONVERTIBLE INSTRUMENTS, CONVERSION DATE AND 
LIKELY IMPACT ON EQUITY:

SHARES HELD IN PHYSICAL AND DEMATERIALISED MODE AS ON 31st MARCH, 2018: 

DIVIDEND HISTORY

FINANCIAL YEAR DIVIDEND PER 
SHARE ( ` )

TOTAL DIVIDEND  
( ` IN CRORE)

DIVIDEND 
DISTRIBUTION TAX 

( ` IN CRORE)

TOTAL DIVIDEND 
(INCLUDING DIVIDEND 

DISTRIBUTION TAX)

SHARES HELD IN DEMARTERIALISED FORM : NSDL (96.77%)

SHARES HELD IN DEMARTERIALISED FORM : CDSL (2.03%)

SHARES HELD IN PHYSICAL FORM : 1.2%



PLANT LOCATION

HOWRAH 
 

 
 

SIKANDRABAD* 

 

PUDUCHERRY 
 

 
 

JAMMU 
 

 
 

 
(* includes British Paints Division)

GOA 

 
 

RISHRA 
 

 
 

SURAJPUR* 

 
 

JEJURI 
 

 
 

HINDUPUR 
 

 
 

HINDUPUR* 

 
 

ASSAM (NALBARI)* 

 

ASSAM (NALTOLI) 
 
 

TALOJA **
 

 
 

*   British Paints Division
** Factory of BJN Paints India Ltd. now amalgamated with the Company w.e.f. 

1st April, 2017, being the Appointed Date, vide Hon’ble NCLT order dated 27th 
February, 2018

REGISTRARS AND SHARE TRANSFER AGENTS AND ADDRESS FOR CORRESPONDENCE:

M/s C B Management Services (P) Ltd 
 

 
 

rta@cbmsl.com, dasg@cbmsl.com

COMPLIANCE OFFICER: MR. ANIRUDDHA SEN, Senior Vice President and Company Secretary

FOR ANY QUERY RELATING TO YOUR SHAREHOLDING, PLEASE SEND YOUR QUERY/E-MAIL AT:

1. BERGER PAINTS INDIA LIMITED 
 

 
 

consumerfeedback@bergerindia.com

2. M/S C B MANAGEMENT SERVICES (P) LTD.

MANDATORY REQUIREMENT OF PAN:



 

DISCLOSURES AS PER PARA F OF SCHEDULE V OF THE SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE 
REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015:

SR. 
NO. PARTICULARS NO. OF 

SHAREHOLDER(S)

OUTSTANDING 
SHARES (FACE VALUE 

OF `1/-)

TOTAL 387 15,03,982

3

3

Kuldip Singh Dhingra 



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH THE CONDITIONS OF 
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AS PER PROVISIONS OF CHAPTER IV OF SECURITIES 
AND EXCHANGE BOARD OF INDIA (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE 
REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015

 

 

Management’s Responsibility

 

 

Auditor’s Responsibility

 
 



 

Opinion  

 

Other matters and Restriction on Use

 
 

per Bhaswar Sarkar
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF BERGER PAINTS INDIA LIMITED

Report on the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

Auditor’s Responsibility

 

Opinion

 
 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
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Other Matter

` `
 
 
 

  
 

per Bhaswar Sarkar 
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ANNEXURE 1 REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH 1 OF THE SECTION ON “REPORT ON OTHER 

STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF BERGER PAINTS INDIA LIMITED

TO THE MEMBERS OF BERGER PAINTS INDIA LIMITED (‘THE COMPANY’)

(  

`
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Name of the Statute Nature  
of Dues

Amount  
(` in  

Crores)

Period to which the Amount 
relates (Financial Year)

Forum where  
Dispute is pending

 

 

 

 

 
 

per Bhaswar Sarkar 
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE 
STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF BERGER PAINTS INDIA LIMTED 

 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

Auditor’s Responsibility

 
 
 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference to these Financial Statements
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference to these Standalone  
Financial Statements

 

 

Opinion

 

 

 
 

per Bhaswar Sarkar 
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Kuldip Singh Dhingra-Chairman
Gurbachan Singh Dhingra-Vice-Chairman

Abhijit Roy-Managing Director & CEO
Srijit Dasgupta-Director -Finance & CFO

Aniruddha Sen-Sr. VP & Company Secretary

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

in Crores
BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2018   
  
 Notes As at March 31, 2018  As at March 31, 2017 
ASSETS   
Non-current assets   
Property, plant and equipment 4   911.04   882.87
Capital work-in-progress 4  87.27   56.23
Intangible assets 4  4.29   6.07
Financial assets   
(a) Investments 5a  303.18   210.35
(b) Loans 5b  19.99   13.71
(c) Other financial assets 5c  2.53   0.51
Income tax assets (net) 6  46.14   14.76
Other non-current assets 7  31.05   32.83
   1,405.49   1,217.33
Current assets   
Inventories 8  939.36   894.30
Financial assets   
(a) Investments 9a  227.59   367.27
(b) Trade receivables 9b  598.01   509.45
(c) Cash and cash equivalents 9c  64.18   30.88
(d) Bank balances other than (c) above 9d  56.39   4.86
(e) Loans 5b  1.96   5.40
(f) Other financial assets 5c  2.89   2.02
Other current assets 7  208.83   55.83
   2,099.21   1,870.01
Total assets   3,504.70   3,087.34
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES   
Equity   
Equity Share Capital 10  97.10   97.10
Other  Equity 11  2,046.51   1,815.67
Total Equity   2,143.61   1,912.77
Liabilities   
Non-current liabilities   
Financial liabilities   
(a) Deposits 12  3.54   2.86
Provisions 13  2.92   2.71
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 14a  58.60   60.09
Other non- current liabilities 15  1.72   0.87
   66.78   66.53
Current liabilities   
Financial liabilities   
(a) Borrowings 16a  143.27   119.68
(b) Trade payables 16b  932.57   750.32
(c) Other financial liabilities 12  113.95   139.72
Other current liabilities 15  85.00   82.02
Provisions 13  15.98   16.30
Current tax liabilities (net) 14c  3.54   - 
   1,294.31   1,108.04
Total liabilities   1,361.09   1,174.57
Total equity and liablities   3,504.70   3,087.34

Significant accounting policies 3  
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.   
As per our report on even date   
   
For S.R. BATLIBOI & CO. LLP  
Firm Registration Number 301003E/E300005   
Chartered Accountants   
per Bhaswar Sarkar   
Partner   
Membership Number : 055596    
Place: Kolkata   
Dated: May 30, 2018 



97

Kuldip Singh Dhingra-Chairman
Gurbachan Singh Dhingra-Vice-Chairman

Abhijit Roy-Managing Director & CEO
Srijit Dasgupta-Director -Finance & CFO

Aniruddha Sen-Sr. VP & Company Secretary

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

in Crores

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018
   
 
 Notes Year Ended Year Ended
  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 
   
Revenue from operations 19  4,839.37   4,723.52 
Other income 20  46.53   48.31 
Total income   4,885.90   4,771.83 
   
Expenses   
Cost of materials consumed 21  2,470.43   2,150.56 
Purchases of traded goods   405.57   411.79 
(Increase)/decrease in inventories of finished goods,
work-in-process and traded goods 22  (87.66)  (120.26)
Excise duty on sale of goods (Refer note 19)   115.58   498.20 
Employee benefits expense 23  269.84   244.51 
Finance costs 24  16.20   7.76 
Depreciation and amortisation expense 25  111.92   98.00 
Other expenses 26  922.21   876.60 
Total expense   4,224.09   4,167.16 
   
Profit before exceptional items and tax   661.81   604.67 
Exceptional Items 27  -     58.67 
Profit before tax   661.81   663.34 
   
Tax expense   
Current tax    232.08   204.91 
Deferred tax 14a  (2.11)  14.34 
   229.97   219.25 

Profit for the year (I)   431.84   444.09 
   
Other Comprehensive income:   

Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or loss
in subsequent periods:   
Re-measurement gains and (losses) on defined benefit obligations (net)   1.78   (2.08)
Income tax effect thereof   (0.62)  0.64 
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year, net of tax  (II)   1.16   (1.44)
   
Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (I + II)   433.00   442.65 
   
Earnings per Equity Share of    1 each 28  
  Basic   4.45   4.57 
  Diluted ( rounded off upto two decimal places)   4.45   4.57 
   
Significant accounting policies 3
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report on even date   
For S.R. BATLIBOI & CO. LLP
Firm Registration Number 301003E/E300005 
Chartered Accountants 
per Bhaswar Sarkar  
Partner 
Membership Number : 055596  
Place: Kolkata 
Dated: May 30, 2018
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in Crores

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2018  
      
 
a.        Equity Share Capital:      
 

Equity shares of    1 each issued, subscribed and fully paid   No. of shares      in Crores

At March 31, 2017    97,09,86,647    97.10 

Add Issue of Shares on exercise of Stock Options (Note 32 )*    44,781   0.00 

At March 31, 2018    97,10,31,428    97.10 

*Refer Note 42 

b.  Other equity       

       

 For the year ended March 31, 2018       

              Reserves & Surplus
  Securities Share based  Retained  Capital  General Capital  
                Particulars Premium Payment  Reserve Earnings Reserve  Reserve Redemption Total Equity  
  Account     Reserve

As at April 1, 2017  111.31  0.87  1,412.82   0.02  290.61  0.04  1,815.67 
Profit for the year  -  -  431.84   - -  -  431.84 

Other comprehensive
income for the year (net of tax)  -  -  1.16   - -  -  1.16 

Total Comprehensive
Income for the year  -  -  433.00   -  -  -  433.00 
Cost of share based payments
(Note 32)  -  2.44  -     -  -  -  2.44 
Issue of share capital on
Bonus Issue (Note 10) -  -  -     -  -  -  -   
Exercise of share options
(Note 32)  1.03  (1.03)  -     -  -  -  -   
Share Options forfeited/
lapsed (Note 32)  -   (0.08)  -     -  -  -  (0.08)
Dividends (Note 18)  -  -  (169.93)  -  -  -  (169.93)
Dividend distribution tax
on cash dividend (Note 18)  -  -  (34.59)  -  -  -  (34.59)
As at March 31, 2018   112.34  2.20  1,641.30   0.02  290.61  0.04  2,046.51
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Kuldip Singh Dhingra-Chairman
Gurbachan Singh Dhingra-Vice-Chairman

Abhijit Roy-Managing Director & CEO
Srijit Dasgupta-Director -Finance & CFO

Aniruddha Sen-Sr. VP & Company Secretary

For and on behalf of Board of DirectorsFor S.R. BATLIBOI & CO. LLP
Firm Registration Number 301003E/E300005 
Chartered Accountants 
per Bhaswar Sarkar  
Partner 
Membership Number : 055596  
Place: Kolkata 
Dated: May 30, 2018

in Crores

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2018 

For the year ended March 31, 2017       

              Reserves & Surplus
  Securities Share based  Retained  Capital  General Capital  
                Particulars Premium Payment Reserve Earnings Reserve  Reserve Redemption Total Equity  
  Account     Reserve

As at April 1 , 2016*  137.50   0.83   1,087.02   0.02   290.61   0.04   1,516.02
Profit for the year  -     -     444.09   -     -     -     444.09
Other comprehensive
income for the year (net of tax)  -     -     (1.44)  -     -     -     (1.44)
Total Comprehensive
Income for the year  -     -     442.65   -     -     -     442.65
Cost of share based
payments (Note 32)  -     0.93   -     -     -     -     0.93
Issue of share capital on 
Bonus Issue (Note 10)  (27.74)  -    - - -  - (27.74)
Exercise of share
options (Note 32)  1.55   (0.82)  -     -     -     -     0.73
Share Options forfeited/
lapsed (Note 32)  -     (0.07) -  -     -     -     (0.07)
Dividends (Note 18)  -    -  (97.09)  -     -     -     (97.09)
Dividend distribution tax
on  Dividend (Note 18)  -     -     (19.76)  -     -     -     (19.76)
As at March 31, 2017  111.31   0.87   1,412.82   0.02   290.61   0.04   1,815.67

*Also Refer Note 36
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Kuldip Singh Dhingra-Chairman
Gurbachan Singh Dhingra-Vice-Chairman

Abhijit Roy-Managing Director & CEO
Srijit Dasgupta-Director -Finance & CFO

Aniruddha Sen-Sr. VP & Company Secretary

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

in Crores
2017-18                                            2016-17

     

 
A.  CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 
          Net Profit before tax  661.81   663.34
  Adjustment to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:   
  Depreciation and amortization expense 111.92 98.00
  (Profit) /Loss on sale/discard of Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (0.05) 0.34 
  Employee stock option cost  2.36  1.60
  Profit on transfer of Company's paint division relating to 4 wheeler passenger cars and
  SUVs, 3 wheelers and related ancillaries (refer Note 27)  -  (86.67)
  Impairment in subsidiary (refer Note 27)  -  28.00
  Guarantee income (0.92) (2.13)
  Unrealized foreign exchange loss 2.10 0.04
  Net gain realised on sale of mutual fund investments (18.11)  (26.99)
  Fair value gain on mutual fund investments held at year end (4.41) (2.97)
  Dividend income (6.47)  - 
  Finance costs 16.20 7.76
  Interest income (0.87) (2.40) 
  Operating profit before working capital changes 763.56  677.91
  Adjustments for :   
  Increase in trade payables 180.82  96.61
  Increase / (decrease) in other financial liabilities (8.10)  3.79
  Increase in other liabilities 3.83 10.06 
  Increase in provisions 1.67  0.74
  Increase / (decrease) in loans, deposits and other financial assets (2.93) 1.66
  Decrease in other assets (145.88) (19.41)
  Decrease in trade receivables (88.56) (17.60)
  Decrease in inventories (45.06)     (198.80)
  Cash generated from operations 659.35  554.98
  Direct taxes paid (net of refunds) (259.92) (212.18)
  Net cash flow from operating activities (A) 399.43  342.80
B.     CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES   
  Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets including capital work
  in progress  (193.33)  (248.83)
  Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 1.33  0.86
  Purchase of current investments (1,988.27) (4,093.86)
  Proceeds from sale of current investments 2,150.47  4,056.46
  Investment in joint venture and subsidiaries (94.87)  (106.57)
  Proceeds from transfer of Company's paint division relating to 4 wheeler passenger
  cars and SUVs, 3 wheelers and related ancillaries (refer note 27) -  90.00
  Proceeds from Maturity of Fixed Deposits with Banks 0.02  32.88
  Investment in Fixed Deposits with Banks (50.85)  - 
  Dividend received 6.47 - 
  Interest received 0.11 3.79
  Net cash flow used in investing activities (B) (168.92) (265.27)
C.     CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES   
  Proceeds from issuance of equity share capital  0.00 0.01
  Net movement in cash credit and buyer’s credit 25.09  (106.40)
  Short term borrowings taken 2,577.81 995.00
  Repayment of short term borrowings  (2,577.81)  (995.00)
  Interest paid (16.31)  (8.50)
  Dividend Paid (including dividend distribution tax) (203.82) (116.24)
  Net cash flow used in financing activities (C) (195.04)  (231.12)
  Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C) 35.47 4.44
  Cash & cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year ( also refer note 36) 25.69  21.25
  Cash & cash equivalents as at the end of the year  61.16  25.69
  Refer Note 9c for Components of Cash and cash equivalents   
Summary of significant accounting policies                                                         3  
 The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date.
For S.R. BATLIBOI & CO. LLP 
Firm Registration Number 301003E/E300005 
Chartered Accountants   
per Bhaswar Sarkar     
Partner   
Membership Number : 055596   
Place: Kolkata   
Dated: May 30, 2018

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

1. Corporate Information

Berger Paints India Limited (‘BPIL’ or ‘the Company’) is a public limited company domiciled in India and is incorporated under 
the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India. Its shares are listed on three stock exchanges in India. The Company is 

Company is located at Berger House, 129 Park Street, Kolkata-700 017.

2. Basis of Preparation

Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended from time to time.

Accounting policies have been consistently applie
revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

3. 

or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle and 

the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its 
iabilities.

ts of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary economic 

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in by the Company at spot rates at the functional currency spot rate 

currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date.

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of transactions in foreign currencies and from the translation 
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange rates are generally recognised in 

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange 
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are 

oss are also 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to 
sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either: 

a) In the principal market for the asset or liability, or 

b) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability 

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their best economic interest. 

its highest and best use. 

measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs. 

a) Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 

directly or indirectly observable 

unobservable

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the 
nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

3.4. Use of Estimates

and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent 
liabilities during and at the end of the reporting period. Although these estimates are based on the management’s best 

requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods.



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

 
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment, if any. Cost comprises purchase price and directly attributable cost 

for the decommissioning of an asset after its use is included in the cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for a 

for further information about the recorded decommissioning provision.

Depreciation is provided on Straight line method over the useful lives of property, plant and equipment as estimated by 

No depreciation is provided on freehold land

Leasehold Land and Building is amortized on a straight line basis over the tenure of respective leases

The re
year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

In

accumulated impairment losses, if any. Internally generated intangible assets, excluding capitalized development costs, are 
uch expenditure is incurred.

exists, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or  
cash-generating unit’s (CGU) net selling price and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is 

appropriate valuation model is used.

3.9. Inventories

constitutes direct materials and labour and a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on normal operating capacity. 

above cost. 

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and 
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

 
 

collected on behalf of the government. The Company has concluded that it is principal in all of its revenue arrangements 
since it is the primary obligor in all the revenue arrangements as it has pricing latitude and is also exposed to inventory and 
credit risks.

statements.

 
account. Rather, it is tax collected on value added to the commodity by the seller on behalf of the government. Accordingly, 
it is excluded from revenue.

Sale of goods

the buyer, on delivery of the goods or as per buyer’s instruction. Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at the fair value 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

Income from services

 
rendered.

Interest Income recognised under Amortized cost

Interest Income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the applicable 

Dividend Income

D
 the dividend can be measured reliably.

When the grant or subsidy from the Government relates to revenue, it is deducted from the related expense on a systematic 

intended to compensate. Where the grant or subsidy from the Government relates to revenue and is not relatable to the 

income in equal amounts over the expected useful life of the related asset.

When the Company receives grants of non-monetary assets, the asset and the grant are recorded at fair value amounts and 

The loan or assistance is initially recognised and measured at fair value of the proceeds received. The loan is subsequently 

a. Superannuation

b. Provident Fund

are made to the Fund administered by the Regional Provident Fund Commissioner as per the provisions of 

contribution payable to the Regional Provident fund.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

a. Gratuity

of  The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Retirement Gratuity for employees, is funded through a scheme of 

the fair value of the plan assets over  the present value of the obligation calculated as per actuarial methods as 

this calculation is limited to the past service cost plus the present value of available refunds and reduction in 
future contributions. 

b. Provident Fund

In respect of the employees covered by the Company’s Employee Provident Fund Trust in Point I b above, 
contributions to the Company’s Employees Provident Fund Trust (administered by the Company as per the 

determined based on an actuarial valuation as at the balance sheet date, as an expense.

for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation 

the extent it does not have an unconditional right to defer its settlement for 12 months after the reporting date. Where 
Company has the unconditional legal and contractual right to defer the settlement for a period beyond 12 months, 
the same is presented as non-current liability.

3.13. Leases

As a lessee

Finance leases are capitalised at the commencement of the lease at the inception date at the fair value of the leased property 

and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

the asset and the lease term.

As a lessor

relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount 
of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised 

or substantially improved materials, devices, products, processes, systems or services before the start of commercial 

(b) the Company intends to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it.

(c) the Company has ability to use or sell the intangible asset.

 use or sell the intangible asset.

(f) the Company has ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during its    
 development.



108

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. 

for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the 

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is probable that 

Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become 

asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or 
directly in equity, respectively.

during the current year and reversal of timing differences for the earlier years. Deferred tax is measured using the tax rates 

recognition of deferred tax assets to the extent that it has become reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the case may 

estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of 



109

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

The Company records a provision for decommissioning costs for its certain manufacturing facilities. Decommissioning 

and adjusted as appropriate. Changes in the estimated future costs or in the discount rate applied are added to or deducted 
from the cost of the asset.

occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a present 

3.18. Borrowing Costs

3.19. Earnings Per Share

number of shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

events, such as bonus shares, other than the conversion of potential equity shares,  that have changed the number of equity 

Stock options are granted to the employees under the stock option scheme. The cost of stock options granted to the 

.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

per share. If the options vests in instalments (i.e. the options vest pro rata over the service period), then each instalment is 
treated as a separate share option grant because each instalment has a different vesting period.

instrument of another entity.

A. 

 ii. Subsequent measurement 

a. Debt instruments at amortised cost 

and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on 

category generally applies to trade and other receivables.

Equity investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind-AS 109 are measured at fair value other than equity investments measured 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt securities, 
deposits, trade receivables and bank balance

recognition.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of 

terms

portfolio of its trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the 

amount.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

B. 

investment in subsidiaries and joint ventures, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

over

 ii. Subsequent measurement

trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.

Loans and borrowings

through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that 

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to be made to 

fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, 

Ind AS 109 and the amount recognised less cumulative amortisation.



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to 
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

A. 

for annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2018.

B. 

may make deductions on the reversal of that deductible temporary difference. Furthermore, the amendments provide guidance 

recovery of some assets for more than their carrying amount.

the opening equity of the earliest comparative period may be recognised in opening retained earnings (or in another component of 

applying this relief must disclose that fact.

These amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2018. These amendments are not expected to 
have any impact on the Company as the Company as there are no deductible temporary differences or assets that are in the scope 
of the amendments.

C. 

income (or part of it) on the derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to advance consideration, 

arising from the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, then the entity must determine the 
transaction date for each payment or receipt of advance consideration.

Entities may apply the Appendix requirements on a fully retrospective basis. Alternatively, an entity may apply these requirements 
prospectively to all assets, expenses and income in its scope that are initially recognised on or after:
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

The Appendix is effective for annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2018. The Company is evaluating the impact of this 

3.23. Operating Segments

Committee performs the function of allotment of resources and assessment of performance of the Company. Considering the 

for the purposes of approving the annual operating plan is on a consolidated basis for various products of the Company. As 

3.24. Business Combinations

the combining entities or businesses are ultimately controlled by the same party or parties both before and after the business 
combination and the control is not transitory.  Business combinations involving entities under common control are accounted 
for using the pooling of interests method. The assets and liabilities of the acquired entity are recognised at their carrying 
amounts on the date of the acquisition subject to necessary adjustments required to harmonise accounting policies. The 

or shortfall of the consideration paid over the share capital of acquired entity is recognized as capital reserve under equity. 
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in Crores

in Crores

in Crores

           Gross Block at Cost       Depreciation / Amortisation  Net Block 
             On Deletions 
   Particulars As at Additions Deletions As at  As at   For the  (accumulated As at As at As at   
  April 1,   March 31,  April 1,  Year  upto the date  March 31, March 31, March 31,
  2017   2018  2017    of sale)  2018 2018 2017

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018   
Note 4(a) - Property, plant and equipment         

          

 
Land           
     Freehold   10.07   -     -   10.07   -     -     -     -     10.07   10.07 
     Leasehold   8.27   0.45  -   8.72   0.19    0.22   -     0.41   8.31   8.08 
          
 Buildings           
     Freehold #   361.92   12.65   -    374.57   21.92   14.46   -     36.38   338.19   340.00 
     Leasehold   12.96   -     -    12.96   0.61   0.34   -     0.95   12.01   12.35 
          
Plant &
Equipment ##   577.56   102.79   (0.46)  679.89   121.88   76.69   (0.20)  198.37   481.52   455.68
Furniture and
Fixtures   21.79   5.56   (0.03)  27.32   5.62   3.63   (0.02)  9.23   18.09   16.17 
Computer ##   36.43   10.73   (0.14)  47.02   10.20   9.32   (0.13)  19.39   27.63   26.23 
Office
Equipment   8.47   2.13   (0.03)  10.57   2.32   1.85   (0.01)  4.16   6.41   6.15 
Vehicles   9.18   3.79   (2.26)  10.71   1.04   2.14   (1.28)  1.90   8.81   8.14 

          
 Total   1,046.65   138.10   (2.92)  1,181.83   163.78   108.65   (1.64)  270.79   911.04   882.87 

Note 4(a)(i)
Title deeds of immovable properties set out in Note 4(a) above, are in the name of the Company except those mentioned below which were transferred to and 
vested in the Company pursuant to the respective Schemes of Arrangement in earlier years.

           Gross Block at Cost       Depreciation / Amortisation  Net Block 
             On Deletions 
   Particulars As at Additions Deletions As at  As at   For the  (accumulated As at As at As at   
  April 1,   March 31,  April 1,  Year  upto the date  March 31, March 31, March 31,
  2017   2018  2017    of sale)  2018 2018 2017

Note 4(b) -  Intangible assets           
          

          
 

Computer  11.68   1.49   -     13.17   5.61   3.27   -     8.88   4.29   6.07
Software   

Total   11.68   1.49   -     13.17   5.61   3.27   -     8.88   4.29   6.07 

# Partly on leasehold land       

   Gross Carrying Amount      Net Carrying Amount  
            As at           As at   As at  As at 
  March 31, 2018  March 31, 2017  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Leasehold land at Taloja, Maharashtra 1 1.13   1.13   0.98   1.00
Freehold land at Rishra, West Bengal  1 1.36   1.36  1.36   1.36

Leasehold land at Sikandrabad, Uttar Pradesh 1 0.27 0.27 0.15 0.15

Leasehold land at Chandigarh 1 0.05 0.05 0.03 0.03

Particulars No. of 
title deeds

Held in
the name of

Brushworks Paints Limited

Rajdoot Paints Private
Limited

Rajdoot Paints Private
Limited

Berger Auto & Industrial
Coatings Limited
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in Crores

in Crores

in Crores
           Gross Block at Cost       Depreciation / Amortisation  Net Block 
             On Deletions 
   Particulars As at Additions Deletions As at  As at   For the  (accumulated As at As at As at   
  April 1,   March 31,  April 1,  Year  upto the date  March 31, March 31, March 31,
  2017   2018  2017    of sale)  2018 2018 2017

 

Plant &  171.41   42.50  -  213.91   69.13  39.40  -  108.53  105.38   102.28
Equipment  

 Computer       19.21     3.93  -   23.14     7.80    4.31 -     12.11   11.03  11.41

 Total   190.62   46.43   -  237.05    76.93   43.71   -  120.64   116.41   113.69

 (ii) Also refer note 33  

Note 4(c) - Capital work in progress        
          Gross Block at Cost                  
                                      Particulars     As at     As at
      April 1, 2017   Additions  Capitalisation March 31, 2018 

 Buildings   10.10   6.86   (12.65)  4.31 

 Plant & Equipment   45.65   154.43   (117.14)  82.94 

 Other assets      0.48         7.85   (8.31)  0.02 

Total    56.23   169.14   (138.10)  87.27 

           Gross Block at Cost               Depreciation / Amortisation                   Net Block 
                                On Deletions 
   Particulars As at Additions Deletions As at     As at         For the           (accumulated As at As at    
  April 1,   March 31,    April 1,       Year               upto the date March 31, March 31, 
  2016@   2017  2016@                   of sale) 2017 2017 

Note 4(d) - Property plant and equipment    
 

Land           
     Freehold   10.07   -     -     10.07   -     -     -      -     10.07   
     Leasehold   7.28   0.99   -     8.27   0.09   0.10   -      0.19   8.08  

          
Buildings           
     Freehold #   284.22   77.70   -     361.92   10.46   11.46   -      21.92   340.00  
     Leasehold   9.80   3.16   -     12.96   0.29   0.32   -      0.61   12.35  
          
Plant &  409.69   170.55   (2.68)  577.56   58.54   65.66   (2.32)   121.88   455.68  
Equipment ##   
Furniture and  18.19   3.67   (0.07)  21.79   2.33   3.35   (0.06)   5.62   16.17   
Fixtures  
Computer ##   25.22   16.48   (5.27)  36.43   6.08   9.15   (5.03)   10.20   26.23  
Office  6.62   2.00   (0.15)  8.47   0.84   1.63   (0.15)   2.32   6.15  
Equipment   
Vehicles   8.15   2.65   (1.62)  9.18   0.17   1.99   (1.12)   1.04   8.14   

Total   779.24   277.20   (9.79)  1,046.65   78.80   93.66   (8.68)   163.78   882.87   

      

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

Also Refer Note 4(a)(i)
@ Also Refer Note 36
# Partly on leasehold land

## (i) Includes following assets ( Color Bank ) given under operating lease arrangements 
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in Crores

in Crores

in Crores

           Gross Block at Cost       Depreciation / Amortisation           Net Block 
                     On Deletions 
   Particulars As at Additions Deletions As at  As at   For the              (accumulated As at As at   
  April 1,   March 31,  April 1,  Year          upto the date March 31, March 31, 
  2016@   2017  2016@                  of sale)                      2017                   2017 

          

 
Plant & 123.68   47.73  -  171.41   33.18   35.95                 -  69.13   102.28  
Equipment    
Computer      14.52     4.69  -     19.21     3.76     4.04  -   7.80   11.41 
Total   138.20   52.42   -   190.62   36.94   39.99     -     76.93   113.69   

@ Also Refer Note 36          
(ii) Also refer note 33           
          
Note 4(f) - Capital work in Progress           

          
   Gross Block at Cost     
     
                                                     Particulars      As at Additions    Capitalisation As at
       April 1, 2016@       March 31, 2017   

Buildings         13.67  77.20  (80.77)  10.10   
Plant & Equipment      34.56 200.73 (189.64) 45.65

Other assets          0.54 6.73  (6.79) 0.48

Total         48.77  284.66 (277.20) 56.23 

in Crores
           Gross Block at Cost            Depreciation / Amortisation             Net Block 
                    On Deletions 
   Particulars As at Additions Deletions As at  As at    For the            (accumulated As at As at   
  April 1,   March 31,  April 1,  Year         upto the date March 31, March 31, 
  2016@   2017  2016@               of sale)                        2017                  2017 

Note 4(e) -  Intangible assets       

          

Computer 
Software   13.34   1.56   (3.22)  11.68   4.40   4.34   (3.13)  5.61   6.07   
Total   13.34   1.56   (3.22)  11.68   4.40   4.34   (3.13)  5.61   6.07  
 @ Also Refer Note 36          

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

## (i) Includes following assets ( Color Bank ) given under operating lease arrangements  

@ Also Refer Note 36          
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

Note 5a. Financial assets - Investments   
                                                     Number of shares                  in Crores 
       Nominal Currency As at As at As at As at
       Value  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017    March 31, 2018   March 31,2017
      per unit  

Non Current

At fair value through profit and loss     

Equity Shares - Unquoted (Fully Paid)      

Shaktikunj Apartments Limited *     1   `   1,498   1,498   0.00   0.00 

At deemed cost:      

Equity Shares - Unquoted (Fully Paid)      
Investment in Wholly Owned Subsidiaries      
Beepee Coatings Private Limited       10     25,00,000   25,00,000   2.50  2.50
Berger Jenson & Nicholson (Nepal) Private Limited   100  NEPALESE RUPEE       345,421      3,45,421  4.46  4.46
Berger Paints (Cyprus) Limited    1.71  EURO    62,21,490     55,53,804   73.81  65.12
Less Impairment loss (Refer note 27)         (28.00)           (28.00)
Lusako Trading Limited    1.71  EURO    56,09,827     55,10,407   68.81  67.52
Saboo Coatings Private Limited #    10.00     29,60,000   -     82.85   -
      
Investment in Joint Ventures      
Berger Becker Coatings Private Limited      100       2,70,850        2,70,850   2.71  2.71

     

   
                                                         
                                         
       
          
Berger Nippon Paint Automotive Coatings Private Ltd.
(Formerly BNB Coatings India Private Limited/BNB 

Coatings India Limited)    1,000      960,400   960,400   96.04   96.04
      

Total           303.18   210.35
Aggregate amount of Unquoted Investments        303.18    210.35
Aggregate amount of impairment in value of Investment     28.00   28.00

# The Company acquired 100% of the paid up equity share capital of Saboo Coatings Private Limited (“SCPL”) after close of business hours on 5th June, 2017. 

* Refer Note 42    
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in Crores

in Crores

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018
     

Note 5b. Financial assets - Loans
(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)
       Non-Current   Current 

     As at  As at  As at As at
     March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017   

 Security Deposits      19.99    13.71  1.96  5.40

 Total loans      19.99   13.71  1.96  5.40

Note 5c. Other Financial assets

                        Non-Current                                    Current 

     As at  As at  As at As at
     March 31, 2018  March 31, 2017  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 
Bank deposits with original maturity more  0.09   0.11    0.07   0.05 
than twelve months   
Advances to related parties - towards Share Application 2.44   0.40   - -
money pending allotment
(Refer Note 35) #         
Interest accrued on deposits    -     -      0.83   0.07 
Other receivables # #     -     -      1.99   1.90 
Total other financial assets    2.53   0.51    2.89   2.02 
#     
Berger Paints (Cyprus) Limited    2.44   0.08    
Lusako Trading Limited    -     0.32    
      2.44   0.40 
## includes receivable from related parties
Berger Paints (Bangaladesh) Limited      0.39 0.49 
Berger Jenson & Nicholson (Nepal) Private Limited     1.30 1.38
        1.69 1.87 

(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)
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in Crores

in Crores
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#

# Excise duty disclosed in Statement of Profit and Loss for the three months period ended June 30, 2017 is net of excise duty benefit of     8.16 crores (Year ended 
March 31, 2017:     27.65 crores). Subsequent to the implementation of GST w.e.f July 1, 2017, the Company has claimed subsidy available under "Scheme of 
Budgetary Support under GST Regime to the eligible units" located in specified States amounting to    28.38 crores (March 31, 2017: Nil).

(at the lower of cost and net realisable value)

As at
March 31, 2018 

As at
March 31, 2018 

As at
March 31, 2018 

As at
March 31, 2017

As at
March 31, 2017

in Crores

As at
March 31, 2018 

As at
March 31, 2017

As at
March 31, 2017
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Note 9a. Financial assets - Current Investments     
       
       Number of units                                          in Crores 
     Nominal Value As at As at As at As at 
      per unit March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017  

At fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL):     

Investments in Mutual Funds  - Unquoted     

   Reliance Regular Savings Fund - Debt Plan - Direct 

 Growth Plan    10   -    2,82,72,744   -  66.42

    Kotak Low Duration Fund - Direct - Growth   10   1,49,089   78,901   32.66  16.02

    ICICI Prudential Savings Fund - Direct Plan - Growth 10   1,177   3,47,336   31.82  8.75

    Birla Sunlife Floating Rate Fund - Long term - Direct Growth 10   740,774   -   15.95  -

    IDFC Ultra Short Term Fund - Direct - Growth   10   26,28,869   -   6.52  -

    ICICI Prudential Income Opportunity Fund - Direct  10   46,11,451   -   11.42  -

 Plan - Growth    

    Birla Sunlife Savings Fund - Direct Growth   10   10,23,860   -   35.23  -

    Birla Sunlife Short Term Fund - Direct Growth  10   8,67,942   -   18.69  -

    Birla Sunlife Cash Plus - Direct Growth  10   2,27,514   -   6.35  -

    ICICI Prudential Money Market Fund - Direct Growth 10   1,22,813   -   2.95  -

    L&T Liquid Fund Direct Plan - Growth  10   14,048   -   3.35  -

    Kotak Floater Short Term - Direct - Growth   10   11,195   -   3.19  -

    HDFC FMP 92D Fund - Direct - Growth   10   2,19,70,314   -   22.13  -

    UTI  Treasury Advantage Fund - Institutional Option 10   83,216   -   20.08  -

 - Direct - Growth   

    Birla Sunlife Floating Rate Fund Short Term - Direct Growth 10   -    11,32,335   -   24.56

    Franklin India Low Duration Fund - Direct - Growth 10   -    1,48,47,574   -   27.76

    Franklin India Short Term Income Plan - Weekly Dividend 10   10,320   10,320   3.95  3.62

    Franklin India Ultra Short Term Bond Fund  10   -    45,74,710   -  10.22

    Franklin India Ultra Short Term Bond Fund - Direct - Growth 10   40,73,155   1,13,29,882   9.83  25.30

    HDFC Cash Management Fund - Savings Plan - Direct 10   -    72,497   -  24.62

    HDFC Liquid Fund - Direct - Growth   10   -    31,217   -  10.02

    ICICI Prudential Corporate Bond Fund - Direct Plan - Growth 10   -    1,46,04,133   -  38.43

    Kotak Income Opportunity Fund - Direct Plan   10   -    1,71,32,765   -  31.98

    Reliance Corporate Bond Fund - Direct - Growth   10   -    2,71,45,000   -  36.56

    Reliance Money Manager Fund - Direct - Growth 10   -    77,918   -  17.74

    UTI Money Market Fund - Institutional - Direct - Growth 10   17,817   1,38,508   3.47  25.27

Aggregate amount of Unquoted Investments      227.59  367.27

Aggregate amount of Repurchase price of Unquoted
Investments        227.59   367.27 
Refer note 37 for determination of fair value.     
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Note 9b. Financial assets-Trade receivables

(Unsecured)     

     

        Non Current   Current  

       As at As at As at As at
       March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Considered good #      - - 598.01  509.45

Doubtful      4.29  7.52  -   -

        4.29  7.52  598.01  509.45

Provision for doubtful receivables     (4.29)  (7.52)  -  -

Total trade receivables     -     -     598.01  509.45

# Includes debts due from private limited companies in which directors of the 

Company are interested     

Berger Jenson & Nicholson (Nepal) Private Limited  - - 7.55 2.74

Wazir Estates Private Limited    - - - 0.02

Kay Dee Farms Private Limited *    - - - 0.00

Malibu Estate Private Limited *     - - - 0.00

Berger Becker Coatings Private Limited   - - 1.52 0.20

Saboo Coatings Private Ltd.    - - 1.13 -

Berger Nippon Paint Automotive Coatings Private Ltd.(Formerly BNB Coatings - - 5.40 1.89

India Private Limited/BNB Coatings India Limited )

* Refer note 42     

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and generally has credit period from 30 to 90 days     
For terms and conditions relating to related party receivables, refer Note 35.
  

Note 9c. Financial assets- Cash and Cash Equivalents  

           in Crores

        As at  As at
        March 31, 2018  March 31, 2017

Balances with banks:  

– On current accounts       6.82    16.39

– Deposits with original maturity of less than three months #    46.44    0.12

Cheques/drafts on hand      10.30    13.79

Cash on hand       0.62    0.58

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents      64.18    30.88



# In accordance with the Scheme of Amalgamation referred in Note 36 , the authorized share capital of BJN India has merged into and combined with the 
Authorised Share capital of the Company. 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

in Crores

in Crores

  

Note 9d. Other bank blances  

           in Crores

        As at  As at
        March 31, 2018  March 31, 2017

– Balance with banks in Unpaid Dividend Account      5.54    4.84
– Deposits with original maturity of not less than three months but less than twelve months # 50.85    0.02

Total Other bank balances other than 9c above     56.39    4.86

# Deposits at Banks earn interest between 7.50% to 7.55% and are made for periods between 61 and 92 days 

                 in Crores

        As at  As at
        March 31, 2018  March 31, 2017

Balances with banks:  
– On current accounts        6.82   16.39
– Deposits with original maturity of less than three months    46.44   0.12
Cheques/drafts on hand      10.30   13.79
Cash on hand       0.62   0.58
         64.18   30.88
Less- Bank Overdraft (Refer Note 16a)     (3.02)   (5.19)
Total       61.16   25.69

   
           
 
        As at  As at
        March 31, 2018  March 31, 2017

Authorised Share Capital    

120,00,00,000 Equity Shares of     1 each (March 31, 2017: 110,00,00,000

Equity Shares of    1 each) #     120.00    110.00   

    

Issued Share Capital    

97,11,22,908 Equity Shares of    1 each fully paid up (March 31, 2017: 97,10,78,127

Equity Shares of     1 each fully paid up)     97.11    97.11   

    

Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital    

97,10,31,428 Equity Shares of     1 each fully paid up (March 31, 2017: 97,09,86,647

Equity Shares of    1 each fully paid up)     97.10    97.10   

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following:

Note - 10. Equity



124

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

a) The reconciliation of share capital is given below:    
    
        As at March 31, 2018    As at March 31, 2017  
      No. of Shares   in Crores  No. of Shares   in Crores

At the beginning of the year     97,09,86,647  97.10   69,34,77,912   69.35
Add: Shares issued on exercise of Employee Stock Options   44,781  0.00   1,17,570   0.01
(Refer Note 32)*      
Add: Bonus Shares issued and allotted during the year

  (Refer Note (f) below)      -  -     27,73,91,165   27.74
At the end of the year      97,10,31,428  97.10   97,09,86,647   97.10

*Refer note 42
b) Terms/Rights attached to class of shares    
The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of    1 each. Holder of each equity share is entitled to one vote per share. The Company     

  declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuig 
  Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive 
  remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by 
  the shareholders.

c) Equity shares held by the holding company and/or the subsidiaries/associates of holding company   

         As at   As at  
        March 31, 2018   March 31, 2017  

U K Paints (India) Private Limited (Holding Company)    48,65,45,399    48,65,45,399  
Jenson & Nicholson (Asia) Limited, UK     14,06,56,782    14,06,56,782  
Citland Commercial Credits Limited      3,09,15,659    3,09,15,659  
Wang Investment Finance Pvt. Ltd.      2,98,10,580   2,98,10,580  
Bigg Investment & Finance Pvt. Ltd.      79,52,420    79,52,420  
    
d) Details of Shareholders holding more than 5 percent of Equity Shares in the Company   

                                As at   As at 
        March 31, 2018   March 31, 2017  
       No. of Shares % holding No. of Shares % holding

U K Paints (India) Private Limited (Holding Company)   48,65,45,399 50.11%  48,65,45,399  50.11%
Jenson & Nicholson (Asia) Limited, UK    14,06,56,782 14.49%   14,06,56,782  14.49%
Nalanda India Fund Limited       4,67,19,295 4.81%  5,07,49,406 5.23%  
As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/members and other declarations received from shareholders regarding beneficial interest,   

  the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownership of shares as declared under the relevant provisions of the Companies Act,2013  

  e) Shares reserved for issue under Employee Stock Options:    

For details of shares reserved for issue under the Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOP) of the Company, refer Note 32.    
f) Fully paid up equity shares allotted by way of bonus shares    
 27,73,91,165 bonus shares were issued and allotted during the previous year by the Company to eligible members holding ordinary shares of    1 each (ratio   

   2:5) by capitalizing    27.74 Crores out of the sum standing to the credit of Company’s Securities Premium Account.     
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Note - 11. Other equity  
          
         As at As at
         March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Reserves & Surplus  
  Securities Premium Account (Refer Note 32)      112.34  111.31
  Retained earnings        1,641.30  1,412.82
  General Reserve        290.61  290.61
Other reserves  
  Share based payment reserve       2.20  0.87
  Capital reserve        0.02  0.02
  Capital redemption reserve       0.04  0.04
  
Total other equity        2,046.51  1,815.67

Notes:
Securities Premium Account- Premium received on equity shares issued including those under Employee Stock Option Plan are recognised in the securities   
premium account net of utilization for bonus shares issued etc.

Retained Earnings - Retained earnings includes surplus in the Statement of Profit and Loss, Ind-AS related adjustments as on the date of transition, remeasu-
ment gains/ losses on defined benefit plans and Revaluation Reserve aggregating to    Nil  (March 31, 2017:   0.83 crores ) that had arisen from revaluation of 
Leasehold Land, Freehold Land and Freehold Buildings of the Company in 1989, 1985 and 1993 done by approved valuers. The aforementioned revaluation  
reserve is not a free reserve as per the Companies Act, 2013 and hence is not available for distribution as dividend.

General Reserve - Under the erstwhile Indian Companies Act 1956, a general reserve was created through an annual transfer of net income at a specified    
percentage in accordance with applicable regulations, to ensure that if a dividend distribution in a given year is more than 10% of the paid capital of the 
Compa ny for that year, the total dividend distribution is less than the total distributable results for that year. Consequent to introduction of Companies Act    
2013, the requirement to mandatorily transfer a specified percentage of the net profit to general reserve has been withdrawn. 

Share based payment reserve - The Company has two Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOP) under which options to subscribe for the Company’s shares have   
 been granted to specific employees. 
The Share based payment reserve is used to recognise the value of equity-settled share-based payments to employees as part of their remuneration. The year
end balance is net off options exercised by the concerned employees Refer to Note 32 for further details of these plans.
  
Capital redemption reserve - Represents amount equal to the face value of equity shares transferred at the time of buy-back of shares
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Note 12. Other financial liabilities

       Non-Current                                Current    

      As at   As at  As at    As at
                     March 31, 2018  March 31, 2017     March 31, 2018    March 31, 2017

(a) Financial liabilities at fair value through Profit & Loss      

 -Foreign exchange forward contracts     - -  -     4.11  

(b) Other financial liabilities at amortized cost       

 Interest accrued but not due on borrowings   -   -  -     0.11  

 Unpaid Dividends (to be credited to Investor Education and

 Protection Fund as and when due)    -  -  5.54   4.84  

   Deposits     3.54  2.86  37.84   37.28

 Capital creditors     -  -  33.41   50.06

 Accrued employee liabilities     -  -  30.46   28.77 

     Other payables     -  -  4.68   11.61

(c) Financial guarantee contracts [refer note 34 (iii)]   - -  2.02   2.94

Total other financial liabilities      3.54  2.86  113.95   139.72

Note 13. Provisions      

                                                Non-Current                                  Current  

     As at               As at                    As at                         As at
     March 31, 2018    March 31, 2017     March 31, 2018     March 31, 2017

Provision for employee benefits       
- Provision for gratuity (Refer Note 31)     -  -    2.12   2.08 
- Provision for leave encashment     -  -    13.86   14.22  
Others              
-Provision for decommissioning (Refer Note (a) below)    2.92  2.71   -     -  
     2.92  2.71   15.98   16.30
(a) Provision for decommissioning        
       
At the beginning of the year     2.71   2.51 
Discount unwinding for the year      0.21   0.20   
At the end of the year     2.92   2.71   

Provision for decommissioning has been recognised towards decommissioning/dismantling obligations associated with the Company's

factories constructed on leasehold lands.       
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Note 14a. Deferred tax assets & liabilities (net)       

    As at  As at                      
Nature  - (liability) / asset   March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Deferred tax liabilities       

Arising out of temporary differences in depreciable assets   63.05   54.91 (8.14)  (10.86) 

Others     -      9.59  9.59   (5.51)

Total (A)    63.05   64.50 1.45  (16.37) 

Deferred tax assets       

Expenses allowable on payment / actual basis for tax purposes  5.53    3.75  (1.78)   (2.69)

Financial Assets at fair value through profit and loss  (1.54)   (1.03) 0.51  0.91 

Decommissioning liability   0.21   0.56 0.35  (0.11)

Others through other comprehensive income   0.25    0.87  0.62   (0.64 )

Others      -  0.26  0.26   (0.14)

Total (B)   4.45   4.41 (0.04)  (2.67) 

Net deferred tax (liabilities)/assets (B-A)    (58.60)  (60.09) (1.49)  13.70

Reconciliation of deferred tax liabilities(net)         As at  As at

             March 31, 2018   March 31, 2017 

Opening balance          (60.09)     (46.39)  

Tax income/(expense) during the period recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss    2.11   (14.34)  

Tax income/(expense) during the period recognised in OCI       (0.62)   0.64   

Closing balance        (58.60)   (60.09)  

During the year ended  March 31, 2018 and  March 31, 2017, the Company has paid dividend to its shareholders. This has resulted in payment of Dividend 
Distribution Tax (DDT) to the taxation authorities. The Company believes that DDT represents additional payment to taxation authority on behalf of the 
shareholders. 

Note 14: Income Taxes

Statement of Profit & Loss
and other comprehensive income
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14(b) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate for  March 31, 2018 and  March 31, 2017:  

Income tax on the Company's taxable profit differs from the theoretical amount that would have arisen had the enacted rate of corporate tax

in India (34.608%)  being applied to such taxable profits as explained below :   

        

      Year Ended  Year Ended
      March 31, 2018  March 31, 2017 

Accounting Profit before income tax      661.81    663.34 

Profit before income tax multiplied by standard rate of corporate tax in India of    229.04    230.39 

34.608% (March 31, 2017: 34.608%)      

Effects of:  

Permanent differences affecting income tax expense:  

Additional deduction allowed in respect of R&D activities carried out by the company   (2.22)   (4.61)

Difference in tax on exceptional item (sale of business) (refer Note 27)    -      (10.00)

Allowance for capital expenditure u/s 32AC      -      (8.71)

Disallowance of exceptional item (impairment) (refer Note 27)      -      9.69 

Utilisation of unrecognised tax losses of BJN India on amalgamation (Refer note 36)   (0.80)    -   

Other miscellaneous disallowances      4.57   1.85 

Net effective income tax      230.59    218.61 

  

Tax expense  reported in the Statement of Profit and Loss  

Current tax       232.08    204.91

Deferred tax      ( 2.11)    14.34

Income tax expense/(credit) recognised in Other Comprehensive Income    0.62    (0.64)

       230.59    218.61

  Note 14(c) . Current tax liabilities (net)   

     Year Ended  Year Ended 
     March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Provision for income tax [net of advance tax of    117.42 crores 
( March 31, 2017    Nil )]     3.54   -   
      3.54   -   

in Crores

in Crores
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Note 15. Other liabilities       

     Non-Current   Current 

    As at As at As at As at
    March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Others    

   Advance from customers     -  -  18.68  11.04

   Statutory liabilities     -  -  65.21  69.88

   Other liabilities     1.72  0.87  1.11  1.10

Total     1.72  0.87  85.00  82.02

Note 16a. Financial Liabilities- Current borrowings    

    As at  As at
    March 31, 2018  March 31, 2017   

Secured    

   From Banks    

       Bank overdraft     3.02   5.19

       Cash credit    140.25   30.20

       Buyers' Credit (in foreign currency)    -   84.29

Total   143.27   119.68

Bank overdraft are repayable on demand and carry interest rate of MIBOR+ 130 bps (March 31, 2017: MIBOR + 130 bps)    

Cash Credits from banks are secured by way of first charge on book debts and other current assets ranking pari passu between the lenders (first pari passu charge 

over entire current assets). Cash Credit is repayable on demand and carries interest at  7.30 % - 11.75% per annum  (March 31, 2017: 8%-10% per annum).

The buyers' credit is repayable in six months and carries interest at  Nil (March 31, 2017: LIBOR +0.25%) and is secured by hypothecation of stocks and book 

debts, both present and future.    

Amendments to Ind AS 7 Statement of Cash Flows: 

The amendments to Ind AS 7 require entities to provide disclosure of changes in their liabilities arising from financing activities, including both changes arising 

from cash flows and non-cash changes (such as foreign exchange gains or losses). The Company has provided the information for both the current and the 

comparative period as under

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities    

          Particulars April 1, 2017 Cash flows Exchange difference March 31, 2018

Current Borrowings     

       Bank overdraft   5.19   (2.17)  -     3.02 

       Cash credit  30.20   110.05   -     140.25 

       Buyers' Credit  84.29   (84.96)  0.67   - 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018
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Note 16b. Financial Liabilities- Trade Payables  

      As at  As at
      March 31, 2018  March 31, 2017

Acceptances      137.08   111.93

Other than acceptances  

- Total outstanding dues of Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises (See Note below)    17.84   11.25

- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises

[includes    45.94 Crores (March 31, 2017:    37.70 Crores)] payable to related parties  777.65   627.14

Total       932.57   750.32

  

  `      

      As at   As at       
      March 31, 2018  March 31, 2017

Disclosure under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 are
provided as under to the extent the Company has received intimation from the suppliers
regarding their status under the Act.
Principal amount remaining unpaid at the end of the year     16.33   10.17

Interest due thereon remaining unpaid at the end of the year     1.51   1.08

       17.84   11.25

Delayed payment of Principal amount paid beyond appointed date during the entire financial year   27.00   16.48

Interest actually paid under Section 16 of the Act during the entire accounting year    -  -

Amount of Interest due and payable for the period of delay in making the payment (which have  0.33  -

been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding interest specified 

under this Act.        

Amount of Interest due and payable for the period (where principal has been paid but interest

under the MSMED Act not paid)      0.06   0.17

Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the year     0.43   0.18

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in succeeding years, until such

date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the Micro and Small Enterprises for the

purpose of disallowances as deductible expenditure under Section 23 of this Act    1.51   1.08

Terms and conditions of the above trade payables:  

Trade payables are non interest bearing and are normally settled on 45-60 days terms  

For terms and conditions of transactions with related parties, refer Note 35
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Note 17a. Financial Assets  

  

      As at  As at
      March 31, 2018  March 31, 2017

Financial Assets - Non Current  

At Fair Value through profit and loss  

Investments *      0.00   0.00 

At Amortised Cost  

(a) Loans           19.99   13.71

(b) Other financial assets      2.53   0.51

       22.52   14.22

At Deemed Cost/Subsequent additions at cost    

Investments       303.18   210.35

Total Non current financial assets (a)      325.70   224.57

Financial assets - current  

At fair value through profit and loss  

(a) Investments      227.59   367.27

At Amortised cost  

(a) Trade receivables      598.01   509.45

(b) Cash and cash equivalents      64.18   30.88

(c) Bank balances other than (c) above      56.39   4.86

(d)  Loans     1.96  5.40

 (e) Other financial assets      2.89   2.02

Total Current financial assets (b)      951.02   919.88

Total financial assets (a + b)      1,276.72   1,144.45

  

Note 17b. Financial liabilities  

      As at  As at
      March 31, 2018  March 31, 2017

Financial liabilities - non current  

At Amortised Cost  

(a) Other Financial Liabilities   

-Deposits       3.54   2.86 

Total Non Current Financial Liabilities (a)     3.54   2.86 
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      As at  As at
      March 31, 2018  March 31, 2017

Financial Liabilities - Current  

At fair value through profit and loss  

Other Financial liabilities  

    Foreign exchange forward contracts      -    4.11 

    Financial guarantee contracts      2.02   2.94 

At Amortised Cost  

(a) Borrowings      143.27   119.68 

(b) Trade Payables      932.57   750.32 

(c) Other Financial liabilities  

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings      -      0.11 

Unpaid Dividends (to be credited to Investor Education and Protection Fund as and when due)   5.54   4.84 

Others  

   Deposits      37.84   37.28 

   Capital creditors      33.41   50.06 

   Accrued employee liabilities      30.46   28.77 

   Other payables      4.68   11.61 

Total Current Financial Liabilities (b)      1,189.79   1,009.72 

Total Financial Liabilities (a + b)      1,193.33   1,012.58 

* Refer Note 42   

Note 18. Distribution made and proposed    

      As at  As at
      March 31, 2018  March 31, 2017

Dividends on equity shares declared and paid:    

Final dividend for  March 31, 2017-    1.75 per share (March 31, 2016  -    1.75 per share)   169.93    97.09   

Dividend Distribution Tax on final dividend      34.59   19.76   

      204.52    116.85   

Proposed dividends on equity shares:    

Final dividend for March 31, 2018 -    1.80 per share (March 31, 2017 -   1.75  per share)   174.78    169.93   

Dividend Distribution Tax on proposed dividend     35.93   34.59   

      210.71   204.52   

As at March 31, 2018, proposed dividend on equity shares are subject to approval in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. Pending such approval proposed 
dividend and dividend distribution tax thereon have not been recognised in these financial statements 
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 Note 19. Revenue from Operations    

   

      March 31, 2018  March 31, 2017 

Sale of products (including excise duty) [refer note below]     4,792.67   4,708.73

Other operating revenue    

    Scrap sales      8.34   8.19

    Others      38.36   6.60

Total       4,839.37   4,723.52

Revenue from operations for period up to June 30, 2017 includes excise duty. From July 1,2017 onwards excise duty and most indirect taxes in India have been 
replaced by Goods and Service Tax (GST). The Company collects GST from its customers on behalf of the Government and hence, GST is not included in 
Revenue from operations.Sale of products includes excise duty collected from customers of     115.58 crores (March 31, 2017:    498.20 crores). Sale of products 
net of excise duty is     4,677.09 crores (March 31, 2017    4,210.53 crores). In view of the aforesaid change in indirect taxes, Revenue from operations for year 

ended March 31, 2018 is not comparable with the amount reported for the year ended March 31, 2017

    

Note 20. Other income    

    

      March 31, 2018  March 31, 2017 

Interest Income from financial assets    

   Deposits with banks      0.87    2.40 

Insurance claim received      -      0.17 

Dividend income       6.47    - 

Other non operating income    

   Net gain on sale of mutual fund investments     18.11    26.99 

   Fair value gain on mutual fund investments     4.41    2.97 

   Foreign Exchange Gain (net)      -      1.72 

   Others      16.67    14.06 

Total       46.53    48.31 



in Crores

in Crores
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Note 21. Cost of materials consumed    

 

      March 31, 2018  March 31, 2017 

Raw Materials Consumed    

Opening Stocks ( also refer note 36)      231.36   173.78

Purchases      2,155.48   1,878.07

Closing stock      (278.79)   (231.36) 

       2,108.05   1,820.49 

Packing Material Consumed    

Opening Stocks (also refer note 36)      15.64   11.42

Purchases      366.23   334.29

Closing stock      (19.49)   (15.64)

       362.38   330.07

Cost of materials consumed*      2,470.43   2,150.56

*Also refer note 40 for expenses on research and development     

    

Note 22. (Increase)/decrease in inventories of finished goods, work-in-process and traded goods     

    

      March 31, 2018  March 31, 2017 

Opening Stock (also refer note 36)    

    Work-in-process      56.34   47.13 

    Finished goods      517.71   398.07

   Traded goods      63.58   59.33

       637.63   504.53

Closing Stock    

    Work-in-process      62.66   56.34 

    Finished goods      496.32   517.71 

    Traded goods      71.71   63.58

       630.69   637.63

Others      -    (3.00) 

(Increase)/decrease in Excise Duty on Stock of Finished Goods      (94.60)*   15.84

(Increase)/decrease in inventories of finished goods, work-in-process and traded goods   (87.66)   (120.26) 

* Includes reversal of excise duty on Inventory as at March 31, 2017. Due to implementation of GST in the current year, there is no excise duty element on 
the inventory as at March 31, 2018



in Crores

in Crores

in Crores

in Crores

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

Note 23. Employee benefits expense  

  

      March 31, 2018  March 31, 2017

Salaries and wages      228.73   209.10

Contribution to provident and other funds (Refer Note 31)     16.30   13.38

Employee stock option cost (Refer Note 32)      2.36   1.60

Staff welfare expenses      22.45   20.43

Total       269.84   244.51

Also refer note no 40 for expenses on research and development   

  

Note 24. Finance Costs  

  

      March 31, 2018  March 31, 2017

Interests       15.99   7.56 

Unwinding of discount on provisions (Refer Note 13)     0.21   0.20 

Total       16.20   7.76 

Note 25. Depreciation and amortization expense  

      March 31, 2018  March 31, 2017

Depreciation of tangible assets       108.65    93.66 

Amortization of intangible assets      3.27    4.34 

Total       111.92    98.00 

Note 26. Other expenses  

      March 31, 2018  March 31, 2017

Freight, octroi and delivery      313.36    299.47 

Power and fuel      40.00    36.86 

Consumption of stores      8.23    7.28 

Repairs to plant and machinery      15.02    14.95 

Repairs to building      0.68    2.54 

Repairs to others      1.80    2.20 

Rent (Refer Note 33)      50.70    46.45 

Rates and Taxes      7.01    9.33 

Travelling      47.88    44.64 

Advertisement and Sales Promotion Expenses     222.23    216.40 
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      March 31, 2018  March 31, 2017

Insurance      1.78    2.29 

Processing Charges      44.12    43.77 

Directors sitting fees      0.02   0.01 

Foreign Exchange Loss (net)      1.43   -   

Commission to Non-Executive Directors      0.45   0.43 

Loss on sale/discard  of Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets    -    0.34 

Audit Fees (Refer Note 26.1)      0.61   0.59 

CSR expenditure (Refer Note 26.2)       10.43   8.18 

Miscellaneous Expenses (Refer Note 40 ) #      156.46   140.87 

Total       922.21   876.60 

# Bad debts written off     8.38  crores ( March 31, 2017     7.88 crores)

  

Note 26.1  Auditor's Remuneration  

      March 31, 2018  March 31, 2017

As Auditor:  

      Audit fees      0.47    0.33 

      Tax audit fee      0.04    0.05 

Miscellaneous certificates and other matters      0.08    0.18 

Reimbursement of expenses      0.02    0.03 

Total       0.61    0.59 

Note 26.2 Details of CSR expenditure:  

      March 31, 2018  March 31, 2017

a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year    10.34    8.45 

(b) Amount spent during the year:     

(i) Construction/Acquistion of an asset      -      -   

(ii) Purposes other than (i) above      10.43    8.18 

Total       10.43    8.18 

Corporate Social Responsibility  expensed    10.43  Crores (2016-17:    8.18 Crores) includes Company’s own programme for promoting employment 
enhancing vocational skill named 'iTrain'.  

  

  

in Crores

in Crores
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Note 27. Exceptional Items  

  

      March 31, 2018  March 31, 2017

Profit on transfer of Company's paint division relating to 4 wheeler passenger cars and SUVs,

3 wheelers and related ancillaries      -    86.67 

Impairment in subsidiary       -   (28.00) 

Total       -    58.67 

  

1.  During the previous year, the Company's paint division ("the Business") relating to 4 wheeler passenger cars and SUVs, 3 Wheelers and related ancillaries 

was transferred to Berger Nippon Paint Automotive Coatings Private Limited or BNPAC (Formerly known as BNB Coatings India Private Limited), an 

existing joint venture between Berger Paints India Limited and Nippon Paints Automotive Coatings Co. Ltd., Japan after the close of business hours of 30th 

June, 2016 on a slump sale basis at a consideration of   90 crores, paid in cash. By virtue of being a joint venture where Berger Paints India Limited holds 

49% of the paid up share capital, BNPAC may be deemed to be a related party and the transaction was done at an Arm's length basis. The exceptional item 

for the year ended March 31, 2017 represents the profit on the transfer of the Business, being     86.67 crores, which is subject to tax.

2.  The Company had provided for impairment in the carrying value of  its investment in its wholly owned subsidiary, Berger Paints Cyprus Limied (BPCL ) on 

account of losses sustained by the ultimate wholly owned subsidiary Berger Paints Overseas Limited (BPOL ) due to downturn in Russian economy which 

were reflected in the consolidated financial position of the Company. The Company had made an assessment of the fair value of the investments in Berger 

Paints Overseas Limited taking into account past business performance, prevailing business conditions and revised expectations about future performance. 

Based on the above factors and as matter of prudence provision of    28 crores towards impairment of such investment had been recognised in the accounts. 

The recoverable amount of the investment was determined at    37.12 crores, which was based on its value in use. This value in use calculation was carried 

out taking into account the discount rate of 14% per annum.The Company is in the process of reorgansing its business operation in that country and based on 

such plan no further impairment has been considered necessary.

Note 28. Earnings Per Share (EPS)  

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity 

shares outstanding during the year.  

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares 

outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares into 

equity shares.   

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:  

  

      March 31, 2018  March 31, 2017

  
Net Profit for calculation of Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share (  in crores) (I)              431.84    444.09 

Weighted average number of shares (II)  

     - Basic      97,10,00,633    97,09,18,392 

     - Diluted (refer note below)      97,12,47,574    97,10,59,627 



Note 29. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions       

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts 

of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions 

and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets & liabilities affected in future periods.   

Judgements, Estimates and Assumptions       

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation, uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a materi-

al adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and 

estimates on parameters available when the Financial Statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, 

may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when 

they occur. In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, estimates and assumptions, which 

have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the Financial Statements.     

Defined Employer  Benefit plans        

The cost and the present value of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment leave encashment benefit are determined using actuarial 

valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in future. These include the determination of 

appropriate discount rate, estimating future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a 

defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. For further details refer Note 31. 

      

Fair value measurement of financial instruments and guarantees       

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the Balance Sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their 

fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the DCF model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but 

where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit 

risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments. See Note 37 for further disclosures. 

      

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment       

Property, plant and equipment represent a significant proportion of the asset base of the Company. The charge in respect of periodic depreciation is derived after 
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      March 31, 2018  March 31, 2017

Earning per equity share [nominal value of     1 per share] [(I)/(II)]  

     - Basic      4.45    4.57 

     - Diluted      4.45    4.57 

Effect of dilution:  

Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating Basic Earnings Per Share    97,10,00,633    97,09,18,392

Dilution - Stock options granted under ESOP      2,46,941    1,41,235

Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating diluted EPS    97,12,47,574    97,10,59,627

  



after determining an estimate of an asset’s expected useful life and the expected residual value at the end of its life. The useful lives and residual values of 

company's assets are determined by management at the time the asset is acquired and reviewed periodically, including at each financial year end. The lives are 

based on historical experience with similar assets as well as anticipation of future events, which may impact their life, such as changes in technology.    

Decommissioning Liability       

Decommissioning Liability has been recognised for items of property plant and equipment built or installed on specified leasehold land the terms of which said 

leases include decommissioning of such assets on expiry of the lease prior to handing over to the lessor. The decommissioning costs as at the end of the lease 

period have been estimated based on current costs by the Company's own technical experts and have been escalated to the end of the leasehold period using 

suitable inflation factors. The said escalated cost as at the end of the lease period is now discounted to the present value of such liability by applying Company's 

weighted average cost of capital.

Impairment of  Investment 

Based on indication that the carrying value of investment in a stepdown subsidiary may be lower than the fair value, an impairment assessment has been carried 

out. Market related information and estimates are used to determine the recoverable value of the investment. Key assumptions on which management has based 

its determination of recoverable amount include estimated long term growth rates, weighted average cost of capital and estimated operating margins. Cash flow 

projections take into account past expereince and represent management's best estimate about future developements.

     

Note 30. Information on joint ventures     

     

Description of Company's interest in the joint venture Company     

     As at  As at
     March 31, 2018  March 31, 2017
Name of the entity   Proportion of  Country of  Proportion of  Country of 
    Interest Incorporation Interest  Incorporation

Berger Becker Coatings Private Limited   48.98% India 48.98% India

Berger Nippon Paint Automotive Coatings Private Ltd.  49.00% India 49.00% India

( Formerly BNB Coatings India Private Limited/BNB

Coatings India Limited )   
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Note 31. Gratuity and other post-employment benefit plans   

(I) Defined benefit plans    

(a) Gratuity    

(i)  The following table summarizes the components of net defined benefit expense towards gratuity recognised in the Statement of Profit and loss and OCI 

and the funded status and amounts recognised in the Balance Sheet.    

        in Crores 

                                                 Particulars     March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017  

Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligation    

Present value of defined benefit obligation as at year beginning     30.14   27.21   

Current Service Cost      2.28   1.65   

Interest Cost      2.10   1.89   

Past Service cost (Plan amendments)      1.65   -     
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  Particulars     March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Remeasurements (gains)/losses    

-Actuarial (gains)/losses arising from changes in financial assumptions    (1.09)  1.85   

-Actuarial (gains)/losses arising from changes in experience     (0.78)  0.01   

Benefits Paid      (2.77)  (2.47)  

Present value of defined benefit obligation as at year end     31.53   30.14   

    

Changes in fair value of plan assets    

Fair Value of Plan Assets as at year beginning     28.06   25.61   

Interest Income      2.03   2.04   

Remeasurements (gains)/losses    

-Return on plan assets, (excluding amount included in net Interest expense)    (0.09)  (0.22)  

Employer's Contribution      2.18   3.11   

Benefits Paid      (2.77)  (2.48)  

Fair Value of Plan Assets as at year end      29.41   28.06   

    

Amounts Recognised in the Balance Sheet    

Present value of defined benefit obligation at the year end     31.53   30.14   

Fair Value of the Plan Assets at the year end      29.41   28.06   

(Liability)/Asset Recognised in the Balance Sheet     (2.12)  (2.08)  

    

 

Particulars     2017 - 2018 2016 - 2017  

Expense recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss:    

Cost of current service and plan ammendments     3.93   1.65  

Net Interest Cost/(Income)      0.07   (0.15)  

Net Cost Recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss     4.00   1.50  

    

Expense recognised in the Other Comprehensive Income:    

Remeasurements (gains)/losses      (1.78)  2.08  

Net Cost Recognised in the Other Comprehensive Income     (1.78)  2.08  
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Significant Actuarial Assumptions     March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017  
Discount Rate      7.65% 7.30%  
Employee turnover     Age wise 0.10%-0.50%  Age wise 0.10%-0.50%  
Mortality Rate    Indian Assured Lives  Indian Assured Lives
     (Mortality 2006-08 modified) Ult (Mortality 2006-08 modified) Ult 

The estimates of future salary increases considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as 

supply and demand in the employment market    

Assumptions regarding future mortality experience are set in accordance with the published statistics by the Life Insurance Corporation of India    

The discount rate is based on the government securities yield    

The Company assesses these assumptions with its projected long-term plans of growth and prevalent industry standards.    

(iii)   Major category of Plan Assets of the fair value of the total plan assets are as follows:-    

      March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 

Assets under scheme of insurance      100% 100%  

    

(iv)   A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption as at March 31, 2018 is as shown below    

    

    March 31, 2018  March 31, 2017 
 Assumptions   Discount rate  Discount rate 

 Sensitivity Level   1% increase 1% decrease 1% increase 1% decrease

Impact on defined benefit obligation    (2.72)    3.18   (2.59)    3.05 

    

     March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 
Assumptions    Future Salary increase     Future Salary increase 
Sensitivity Level  1% increase                            1% decrease  1% increase 1% decrease 

Impact on defined benefit obligation  3.17      (2.77)      2.56   (2.38)  

Impact on defined benefit obligation    

Sensitivity for significant actuarial assumptions is computed by varying one actuarial assumption used for the valuation of the defined benefit obligation by 

one percentage, keeping all other actuarial assumptions constant. The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not 

change compared to the prior period.    

(v)   Risk Exposure    

Since the employees gratuity fund is a defined benefit plan the liability to be provided will be subject to interest rate risk since the future valuation of benefit 

depends upon the yield of government bonds for matching maturities.    

(vi)   Defined Benefit Liability and Employer Contributions    

Since the employees gratuity fund is a defined benefit plan maintained by Life Insurance Corporation of India the return is generated from a pool of assets 

invested by them and any deficit in the liability and return on plan assets  is funded by the Company on a yearly basis.     

(vii) In 2018-19, the Company expects to contribute    2.12 crores (March 31, 2017:    2.08 crores) to gratuity    

(ii) The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligations for the Company's plans are shown below
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(viii)   Maturity profile of the defined benefit obligation    

      March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017  

Weighted Average duration of the defined benefit obligation    12 Years 12 Years  

    

   Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting period)     0.55   0.69  

   Between 2 and 5 years      10.99   9.25  

   Between 5 and 10 years      17.11   13.23   

(b)   Provident Fund    

Provident Fund for certain eligible employees is administered by the Company through "Berger Paints Provident Fund (Covered)" as per the provisions of the 

Employees' Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952. The Rules for such a trust provide that in a provident fund set up by the employer,  any 

shortfall in the rate of interest on member contributions as compared to the relevant rate of interest declared by the Goverment of India for this purpose will 

have   to be met by the employer. Such  provident fund would in effect be a defined benefit plan in accordance with the requirement of Ind AS 19 - Employee 

Benefits. 

Based on valuation of related defined benefit obligation and plan assets at the year end carried out by an independent actuary no provision has been 

considered necessary in this regard in these financial statements Key actuarial assumptions are as follows    

                                          2017-18  2016-17 

Discount rate     7.65% 7.30% 

Expected rate of return on Plan Assets     8.55% 8.65% 

    

(c)   Other Defined Benefit Plans    

The amounts for "Other Defined Benefit Plans" are below the rounding off norm adopted by the Company (refer Note 43 ) and hence the disclosures as 

required under Ind AS 19 - "Employee Benefits" have not been given.    

    

(II) Defined contribution plans    

During the year, the Company has recognised the following amounts in the Statement of Profit and Loss for defined contribution plans:    

   `      in Crores 

      2017-18 2016-17 

Provident and Family Pension Fund (applicable for eligible employees whose provident fund accounts  1.80  1.88

are maintained with the Regional Provident Fund Commissioner)   

Superannuation Fund     1.99 1.95
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Note 32. Employee Stock Option Plan    

Berger Paints India Limited Employee Stock Option Scheme, 2010    

The Berger Paints India Limited – Employee Stock Option Plan  [‘the Plan’] was approved at the Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 29th July, 

2010. The objective of the plan is to:                         

1)  Attract, retain and motivate Employees, 

2)  Create and share wealth with the Employees, 

3)  Recognise and reward employee performance with shares and 

4)  Encourage employees to align individual performance with the objective of the Company. The terms and conditions of the Plan is reproduced below:

a)  “Vesting Date” means the date on and from which the Option vests with the Participant and thereby becomes exercisable.

b)  “Exercise Date “means the date on which the Participant exercises his Vested Options and in case of partial Exercise shall mean each date on which  

the Participant exercises part of his Vested Options. 

c)  “Vesting Period” means the period during which the Vesting of the Option granted to the Participant in pursuance of the Plan takes place.  

d)  “Exercise Period” means a period of 3 years from the Vesting Date as defined above of the Plan within which the Vested Options can be exercised in 

pursuance of the Plan.

e)  The Exercise Price of an Option shall be the face value of     2/- per share. However, due to sub-division of Company’s share from F.V of    2/- to    1/- 

w.e.f from 9th January, 2015, the Compensation & Nomination & Remuneration Committee made fair and reasonable adjustments with respect to 

ESOPs  earlier approved and granted by the Compensation & Nomination & Remuneration Committee.

f)  Cashless exercise of the Options are not permitted under the Plan. Participants to pay full Aggregate Exercise Price upon the Exercise of the Vested 

Options.

g)  Subject to Participant’s continued employment as defined in Clause 14 of the Plan the Unvested Options shall vest with the Participant automatically 

in accordance with the following schedule : a) 33% of the total Options granted, rounded up to the nearest whole number, shall vest on the first anniver-

sary of the Grant Date; b) further 33% of the total Options granted, rounded up to the nearest whole number,  shall vest on the second anniversary of 

the Grant Date and c) balance 34% of the total Options granted, rounded up to the whole number such that the total number of Options vested shall 

add up to 100%, shall vest on the third anniversary of the Grant Date.

h)  The Date of grant of options :1st August, 2010.

   

Berger Paints India Limited Employee Stock Option Plan 2016   

The Berger Paints India Limited – Employee Stock Option Plan 2016 [‘the Plan’] was approved at the Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 3rd 

August, 2016. The objective of the plan is to:

1)  Attract, retain and motivate Employees, 

2)  Create and share wealth with the Employees, 

3)  Recognise and reward employee performance with shares and 

4)  Encourage employees to align individual performance with the objective of the Company. The terms and conditions of the Plan is reproduced below:

a)  “Vesting Date” means the date on and from which the Option vests with the Participant and thereby becomes exercisable.

b)  “Exercise Date “means the date on which the Participant exercises his Vested Options and in case of partial Exercise shall mean each date on which  

 the Participant exercises part of his Vested Options. 

c) “Vesting Period” means the period during which the Vesting of the Option granted to the Participant in pursuance of the Plan takes place.  

d)  “Exercise Period” means a period of 3 years from the Vesting Date as defined above of the Plan within which the Vested Options can be exercised in  

 pursuance of the Plan.
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e)  The Exercise Price of an Option shall be the face value of    1/- per share

f)  Cashless exercise of the Options are not permitted under the Plan. Participants to pay full Aggregate Exercise Price upon the Exercise of the Vested  

 Options.

g)  Subject to Participant’s continued employment as defined in Clause 14 of the Plan the Unvested Options shall vest with the Participant automatically  

 in accordance with the following schedule : a) 33% of the total Options granted, rounded up to the nearest whole number, shall vest on the first anni

 ver sary of the Grant Date; b) further 33% of the total Options granted, rounded up to the nearest whole number,  shall vest on the second anniversary

 of  the Grant Date and c) balance 34% of the total Options granted, rounded up to the whole number such that the total number of Options vested shall  

 add  up to 100%, shall vest on the third anniversary of the Grant Date.

h)  The Date of grant of options : 9th November, 2016.   

      As at As at
      March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

a. Number of Stock Options outstanding (ESOP Plan 2010: Grant I)    -  -

 Number of Stock Options outstanding (ESOP Plan 2010: Grant II)    -  -

 Number of Stock Options outstanding (ESOP Plan 2010: Grant III)   1,390 1,390

 Number of Stock Options outstanding (ESOP Plan 2010: Grant IV)   1,172 1,172

 Total Number of Options in force (Additional grant Options    1,025  1,025

 vested in lieu of bonus issues  from ESOP 2010 balances 

 on 21.11.2016)      

 Number of Stock Options outstanding (ESOP Plan 2016: Grant I)   88,022  1,38,270

 Number of Stock Options outstanding (ESOP Plan 2016: Grant II)   1,56,384  - 

      2,47,993 1,41,857

b. Option granted during the year   

 ESOP Plan 2016: Grant II      1,61,184 -

 ESOP Plan 2016: Grant I  : 1,40,811; (34,653 Additional Grant on 21.11.2016 in lieu of bonus  -  1,75,464  

 issue from ESOP 2010 balance shares)       

c Number of Options vested (ESOP Plan 2010: Grant I)     -  -

 Number of Options vested (ESOP Plan 2010: Grant II)     -  -

 Number of Options vested (ESOP Plan 2010: Grant III)     -  -

 Number of Options vested (ESOP Plan 2010: Grant IV)     - 84,280

 Number of Options vested (ESOP Plan 2016: Grant I)    45,397 -

 Number of Options vested (ESOP Plan 2016: Grant II)    - -

 Number of Additional grant Options vested in

 lieu of bonus issues  from ESOP 2010 balances on 21.11.2016    -  34,653

       45,397  1,18,933

d. Number of Options exercised (ESOP Plan 2010: Grant I)     -  -

 Number of Options exercised (ESOP Plan 2010: Grant II)     -  -

 Number of Options exercised (ESOP Plan 2010:  Grant III) (834 options exercised during 2016-17 

 were vested during the year 2015-16)      - 834

 Number of Options exercised (ESOP Plan 2010:  Grant IV)     - 83,108
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      As at As at
      March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

 Number of Options exercised (ESOP Grant III) (834 options exercised during 2016-17 were vested  -    834

 during the year 2015-16)     

 Number of Options exercised (ESOP Grant IV)     -    83,108

 Number of Options exercised (ESOP Plan 2016)     44,781  -

 Number of Additional grant Options exercised in lieu of bonus issues  from ESOP 2010   -     33,628 

e. Number of Shares arising on exercise (ESOP Plan 2010:  Grant I)    -  -

 Number of Shares arising on exercise (ESOP Plan 2010:  Grant II)    -  -

 Number of Shares arising on exercise (ESOP Plan 2010:  Grant III)    - 834

 Number of Shares arising on exercise (ESOP Plan 2010:  Grant IV)   - 83,108

 Number of Shares arising on exercise (ESOP Plan 2016: Grant I)    44,781 -

 Number of Additional shares arising as result on exercise from ESOP 2010 balances on 21.11.2016  -  33,628

      44,781 1,17,570

f. Number of Options lapsed (ESOP Plan 2010: Grant I)     -  -

 Number of Options lapsed (ESOP Plan 2010:  Grant II)     -  -

 Number of Options lapsed (ESOP Plan 2010:  Grant III)     -  -

 Number of Options lapsed (ESOP Plan 2010:  Grant IV)     - 1,172

 Number of Options lapsed (ESOP Plan 2016: Grant I)    5,467  2,541

 Number of Options lapsed (ESOP Plan 2016: Grant II)    4,800  -

      10,267 3,713

g. Variation of terms of Option     None during the None during the
      period  period

    

h. Total Number of Options in force (ESOP Plan 2010: Grant I)    -  -

 Total Number of Options in force (ESOP Plan 2010:  Grant II)   -  -

 Total Number of Options in force (ESOP Plan 2010:  Grant III)   1,390  1,390

 Total Number of Options in force (ESOP Plan 2010: Grant IV)   1,172  1,172

 Total Number of Options in force (Additional grant Options vested in lieu of bonus issues from ESOP 1,025  1,025

 2010 balances on 21.11.2016)      

 Total Number of Options in force (ESOP Plan 2016: Grant I)    88,022  1,38,270

 Total Number of Options in force (ESOP Plan 2016: Grant II)    1,56,384  -

      2,47,993 1,41,857

i. Weighted Average exercise price of the Share Options   

 Outstanding at the beginning of the year    1 1

 Granted during the year     1 1

 Forfeited during the year     - -

 Exercised during the year     1 1

 Expired during the year     1 1

 Number of Options exercised (ESOP Plan 2010:  Grant I)     44,781 -

 Number of Additional grant Options exercised in lieu of bonus issues  from 

 ESOP 2010 balances on 21.11.2016      -  33,628

      44,781 1,17,570
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      As at As at
      March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

 Exercised during the year     1 1

 Expired during the year     1 1

 Outstanding at the end of the year     1 1

 Exercisable at the end of the period     1 1

    

j. Weighted Average share price of options exercised during the year on the date of exercise    1    1

    

k. Weighted Average fair value of the Options granted during the year   

 i.  ESOP Plan  2016 Grant I (Fair value as on 31.03.2018)    NA 236.35

 ii.  ESOP  Plan 2016 Grant II (Fair value as on 31.03.2018)    250.74 NA

 iii.  Additional grant in lieu of bonus issues  from ESOP Plan 2010 balances of Grant III and IV (Fair

 value as on 31.03.2017)     NA 238.99

l. A description of the method and significant assumptions used during the year to estimate the fair value of 

 Options granted, including the following weighted average information:-

 The Black Scholes Option Pricing Model for dividend paying stock has been used to compute the fair 

 value of the Options. The significant assumptions are:

 i. Date of grant  

  a. ESOP Plan 2016     09.11.2016 09.11.2016

  b. Additional grant in lieu of bonus issues from ESOP Plan 2010 balances   21.11.2016 21.11.2016

 ii. Weighted average share price     256.70  242.10 

 iii. Exercise Price       1   1

 iv. Risk Free Interest rate     7.40% 6.69%

 v. Expected Life:

 a. For options vested on 01.08.2015     0.33 years 1.33 years

 b. For options vested on 01.08.2016     1.33 years 2.33 years

 c. For options vested on 09.11.2017     2.61 years from 3 years from 
             the vesting day the vesting day

 d. For options yet to be vested      3 years from the  3 years from the
             vesting day vesting day

 vi.Expected Volatility     20% 26%

 vii.Expected dividend yield     0.67% 0.69%

 viii.Weighted Average fair value as on grant date  

 a. ESOP Plan 2016 (Grant date 09.11.2016)        229.10    229.10

 b. Additional grant in lieu of bonus issues from ESOP Plan 2010 balances (Grant date

    21.11.2016)         218.21    218.21

 c. ESOP Plan 2016 (Grant II)- 09.11.2017         247.75 NA
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      As at As at
      March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

 ix.  The price of the underlying share in the market at the time of option grant: 

 a. ESOP Plan 2010: Grant-III- 31.07.2012        138.70     138.70

 b. ESOP Plan 2010: Grant IV- 31.07.2013        205.45      205.45

 c. ESOP  Plan 2016- 08.11.2016         234.85      234.85

  d. Additional grant on 21.11.2016 in lieu of bonus issues from ESOP Plan 2010 balances-      187.10      187.10

    18.11.2016     

 e. ESOP Plan 2016 (Grant II)- 09.11.2017        253.70 NA

 x.Time to maturity  

 a. For options vested on 01.08.2015 (Grant III)    0.33 years 1.33 years

 b. For options vested on 01.08.2016 (Grant IV)    1.33 years 2.33 years

 c. Additional grants vested on 21.11.2016    0.33 years and 1.33 years and
       1.33 years 2.33 years

 d. ESOP 2016 (Grant I) vested on 08.11.2017    2.61 NA

 e. For options yet to be vested     3 years from the 3 years from the
       vesting day  vesting day

    

 Expected volatility during the expected term of the ESOP is based on historical volatility of the observed market prices of the Company's publicly traded  

 equity shares during a period equivalent to the expected term of the ESOP.   

  The fair values of our ESOP are based on the market value of our stock on the date of grant.   

m. The following table summarizes information about Share Options outstanding as at year end:-   

    As at 
 Range of exercise prices   March 31, 2018
 per option (  ) No. of options outstanding Weighted average remaining   Weighted average exercise price
   contractual life            (   )

  1 1,946 0.33 years 1

  1 1,641 1.33 years 1

  1 88,022 2.61 years 1

  1 1,56,384 Yet to be vested 1

    As at 
 Range of exercise prices   March 31, 2017
 per option (  ) No. of options outstanding Weighted average remaining   Weighted average exercise price
   contractual life              (  )

  1 1,946 1.33 years 1

  1 1,641 2.33 years 1

  1 1,38,270 Yet to be vested 1
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in Crores

in Crores

in Crores

Note 33.Leases    

Operating lease — Company as lessee     

The Company's leasing arrangements for various depots, offices etc are in the nature of operating leases which are cancellable at the option of the Company. 

These leases have a life between 1 year to 20 years ( March 31, 2017 - 1 year to 20 year ) which is renewable by mutual consent of concerned parties. No 

contingent rent is payable by the Company in respect of the above leases. Some of the lease agreements have price escalation clauses. Related lease rentals have 

been disclosed under the head "Rent" in Note 26 of Statement of Profit and Loss. There are no restrictions placed upon the Company by such leases.   

Operating lease — Company as lessor     

The Company has given Color bank (tinting machines) on operating lease to its dealers. The Company enters into 3- 5 years cancellable lease agreements. 

However the corresponding lease rentals may be receivable for a shorter period or may be waived off/refunded on acheivement of certain sales targets by the 

concerned dealers.The minimum aggregate lease payments to be received in future is considered as    Nil. Accordingly the disclosure of the minimum lease 

payments receivable at the Balance sheet date is not made. The amounts received from customers pending to be refunded back are recognised as liabilities and 

are included in "Deposits" under "Other financial liabilities" in Note 12. Also refer note 4.     

34. Commitment and Contingencies    

a.    Commitments

      As at As at
      March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

 a) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital expenditure and  38.55   37.42 

 not provided for (net of advances)       

b.     Contingent Liabilities    

(i) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts:    

      As at As at
      March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

 Income Tax      -     15.83  

 Sales Tax      28.45   27.33  

 Excise Duty, Service Tax, Customs       25.79   27.28  

       54.24   70.44  

The Company has been advised by its lawyers that none of the claims are tenable and is therefore contesting the same and hence has not been provided   for in the 
books. The future cash flows on account of the above cannot be determined unless the judgements/decisions are received from the ultimate  judicial forums. No 
reimbursements are expected to arise to the Company in repect of above cases.

      As at As at
      March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

ii. Outstanding Bank guarantees      9.89  34.24  

iii. Corporate guarantees issued by the Company to certain banks for loans taken by some of its subsidiaries 258.93   253.18

 and amount outstanding as at the year end (Refer note a and b below)     

a) Immovable assets aggregating    236.40 crores ( March 31, 2017:   232.95 crores) have been mortgaged by deposit of title deeds in favour of BNP 

 Paribas  & Standard Chartered towards loan extended to its subsidiary, M/s Lusako Trading Limited a Subsidiary of the Company     

b) The loan is utilised by the said subsidiary for its business pruposes. Also refer note 12 and 35      

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018



149

35(a). Disclosure in respect of Related Parties pursuant to Ind AS 24         

List of Related Parties        

I. Parent and Subsidiary Companies:        

 Name of related parties   Nature of relationship     

 U K Paints (India) Private Limited   Holding Company      

 Berger Jenson & Nicholson (Nepal) Private Limited  Wholly Owned Subsidiary     

 Beepee Coatings Private Limited   Wholly Owned Subsidiary    

 Berger Paints (Cyprus) Limited   Wholly Owned Subsidiary    

 Lusako Trading Limited   Wholly Owned Subsidiary    

 Saboo Coatings Private Limited   Wholly Owned Subsidiary(acquired after close of business     

     hours on 5th June, 2017)     

 Berger Paints Overseas Limited   Wholly Owned Subsidiary of Bergr Paints (Cyprus) Limited  

 Bolix S.A.   Wholly Owned Subsidiary of Lusako Trading Limited   

 BUILD-TRADE BIS sp. z o.o   Wholly Owned  Subsidiary of Bolix S.A.

 Bolix UKRAINA  OOO   Wholly Owned  Subsidiary of Bolix S.A.   

 Soltherm External Insulations Limited  Wholly Owned  Subsidiary of Bolix S.A.   

 Soltherm Insolations Thermique Exterieure SAS  Wholly Owned  Subsidiary of Bolix S.A.    

 BJN Paints India Limited   Erstwhile wholly owned step down subsidiary which merged into the    

    company (refer note 36)

II. Other related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year:        

a) Key Management Personnel       

 Name of related parties   Nature of relationship    

 Mr. K S Dhingra   Director    

 Mr. G S Dhingra   Director    

 Mr. Kanwardip Singh Dhingra   Whole time director and relative of  Mr G S Dhingra  

 Mrs. Rishma Kaur   Whole time director and relative of  Mr K S Dhingra  

 Mr. Abhijit Roy   Managing Director & CEO    

 Mr. Srijit Dasgupta   Director -Finance & Chief Financial Officer   

 Mr. Aniruddha Sen   Senior Vice President & Company Secretary   

 Mr. Kamal Ranjan Das   Independent Director    

 Mr. Naresh Gujral   Independent Director    

 Mr. Dhirendra Swarup   Independent Director    

 Mr. Gopal Krishna Pillai   Independent Director    

b) Others        

 Name of related parties   Nature of relationship    

 Berger Becker Coatings Private Limited  Joint Venture of the Company    

 Berger Nippon Paint Automotive Coatings Private Limited Joint Venture of the Company    

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018



150

Note 35(b)   

A.  During the year the following transactions were carried out with the related parties in the ordinary course of business:   

   

 Transaction Related Party      2017-18   2016-17 

Sale of Goods  Berger Becker Coatings Private Limited   1.57 1.09

  Berger Jenson & Nicholson (Nepal) Private Limited  9.54  6.00

  Berger Nippon Paint Automotive Coatings Private Limited  18.67         15.94

  Wazir Estates Private Limited  0.04  0.07

  Berger Paints (Bangaladesh) Limited  0.70  0.48

  Berger Paints Overseas Limited  1.10  0.39

  U K Paints (India) Private Limited  0.40  0.40

  Saboo Coatings Private Limited  1.75  -

  Mr. K S Dhingra *   0.03   0.00

  Mr. G S Dhingra *  0.00  0.00

  Seaward Packaging Private Limited * 0.00  0.00

  Bolix S.A.                -         0.07 

 

 Jenson & Nicholson (Asia) Limited         Fellow Subsidiary     

 Berger Paints (Bangaladesh) Limited   Fellow Subsidiary     

 Citland Commercial Credits Limited         Fellow Subsidiary  

 Wang Investment Finance Private Limited  Fellow Subsidiary

 Kanwar Properties Private Limited   Fellow Subsidiary     

 Berger Paints Provident Fund (Covered)  Post-employment benefit plan of the Company   

 Berger Paints Officers (Non-Management Category) Superannuation Fund Post-employment benefit plan of the Company   

 Berger Paints Management Staff Superannuation Fund  Post-employment benefit plan of the Company   

 BAICL Employees Superannuation Fund  Post-employment benefit plan of the Company   

 BAICL Employees Gratuity Fund   Post-employment benefit plan of the Company   

 Seaward Packaging Private Limited   Entity controlled by Key Managerial Personnel   

 Flex Properties Private Limited   Entity controlled by Key Managerial Personnel   

 Wazir Estates Private Limited   Entity controlled by Key Managerial Personnel   

 Bigg Investment & Finance Private Limited  Entity controlled by Key Managerial Personnel   

 KSD Family Trust   Mr K S Dhingra - Settlor Trustee    

 GBS Dhingra Family Trust   Mr G S Dhingra - Settlor Trustee    

 Mrs. Meeta Dhingra   Spouse of  Mr K S Dhingra    

 Mrs. Vinu Dhingra   Spouse of Mr G S Dhingra    

 Mrs. Jessima Kumar   Daughter of  Mr K S Dhingra    

 Ms. Dipti Dhingra   Daughter of  Mr K S Dhingra    

 Mrs. Sunaina Kohli   Daughter of Mr G S Dhingra    

 Mrs. Anshna Sawhney   Daughter of Mr G S Dhingra
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Transaction                                                                                        Related Party                                                                  2017-18          2016-17 

  Royalty Income  Berger Jenson & Nicholson (Nepal) Private Limited 1.85   1.93 

  Berger Paints (Bangaladesh) Limited 0.29   0.10 

Interest Income  Saboo Coatings Private Limited 0.09   - 

Purchase of Goods  U K Paints (India) Private Limited 68.15   62.24 

  Berger Becker Coatings Private Limited -     0.16 

  Saboo Coatings Private Limited *  0.00   - 

  Seaward Packaging Private Limited 37.88   31.20 

  Berger Nippon Paint Automotive Coatings Private Limited  0.71   0.07 

Processing Charges  U K Paints (India) Private Limited  18.57   15.75 

  Beepee Coatings Private Limited  24.45   24.89 

  Seaward Packaging Private Limited  -     0.04 

Rent Expenses  U K Paints (India) Private Limited  3.94   3.84 

  Flex Properties Private Limited 0.18   0.16 

  Beepee Coatings Private Limited  0.06   0.07 

  Kanwar Properties Private Limited  0.38   - 

  Mr. K S Dhingra 0.24   0.19 

  Mr. G S Dhingra 0.24   0.19 

Security Deposit Given  U K Paints (India) Private Limited  -    0.05 

Security Deposit Refunded  U K Paints (India) Private Limited  0.11   - 

Processing Income  Berger Nippon Paint Automotive Coatings Private Limited 2.22   1.38

Rendering of Manpower Services U K Paints (India) Private Limited 0.02   - 

  Berger Becker Coatings Private Limited  0.16   0.20

Machinery Rental Income  Beepee Coatings Private Limited  0.39   0.43

Business Transfer in relation  Berger Nippon Paint Automotive Coatings Private Limited  -    90.00

to the 4 wheelers passenger  

cars and SUV, 3 wheelers 

and related ancillaries 

(Refer Note No 26)   

Contribution to Provident Fund Berger Paints Provident Fund (Covered) 13.26  12.70

Contribution to Gratuity Fund BAICL Employees Gratuity Fund 0.05  0.11

Contribution to Superannuation Fund Berger Paints Officers (Non-Management Category) Superannuation Fund  0.58  0.64

  Berger Paints Management Staff Superannuation Fund 1.28  1.34

  BAICL Employees Superannuation Fund 0.08  0.06

Directors Commission & Fees Mr. K S Dhingra  0.10  0.10

  Mr. G S Dhingra 0.10  0.10

  Mr. Kamal Ranjan Das 0.03  0.03

  Mr. Naresh Gujral 0.07  0.07

  Mr. Dhirendra Swarup 0.07  0.07
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Transaction                                                                                        Related Party                                                               2017-18             2016-17 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

  Mr. Gopal Krishna Pillai 0.07  0.07

Short Term Loan Given  Saboo Coatings Private Limited 4.00  -

Short Term Loan Repaid  Saboo Coatings Private Limited  4.00  -

Equity Contribution  Berger Nippon Paint Automotive Coatings Private Limited - 89.67

  Berger Paints (Cyprus) Limited 8.69  28.34

  Lusako Trading Limited 1.29  1.34

Share Application  Berger Paints (Cyprus) Limited 2.44  0.08

  Lusako Trading Limited  -  0.32

Key Management Personnel Compensation Mr. Abhijit Roy 2.58  2.20

  Mr. Srijit Dasgupta  1.40  1.29

  Mr. Aniruddha Sen 0.94  0.88

  Mr. Kanwardip Singh Dhingra 0.23  0.26

  Mrs. Rishma Kaur 0.23  0.27

Dividend Payment  U K Paints (India) Private Limited 85.15  47.25

  Jenson & Nicholson (Asia) Limited 24.61  14.07

  Others 17.66  11.52

Dividend Receipt  Berger Jenson & Nicholson (Nepal) Private Limited  6.47  -

Impairment in Subsidiary  Berger Paints (Cyprus) Limited  -  28.00

B. Balances outstanding at the year end (including commitments):   

Outstanding  Related Party        2017-18        2016-17

Payable  U K Paints (India) Private Limited  24.46  21.31

  Beepee Coatings Private Limited 11.84  9.19

  Seaward Packaging Private Limited 9.45  7.12

  Berger Paints Officers (Non-Management Category) Superannuation Fund  - 0.05

  Berger Paints Management Staff Superannuation Fund  -  0.11

  Bolix S.A. 0.11  -

  Flex Properties Private Limited * 0.00  -

  Wazir Estates Private Limited *  0.00  (0.02)

  Kanwar Properties Private Limited  0.08  0.08

  Mr. Abhijit Roy  0.44  0.37

  Mr. Srijit Dasgupta  0.06  -

  Mr. K S Dhingra * 0.00  0.00

  Mr. G S Dhingra *  0.00 0.00

Receivable  Berger Becker Coatings Private Limited  1.52  0.20

  Berger Jenson & Nicholson (Nepal) Private Limited  8.85  2.74

  Berger Nippon Paint Automotive Coatings Private Limited  5.40  1.89

  Saboo Coatings Private Limited  1.13 -

in Crores



Transaction                                                                                        Related Party                                                                    2017-18    2016-17 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

  Berger Paints (Bangaladesh) Limited       0.67      0.84

  Berger Paints (Cyprus) Limited       2.44      0.08 

  Lusako Trading Limited             -       0.32 

  Berger Paints Overseas Limited       1.10           -    

                Lusako Trading Limited                       248.47     247.68 

         Others         10.46       5.50 

 

C. Details of remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel is given below   

                       Particulars   2017-18   2016-17 

     - Short-term employee benefits       4.80   4.32 

     - Post employment benefits       0.51   0.36 

     - Share based payment         0.07   0.21 

         5.38   4.89 

The amounts disclosed in the table are the amounts recognised as an expense during the reporting period related to key management personnel. No share 

options have been granted to the non-executive members of the Board of Directors under this scheme. Refer to Note 31 for further details  of the scheme.  

* Refer Note 42   

Notes:   

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties:   
The transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in Arm’s length transactions. Outstanding balances at the year-end are 

unsecured and interest free and settlement occurs in cash except unless otherwise mentioned.   

Note 36   

During the year, National Company Law Tribunal has approved the scheme of amalgamation (‘Scheme’) between the Company and BJN Paints India Limited 

(‘BJN’), India, a wholly owned step down subsidiary of the Company from the Appointed Date of April 1, 2017. The Scheme became effective from March 29, 

2018 after completion of all related regulatory formalities. In accordance with the above Scheme and the accounting treatment prescribed for merger of entities 

under common control in IND AS 103 – Business Combination (pooling of interests method), the financial statements of the Company for the previous year have 

been restated with effect from 1st April 2016, being the earliest period presented. Consequently, for the previous year, revenue of    114.99 crores and loss before 

tax of     2.35 crores appearing in the books of  BJN has been included in the revenue and profit before tax of the Company in the above financial statements for 

that year. In respect of the Balance Sheet, all assets and liabilities and differential value of equity have been recognised by the Company.

Summary of the assets/ liabilities merged is as under-   

                                                      Particulars      As at   As at 
     April 1, 2016   March 31, 2017  
Property, Plant and Equipment     5.29  5.82

Other Non-Current Assets      0.25   0.11

Net Current Assets #      (11.64)   (14.63)

Non-Current Liabilities      0.67  0.67

Equity      6.77   9.37

# included cash and cash equivalents of     3.47 Crores as at April 1, 2016 and     3.69 Crores as at March 31, 2017
In accordance with the Scheme of Amalgamation referred in Note 36 above, the authorized share capital of BJN India has merged into and combined with the 
Authorised Share capital of the Company.

in Crores

in Crores

in Crores

Corporate Guarantee
outstanding (Also Refer Note
34 for details of security given)
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Note 37 Fair Value Hierarchy     

The table shown below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value. The different levels have been defined below:-    

 Level 1: Quoted Prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities    

 Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e., as 

  prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices)    

 Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs)    

     

a) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value through profit and loss at March 31, 2018 

  Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

 Financial Assets    

 Investment in Mutual Funds -  227.59  -   227.59

 Investment in unquoted equity instruments*   - - 0.00  0.00

 Financial Liabilities    

 Financial Guarantee Contracts  -  -  2.02   2.02

 Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value through profit and loss at  March 31, 2017 

  Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

 Financial Assets    

 Investment in Mutual Funds   367.27  -  367.27

 Investment in unquoted equity instruments*   -    - 0.00 0.00

 Financial Liabilities 

 Financial Guarantee Contracts  -     -  2.94  2.94

 Derivatives not designated as hedges  -     4.11  -  4.11

 *Refer note 42

 Description of significant unobservable inputs to valuation:    

     

      Valuation technique    Significant unobservable techniques  

 Financial Guarantee Contracts -Also refer note 34               DCF Method         Interest saved approach  

     

(b) Financial instruments at amortized cost     

 The carrying amount of financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised cost in the financial statements are a reasonable approximation of  

 their fair values since the Company does not anticipate that the carrying amounts would be significantly different from the values that would eventually  

 be received or settled    

(c) During the year there has been no transfer from one level to another     

(d) Also refer note 17a and 17b    
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Note 38. Financial risk management objectives and policies      

The Company's principal financial liabilities, other than derivatives, comprise borrowings and trade payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is 

to finance the Company's working capital requirements. The Company has various financial assets such as trade receivables, loans, investments,short-term 

deposits and cash & cash equivalents , which arise directly from its operations. The Company enters into derivative transactions by way of forward exchange 

contracts to hedge its payables   .      

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s Board of Directors oversees the management of these risks. The Compa-

ny’s Board of Directors is supported by the Business Process and Risk Management Committee (BPRMC) that advises on financial risks and the appropriate 

financial risk governance framework for the Company. The BPRMC provides assurance to the Company’s Board of Directors that the Company’s financial risk 

activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company’s 

policies and risk objectives. All derivative activities for risk management purposes are carried out by personnel that have the appropriate skills, experience and 

supervision. It is the Company’s policy that no trading in derivatives for speculative purposes may be undertaken. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees 

policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below:      

Market Risk      

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market factors. Market risk comprises 

three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk , liquidity risk and commodity risk. Financial instruments affected 

by market risk include loans and borrowings, deposits, FVTOCI investments and financial derivative.

The sensitivity analyses in the following sections relate to the position as at March 31, 2018 and March 31, 2017.     

The sensitivity analyses have been prepared on the basis that the amount of net debt, the ratio of fixed to floating interest rates of the debt and derivatives and the 

proportion of financial instruments in foreign currencies are all constant at March 31, 2018.

The analyses exclude the impact of movements in market variables on: the carrying values of gratuity and other post-retirement obligations. 

The following assumptions have been made in calculating the sensitivity analyses:

financial liabilities held at March 31, 2018 and March 31, 2017

Interest rate risk      

The Company has incurred short term debt to finance its working capital , which exposes it to interest rate risk. Borrowings issued at variable rates expose the 

Company to  interest rate risk. Borrowing issued at fixed rates expose the Company to fair value interest rate risk. The Company's interest rate risk management 

policy includes achieving the lowest possible cost of debt financing, while managing volatility of interest rates, applying a prudent mix of fixed and floating debt 

through evaluation of various bank loans and money market instruments .       

Some of the Company's borrowings are index linked, that is their cost is linked to changes in the London inter-bank offer rate (Libor) .    

Although the Company has significant variable rate interest bearing liabilities at March 31, 2018, there would not be any material impact on pre-tax profit and 

pre-tax equity of the Company on account of any anticipated fluctuations in interest       

Foreign currency risk     

The Company has a policy of entering into foreign exchange forward contracts to manage risk of foreign exchange fluctuations on borrowings and payables. 

These contracts are not designated in hedge relationships and are measured at fair value through profit or loss. Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value 

or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in exchange rates of any currency. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign 

exchange rates relates primarily to the Company’s operating activities by way of direct imports or financing of imports through foreign currency instruments.  
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The Company proactively hedged its currency exposures in case of a significant movement in exchange rates for imports and in case the hedged cost of foreign 

currency instrument is lower than the domestic cost of borrowing in case of short term import financing .      

As at March 31, 2018, the Company hedged 2% (March 31, 2017: 58%)  for 6 months , of its expected foreign currency payables.This foreign currency risk on 

payables is hedged by using foreign currency forward contracts.      

      

Foreign currency sensitivity       

The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in USD/Euro exchange rates, with all other variables held constant. The impact 

on the Company’s profit before tax is due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities . The Company’s exposure to foreign currency changes 

for all other currencies is not material.      

      

 Change in USD rate(%) Effect on profit before tax Effect on pre-tax equity

 March 31, 2018  USD 5% (1.98) (1.98)

   USD (5%) 1.98  1.98

   EURO 5%  (0.07)   (0.07) 

   EURO (5%)  0.07  0.07

 March 31, 2017  USD 5%  (6.73)  (6.73)

   USD (5%)  6.73   6.73 

   EURO 5%  (0.08)  (0.08)

   EURO (5%)  0.08   0.08 

Commodity price risk      

The Company doesn’t enter into any long term contract with its suppliers for hedging its commodity price risk       

Equity price risk      

The Company does not have any investments in listed securities or in Equity Mutual Funds and thereby is not exposed to any Equity price risk.   

Credit risk      

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company 

is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks and financial 

institutions, and other financial instruments.      

Trade receivables      

Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to the Company’s established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk 

management. Credit quality of a customer is assessed based on an extensive credit rating scorecard and individual credit limits are defined in accordance with 

this assessment. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored by BPRMC and corrective actions taken.     

Financial instruments and cash deposits      

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company’s treasury department in accordance with the Company’s policy. 

Investments of surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned to each counterparty. Counterparty credit limits are 

reviewed by the Company’s Board of Directors on an annual basis, and may be updated throughout the year subject to approval of the Company’s Finance 
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in Crores

Note 39. Capital management  

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the 

equity holders of the parent. The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to maximise the shareholder value.   

The Company only avails short term borrowings to bridge its working capital gap and finances its capital expenditure through internal generation of funds. 

The company has a generally low debt equity ratio      

  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

 Borrowings (Note 16a)  143.27  119.68

 Less: cash and cash equivalents ( Note 9c)  (64.18)  (30.88)

 Net debt  79.09 88.08

 Total capital 2,143.61  1,912.77

Committee. The limits are set to minimise the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss through counterparty’s potential failure to make 

payments.       

The Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the balance sheet at March 31, 2018 and March 31, 2017 is the carrying amounts as 

illustrated in Note 12 except for financial guarantees. The Company’s maximum exposure relating to financial guarantees and financial derivative instruments is 

noted in note 37 and the liquidity table below.      

Liquidity risk      

The Company monitors its risk of a shortage of funds using a liquidity planning tool.       

The Company’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank overdrafts, cash credit facilities and 

buyers' credit facilities. The Company assessed the concentration of risk with respect to refinancing its debt and concluded it to be low. The Company has access 

to a sufficient variety of sources of funding and debt.      

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments.    

  

 On demand Less than 3
  months 3 to 12 months 1 to 5 years > 5 years Total

Year ended March 31, 2018      

Borrowings  143.27  - - - - 143.27

Financial Liabilities        -

Other financial liabilities  5.54   68.55   37.84  3.54 - 115.47

Financial Gurantee  258.93  - - -  - 258.93

Trade payables  1.51   931.06  - - - 932.57

  409.25   999.61   37.84  3.54     -    1,450.24

Year ended March 31, 2017      

Borrowings  34.58   85.10  - - -  119.68

Other financial liabilities  4.84   96.29   35.65   2.86   139.64

Financial Gurantee  253.18  - - - -  253.18

Trade payables  1.08   749.24  - - -  750.32

  293.68   930.63   35.65   2.86    -     1,262.82
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   March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

 Capital and net debt  2,222.70 2,001.57

 Gearing ratio  4% 4%

  

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants 

attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit 

the bank to immediately call loans and borrowings. There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and 

borrowing in the current period.  

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended March 31, 2018  and March 31, 2017. 

Note 40  Expenditure on Research & Development       

a. Details of Research & Development expenses incurred during the year, debited under various heads of Statement of Profit & Loss is given below  

 March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 

Employee Benefit Expenses 10.05 9.08  

Material consumption 0.99 0.97  

Power and Fuel 0.39  0.43  

Depreciation 1.95 1.75  

Others 1.17  0.77  

 14.55 13.00  

b. Details of Capital expenditure incurred for Research & Development are given below    

Capital Expenditure 1.40  3.51  

 1.40 3.51  

Total  15.95  16.51  

Above includes allowable expenditure under section 35(2AB) of the Income Tax Act         

Capital expenditure    0.51 crores ( March 31, 2017    1.10 crores)         

Revenue expenditure    9.54 crores ( March 31, 2017    8.72 crores)       

The Company has a research & development unit situated in Howrah, Kolkata which focuses on reasearch on  new and existing paint products, reformulation 

for cost optimization, environment friendly products etc.       

Note 41. Segment Information       

The Company is engaged in the business of manufacturing and selling of paints. Based on the nature of products, production process , regulatory  environment, 

customers and distribution methods there are no reportable segment(s) other than "Paints".        
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Kuldip Singh Dhingra, Chairman
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Note 42       

All figures are in Rupees Crores. Figures marked with (*) are below the rounding off norm adopted by the Company.     
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY OF BERGER PAINTS INDIA LIMITED
(STANDALONE) – FIVE YEARS AT A GLANCE

 ` Crores

 2017-18* 2016-17* 2015-16* 2014-15^ 2013-14

Gross Revenue 

11.80

 2,442.09 2,287.64 2,226.14 2,051.94
269.84
922.21 876.60 758.80 926.76 784.50

% to Net Revenue 16.72
111.92 98.00 88.07 78.62 58.27

Finance Cost 16.20
661.81

Exceptional Items - 58.67 - - -
661.81

Tax Expense 229.97

20.15
Dividend - including Tax on Dividend 204.52
Retained Earnings 

Shareholders’ Funds:  

Share Capital 97.10
Reserves and Surplus 2,046.51 1,815.67 1,522.79 1,274.97 1,062.59

2,143.61 1,912.77 1,592.14 1,344.30 1,131.89

Deferred Tax Liability (Net) 58.60

1,159.22

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 3,504.70 3,087.34 2,512.06 2,309.91 2,160.92

Fixed Assets 1,002.60
Investments 

ASSETS 3,504.70  3,087.34 2,512.06 2,309.91 2,160.92

Debt - Equity Ratio 0.07:1 0.06 : 1 0.04 : 1 0.21 : 1 0.27 : 1
Cash Earnings Per Share (`)* 5.60 5.58 4.58 4.97 4.22
Earnings Per Share - Basic (`)* 4.45
Earnings Per Share - Diluted (`)* 4.45
Book Value Per Share (`)* 22.07
Dividend per share (`)* 1.80 1.75 1.65 1.25 1.10

periods prior to GST implementation have been adjusted suitably for Excise duty on sale of goods, to enable comparability of Revenue from operations for 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF BERGER PAINTS INDIA LIMITED

 
 

 

Rules, 2015, as amended. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its joint ventures are 

 

to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder. We conducted our audit in accordance 
 

statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement 

the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Holding Company’s 

evidence obtained by us and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms of their reports referred to in sub-paragraph 
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Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of 

Other Matter

`592.85 crores and net assets of  `
revenues of  ` `

`

statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries and one joint venture, 

venture, is based solely on the reports of such other auditors.

other auditors under generally accepted auditing standards applicable in their respective countries. The Company’s management 

in their respective countries to accounting principles generally accepted in India. We have audited these conversion adjustments 

outside India is based on the report of other auditors and the conversion adjustments prepared by the management of the Company 
and audited by us.

report, to the extent applicable, that:
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Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based 

ii. The Group and joint ventures did not have any material foreseeable losses in long-term contracts including derivative 

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by 

For   
Chartered Accountants 
ICAI Firm Registration Number

 
Partner  

Place of Signature: Kolkata 
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ANNEXURE 1 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE 
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF BERGER PAINTS INDIA LIMITED

 

criteria established by the Holding Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit 

the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of 

material respects.

and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, 
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or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the 

 

statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or 

Opinion

Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 

Other Matters

subsidiary and joint venture incorporated in India.

For  
Chartered Accountants 

 
Partner 

Place of Signature: Kolkata 
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2018                  
 Notes As at March 31, 2018  As at March 31, 2017
ASSETS    
Non-current assets    
Property plant and equipment 4                           997.83                                950.20 
Capital work-in-progress 4 97.16                               62.21 
Goodwill 4   264.57                                178.90 
Other intangible assets 4                               4.77                                    6.86 
Investments in joint ventures 5                           105.54                                104.86 
Financial assets      
(a) Investments 5a                               0.00                                    0.00 
(b) Loans 5b                             20.43                                  13.71 
(c) Other financial assets 5c                               2.53                                    3.99 
Deferred tax assets (net) 13b                               0.74                                    0.76 
Income tax assets (net) 13c                             46.53                                  14.76 
Other non-current assets 6                             35.07                                  36.28 
   1,575.17  1,372.53 
Foreign currency monetary item translation
difference account    8.91  10.08 
 Current Assets      
Inventories 7                         1,007.34                                935.47 
Financial assets     
(a) Investments 8a                           227.59                                367.27 
(b) Trade receivables 8b                           692.40                                578.14 
(c) Cash and cash equivalents 8c                             83.59                                  45.25 
(d) Bank balances other than (c) above 8d                           121.38                                  57.20 
(e) Loans 5b                               1.96                                  11.33 
(f) Other financial assets 5c                               3.81                                    4.66 
Other current assets 6                           221.24                                  58.40
  2,359.31  2,057.72
TOTAL ASSETS   3,943.39                          3,440.33
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES      
Equity      
Equity Share Capital 9                             97.10                                  97.10 
Other equity 10                         2,097.41                              1,804.46 
Total Equity   2,194.51                             1,901.56 
Liabilities   
Non-Current Liabilities      
Financial liabilities      
(a) Borrowings 14a                           249.47                                262.08 
(b) Other financial liabilities 11                               7.27                                    5.59 
Provisions 12                               4.56                                    4.17 
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 13a                             83.20                                  81.45 
Other non- current liabilities 15                               1.72                                    1.24 
Income tax Liabilities(net) 13d(1) -                                      4.75 
    346.22  359.28
Current Liabilities
Financial liabilities      
(a) Borrowings 14a                           172.70                                144.13 
(b) Trade payables 14b                           955.25  761.20 
(c) Other financial liabilities 11                           144.70                                154.62 
Other current liabilities 15                             93.88                                  89.82 
Provisions 12                             30.88                                  29.72 
Current tax liabilities (net) 13d                               5.25                                      -   
    1,402.66   1,179.49 
Total Liabilities   1,748.88                              1,538.77 
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABLITIES   3,943.39                             3,440.33 
Significant accounting policies 3    
       
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.   
As per our report on even date      

For S.R. BATLIBOI & CO. LLP
Firm Registration Number 301003E/E300005   
Chartered Accountants    
   
 
     
per Bhaswar Sarkar  Partner    Membership Number : 055596  Place: Kolkata 
Dated: May 30, 2018

Kuldip Singh Dhingra-Chairman
Gurbachan Singh Dhingra-Vice-Chairman

Abhijit Roy-Managing Director & CEO
Srijit Dasgupta-Director -Finance & CFO

Aniruddha Sen-Sr. VP & Company Secretary

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

in Crores
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STATEMENT OF CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018   

    in Crores 
 Notes Year Ended Year Ended
  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 

Revenue from operations 18  5,282.12   5,050.45  
Other income 19  45.87   54.54  
Total Income   5,327.99   5,104.99  
Expenses    
Cost of materials consumed 20  2,678.14   2,283.60  
Purchases of traded goods   431.79   433.79  
(Increase)/decrease in inventories of finished goods, work-in-process and traded goods 21  (99.97)  (125.09) 
Excise duty on sale of goods (Refer note 18)   116.39   498.20  
Employee benefits expense 22  356.58   306.72  
Finance Costs 23  24.55   16.22 
Depreciation and amortisation expense 24  124.21   108.05  
Other expenses 25  992.20   934.67  
Total Expense   4,623.89   4,456.16  

Profit Before share of joint ventures, exceptional Items and tax   704.10   648.83  
Share in profit of joint ventures 5  0.64   10.05 

Profit Before exceptional Items and tax   704.74   658.88  
Exceptional items 26  -     44.20  

Profit before tax   704.74   703.08  
Tax Expense/(credit)    
Current tax    245.64   214.83  
Deferred tax   (1.73)  14.59  

   243.91   229.42  
Profit for the year (I)   460.83   473.66  
Other Comprehensive Income:    
Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit and loss in subsequent periods:    
Re-measurement gains and (losses) on defined benefit obligations (net)   1.73   (2.42) 
Income tax effect thereof   (0.60)  0.75  
Share of other comprehensive income in Joint Venture (net of tax)   0.05   (0.02) 
Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit and loss in subsequent periods:    
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations   33.26   (17.25)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year, net of tax (II)   34.44   (18.94) 
Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (I + II)   495.27   454.72  
Earnings per Equity Share of    1 each 27   
Basic   4.75   4.88  
Diluted   4.74   4.88  

Significant accounting policies 3
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.    
As per our report on even date    

For S.R. BATLIBOI & CO. LLP
Firm Registration Number 301003E/E300005
Chartered Accountants

per Bhaswar Sarkar 
 
Partner 
   
Membership Number : 055596 
 
Place: Kolkata 
Dated: May 30, 2018

Kuldip Singh Dhingra-Chairman
Gurbachan Singh Dhingra-Vice-Chairman

Abhijit Roy-Managing Director & CEO
Srijit Dasgupta-Director-Finance & CFO

Aniruddha Sen-Sr. VP & Company Secretary

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
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Reserves & Surplus Items of OCI 

Particulars Total Equity
Securities
premium
Account 

Share
based

payment
reserve

Retained
earnings

Capital
Reserve

General
Reserve

Capital
Redemption

Reserve

Foreign
Currency

Translation
Reserve

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018   

a. Equity Share Capital:      
   

      
 Equity shares of Re 1 each issued, subscribed and fully paid  No. of shares   in Crores  
   
At March 31, 2017    97,09,86,647  97.10   
   
Add: Issue of Shares on exercise of Stock Options (Note 31)*     44,781  0.00   
   
At March 31, 2018    97,10,31,428  97.10   
   
*refer note 41       
  

b. Other equity      
   

For the year ended March 31, 2018

                                                                            

 

As at April 1, 2017 111.31     0.87   1,420.40  0.19   302.87  0.04  (31.22)  1,804.46

Profit for the year  -       -   460.83  -   -   -  -  460.83

Other comprehensive income
for the year  -       -   1.18  -   -   -   33.26  34.44

Total Comprehensive
    Income for the year  -       -   462.01  -   -   -   33.26  495.27

Issue of share capital on 
   Bonus Issue (Note 9)  -       -  -       -  -    -  -  -  

Exercise of share options 
(Note 31)  1.03     (1.03)   -       -   -     -  -  -  

Cost of Share based payments   -       2.44 -  -  -    -   -  2.44
(Note 31) 

Transfer to housing reserves                               -  - (0.16) - - - -  (0.16)
(Note 12)   

Share Options forfeited/
lapsed (Note 31)  -       (0.08)   -       -  -   -  -  (0.08)

Dividends (Note 17)  -       -   (169.93)  -  -   -  -  (169.93)

Dividend distribution tax on
cash  dividend (Note 17)  -       -   (34.59)  -  -   -  -  (34.59)

As at March 31, 2018   112.34  2.20   1,677.73  0.19   302.87   0.04   2.04  2,097.41
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Reserves & Surplus Items of OCI 

Particulars Total Equity
Securities
premium
Account 

Share
based

payment
reserve

Retained
earnings

Capital
Reserve

General
Reserve

Capital
Redemption

Reserve

Foreign
Currency

Translation
Reserve

Kuldip Singh Dhingra-Chairman
Gurbachan Singh Dhingra-Vice - Chairman

Abhijit Roy-Managing Director & CEO
Srijit Dasgupta-Director-Finance & CFO

Aniruddha Sen-Sr. VP & Company Secretary

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

For the year ended March 31, 2017         
 

As at April 1 , 2016  137.50   0.83   1,065.28   0.19   302.87   0.04   (13.97)  1,492.74  

Profit for the year  -     -     473.66   -     -   -     -  473.66  

Other comprehensive income
for the year  -     -     (1.69)  -    -    -     (17.25)  (18.94) 

Total Comprehensive
Income for the year  -     -     471.97   -   -   -     (17.25)  454.72  

Issue of share capital on Bonus
Issue (Note 9)  (27.74) - - - - - -  (27.74) 

Exercise of share options (Note 31)  1.55   (0.82)  -     -  -   -   -   0.73  

Cost of Share based payments 
(Note 31)  -     0.93   -     -  -   -  -  0.93  

Share Options forfeited/
lapsed (Note 31)  -     (0.07)  -     -   -   -  -  (0.07) 

Dividends (Note 17)  -     -     (97.09)  -   -   -  -  (97.09) 

Dividend distribution tax on 
Dividend (Note 17)  -     -     (19.76)  -   -  -  -  (19.76) 

As at March 31, 2017  111.31   0.87   1,420.40   0.19   302.87   0.04   (31.22)  1,804.46 

As per our report on even date         

      
For S.R. BATLIBOI & CO. LLP      
Firm Registration Number 301003E/E300005    
Chartered Accountants      
   
per Bhaswar Sarkar
Partner 

Membership Number : 055596
Place: Kolkata 
Dated: May 30, 2018
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per Bhaswar Sarkar 
 
Partner 
   
Membership Number : 055596 
 
Place: Kolkata 
Dated: May 30, 2018

Kuldip Singh Dhingra-Chairman
Gurbachan Singh Dhingra-Vice-Chairman

Abhijit Roy-Managing Director & CEO
Srijit Dasgupta-Director -Finance & CFO

Aniruddha Sen-Sr. VP & Company Secretary

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

 in Crores
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018  
 
                                                             Particulars 2017-18 2016-17 
   
A.   Cash flow from operating activities:   
  Net Profit before tax  704.74  703.08
      Adjustment to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows :   
  Depreciation and amortisation expense  124.21  108.05
  (Profit)/Loss on sale/discard of Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets  0.01  0.35
  Employee stock option scheme  2.36  1.60
  Profit on transfer of Company's paint division relating to 4 wheeler passenger cars
  and SUVs, 3 wheelers and related ancillaries (refer note 26) - (44.20)
  Foreign Currency translation  9.01  (9.06)
  Unrealised foreign exchange (gain)/loss - (net)  (8.79)  0.07
  Finance costs  24.55  16.22
  Interest income  (6.78)  (4.60)
  Net gain on sale of mutual fund investments  (18.11)  (26.99)
  Fair value gain on mutual fund investments  (4.41)  (2.97) 
        Operating profit before working capital changes  826.79  741.55
 Adjustments for :   
 Increase/(decrease) in loans, deposits and other financial assets  3.61  2.12
 Decrease in trade receivables  (114.26)  (33.76) 
 Decrease in other current and non current assets  (154.97)  (20.14) 
 Decrease in inventories  (71.87)  (203.16) 
 Increase in trade payables  194.05  91.51 
 Increase in other financial liabilities  4.54  12.23 
 Increase/(decrease) in provisions  3.29  4.21 
 Increase in other current and non current liabilities  7.64  12.34 
     Increase /(decrease) in Other Bank balances -  7.13 
 Cash generated from operations  698.81  614.03 
 Direct taxes paid (net of refund)  (276.91)  (219.53) 
 Net cash flow from operating activities (A)  421.90  394.51
B.     Cash flow from investing activities:   
   Purchase of Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets including capital
 work in progress  (292.87)  (268.60) 
 Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets  3.28  4.23 
 Interest received  5.67  4.70 
 Investment in joint venture and subsidiaries  1.77  (57.23) 
 Proceeds from transfer of Company's paint division relating to 4 wheeler passenger
 cars and SUVs, 3 wheelers and related ancillaries (Refer Note 26) -  45.90 
 Purchase of current investments  (1,988.27)  (4,093.86) 
 Proceeds from sale of current investments  2,150.47  4,056.46 
 Redemption /maturity of bank deposits having original maturity of more than three
 months but less than twelve months  (63.48) - 
 Net cash flow used in investing activities (B)  (183.43)  (308.39) 
C.   Cash flow from financing activities:   
 Proceeds from issuance of equity share capital  0.00  0.01 
 Net movement in cash credit  110.03  (27.38) 
 Short term borrowings taken  2,577.83  1,130.84 
 Interest paid  (24.57)  (16.33) 
 Dividend paid (including net dividend distribution tax)  (204.52)  (116.85) 
 Movement in short term borrowings (net)   (2,658.90)  (1,052.71) 
Net cash used in financing activities  (200.13)  (82.42) 
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents [A+B+C]  38.34  3.70 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  45.25  41.56 
Cash and cash equivalents as at end of the year  83.59  45.25 
Refer Note 8c for Components of Cash and cash Equivalents   
Summary of significant accounting policies                                                                         3  
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.  
As per our report of even date.   
   
For S.R. BATLIBOI & CO. LLP 
Firm Registration Number 301003E/E300005 
Chartered Accountants   



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

1. Corporate Information

Berger Paints India Limited (‘BPIL’ or ‘the Holding Company’ or ‘the Company’) is a public limited company domiciled in India 
and is incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India. Its shares are listed on three stock exchanges 
in India. The Holding Company is engaged in the manufacturing and selling of paints. The Company caters primarily to domestic 

 

2. Basis of Preparation

Accounting policies have been c
revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

3. Sum

acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the Group has ascertained its operating 
.

Items included in the

The functional currency of BPIL, Bepee Coatings Private Limited (BCPL), BJN Paints India Limited (BJNPIL), Berger 
Becker Coatings Private Limited (BBCPL) (Joint Venture) and Berger Nippon Paint Automotive Coatings Private Limited 

respective local currencies.

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in by the respective companies at spot rates at the functional 

foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date.

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of transactions in foreign currencies and from the translation 
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange rates are generally recognised in 

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are 

market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to 
sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either: 

a) In the principal market for the asset or liability, or 

b) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability 

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. 

asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their best economic interest. 

its highest and best use. 

measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs. 

a) Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 

directly or indirectly observable 

unobservable

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, 
characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

3.4. Use of Estimates
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent 
liabilities during and at the end of the reporting period. Although these estimates are based on the management’s best 

requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods.

3.5. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

3.6. Property, Plant and Equipment

accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment, if any. Cost comprises purchase price and directly attributable cost 

the decommissioning of an asset after its use is included in the cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for a 

further information about the recorded decommissioning provision.

Depreciation is provided on Straight line method over the useful lives of property, plant and equipment as estimated by 

No depreciation is provided on freehold land

Leasehold Land and Building is amortized on a straight line basis over the tenure of respective leases
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

accumulated impairment losses, if any. Internally generated intangible assets, excluding capitalized development costs, are 
 

to that CGU is regarded as not impaired. If the carrying amount of the CGU exceeds the recoverable amount of the CGU, 

CGU and then to other assets of the CGU pro-rata based on the carrying amount of each asset in the CGU. Any impairment 

in subsequent periods.

exists, the Group estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-
generating unit’s (CGU) net selling price and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, 

Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

appropriate valuation model is used.

3.10. Inventories

constitutes direct materials and labour and a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on normal operating capacity. 

above cost. 

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and 
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

on behalf of the government. The Group has concluded that it is principal in all of its revenue arrangements since it is the 
primary obligor in all the revenue arrangements as it has pricing latitude and is also exposed to inventory and credit risks.

statements.

Rather, it is tax collected on value added to the commodity by the seller on behalf of the government. Accordingly, it is 
excluded from revenue.

Sale of goods

the buyer, on delivery of the goods or as per buyer’s instruction. Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at the fair value 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

Income from services

Interest Income recognised under Amortized cost

Interest Income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the applicable 

Dividend Income

When the grant or subsidy from the Government relates to revenue, it is deducted from the related expense on a systematic 

intended to compensate.Where the grant or subsidy from the Government relates to revenue and is not relatable to the 
corresponding costs, it has been disclosed as other operating income. When the grants relates to an asset, it is recognised as 
income in equal amounts over the expected useful life of the related asset.

  When the Group receives grants of non-monetary assets, the asset and the grant are recorded at fair value amounts and   

                The loan or assistance is initially recognised and measured at fair value of the proceeds received. The loan is subsequently  

a. Superannuation

Contribution made to Superannuation Fund for certain employees of the Holding Company are recognised in 

b. Provident Fund

Employees Provident Fund Trust and in respect of other employees of the Group, are made to the Fund 
administered by the Regional Provident Fund Commissioner as per the provisions of Employees’ Provident 

services are rendered by employees. The Group has no obligation other than the contribution payable to the 
Regional Provident fund.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

a. Gratuity

of The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Retirement Gratuity for employees of the Holding Company, is funded 

are determined on the basis of actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at each year-end. 

value of available refunds and reduction in future contributions. 

b. Provident Fund

In respect of the employees covered by the Holding Company’s Employee Provident Fund Trust in Point 
I b above, contributions to the Holding Company’s Employees Provident Fund Trust (administered by the 

In the case of contribution to the Trust, the Holding Company has an obligation to make good the shortfall, 

obligation, if any, determined based on an actuarial valuation as at the balance sheet date, as an expense.

measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation 

extent it does not have an unconditional right to defer its settlement for 12 months after the reporting date. Where 
the Group has the unconditional legal and contractual right to defer the settlement for a period beyond 12 months, 
the same is presented as non-current liability.

3.14. Leases

As a lessee
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

Finance leases are capitalised at the commencement of the lease at the inception date at the fair value of the leased property 

and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. 

the asset and the lease term.

.

As a lessor

as operating leases. Rental income from operating lease is recognised on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant 
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the 
leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as 

or substantially improved materials, devices, products, processes, systems or services before the start of commercial 

(b)  the Company intends to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it.

(c)  the Company has ability to use or sell the intangible asset.

 
 intangible asset.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

(f) the Company has ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during its development.

Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. 

for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the 

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is probable that 

Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become 

asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or 
directly in equity, respectively.

during the current year and reversal of timing differences for the earlier years. Deferred tax is measured using the tax rates 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of 

The Group records a provision for decommissioning costs for its certain manufacturing facilities. Decommissioning costs 

appropriate. Changes in the estimated future costs or in the discount rate applied are added to or deducted from the cost 
of the asset.

occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Group or a present obligation 

3.19. Borrowing Costs

3.20. Earnings Per Share

of shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

events, such as bonus shares, other than the conversion of potential equity shares, that have changed the number of equity 

Stock options are granted to the employees under the stock option scheme. The cost of stock options granted to the 



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

movement in cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that period and is recognised in employee 

per share.

If the options vests in instalments (i.e. the options vest pro rata over the service period), then each instalment is treated as 
a separate share option grant because each instalment has a different vesting period.

instrument of another entity.

A. 

 ii. Subsequent measurement 

a. Debt instruments at amortised cost 

and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on 

category generally applies to trade and other receivables.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

Equity investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind-AS 109 are measured at fair value other than equity investments measured 

 

Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt securities, 
deposits, trade receivables and bank balance

The applicati
at each reporting date, right from its initial 

recognition.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of 

 
contractual terms
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

portfolio of its trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the 

amount.

B. 

investment in subsidiaries and joint ventures, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

 ii. Subsequent measurement

trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

Loans and borrowings

through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that 

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to be made to 

fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, 

Ind AS 109 and the amount recognised less cumulative amortisation.

 

enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets 
and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

A. 

application is required for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2018.

statements.

B. 

may make deductions on the reversal of that deductible temporary difference. Furthermore, the amendments provide guidance 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

the recovery of some assets for more than their carrying amount.

in the opening equity of the earliest comparative period may be recognised in opening retained earnings (or in another 

of equity. Entities applying this relief must disclose that fact.

These amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2018. These amendments are not expected 
to have any impact on the Company as there are no deductible temporary differences or assets that are in the scope of the 
amendments.

C. 

income (or part of it) on the derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to advance consideration, 

arising from the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, then the entity must determine 
the transaction date for each payment or receipt of advance consideration.

Entities may apply the Appendix requirements on a fully retrospective basis. Alternatively, an entity may apply these 
requirements prospectively to all assets, expenses and income in its scope that are initially recognised on or after:

The Appendix is effective for annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2018. The Company is evaluating the impact of this 

3.24. Operating Segments

Audit Committee performs the function of allotment of resources and assessment of performance of the Company. Considering 

for the purposes of approving the annual operating plan is on a consolidated basis for various products of the Company. As 

3.25. Business Combination

of the combining entities or businesses are ultimately controlled by the same party or parties both before and after the 
business combination and the control is not transitory.  Business combinations involving entities under common control are 
accounted for using the pooling of interests method. The assets and liabilities of the acquired entity are recognised at their 
carrying amounts on the date of the acquisition subject to necessary adjustments required to harmonise accounting policies. 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

or shortfall of the consideration paid over the share capital of acquired entity is recognized as capital reserve under equity. 

Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 

events in similar circumstances and are presented to the extent required and possible, in the same manner as the Holding 

 iii. The translation of the functional currencies into Indian Rupees (functional and presentation currency) of foreign subsidiaries 
is performed for assets and liabilities using closing exchange rates at the Balance Sheet date, for revenues, costs, and 
expenses using average rates prevailing during the period. The resultant exchange difference arising out of such transactions 

until the disposal of Investment.

 iv. The excess of cost to the Holding Company of its investment in the subsidiaries over the Holding’s portion of equity of the 

accounted for using the equity method of accounting. The investment is initially recognised at cost, and the carrying amount 
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As at 
April 1 ,

2017 

Additions Deletions Translation 
Difference

Translation 
Difference

As at
March 31,

2018

As at
March 31,

2018

As at
March 31,

2017

As at
March 31,

2018

As at
April 1,

2017

Acquisition** For
the Year

On
Deletions
(Accumu
lated upto
the date of 

sale)

CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018   

Note 4(a) - Property,  plant and equipment          
 

Particulars Gross Block at Cost Depreciation / Amortisation Net Block
             

Land             
    Freehold  12.57   0.46   -   0.32   13.35   -    -   -   -   -     13.35   12.57 
    Leasehold  8.54   0.45   -   -   8.99   0.19    0.22   -   -   0.41   8.58   8.35 
             
Buildings             
    Freehold #  378.18   17.03   (0.34)  2.89   397.76   23.89    16.36   -   1.94   42.19   355.57   354.29 
    Leasehold  27.22   0.87   -     -   28.09   2.11   0.02   1.05   -   -   3.18   24.91   25.11 
             
Plant &
Machinery ##  607.17   118.60   (3.03)  6.32   729.06   122.68   0.38   81.44   (2.05)  5.00   207.45   521.61   484.49 

Furniture and
Fixtures  26.48   9.97   (0.90)  1.36   36.91   7.15   0.07   5.69   (0.88)  1.16   13.19   23.72   19.33 

Computer ##  36.43   10.91   (0.14)  -   47.20   10.19   0.06   9.37   (0.13)  -   19.49   27.71   26.24 

Office
Equipment  8.89   2.32   (0.07)  -   11.14   2.53   0.01   1.97   (0.01)  -   4.50   6.64   6.36 

Vehicles  13.99   8.19   (4.63)  1.24   18.79   0.53   0.15   4.35   (2.77)  0.79   3.05   15.74   13.46 
             

TOTAL  1,119.47   168.80   (9.11)  12.13   1,291.29   169.27   0.69   120.45   (5.84)  8.89   293.46   997.83   950.20 

# Partly on leasehold land             

         

in Crores

in Crores

Note 4(a)(i)             
Title deeds of immovable properties set out in Note 4(a) above, are in the name of the Company except those mentioned below which were transferred to and 
vested in the Company pursuant to the respective Schemes of Arrangement in earlier years.

As at 
March 31, 

2018

As at 
March 31,

2017

As at 
March 31,

2017

As at 
March 31,

2018

            1.13 1 
1 
1 
1 

1.13 0.98 1.00 Brushwork
Paints Limited

Berger Auto & Indutsrial
Coatings Limited

Rajdoot Paints Private 
Limited

Rajdoot Paints Private 
Limited

            1.36 1.36 1.36 1.36 

Particulars

Gross Carrying Amount

No of
title

deeds

Held in the 
name of

Net Carrying Amount

Leasehold land at Taloja, Maharashtra 
Freehold land at Rishra, West Bengal 
Leasehold land at Sikandrabad, Uttar Pradesh 
Leasehold land at Chandigarh 

0.27 0.27 0.15 0.15      
            0.05  0.05 0.03                 0.03                
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Acquisition** For
the Year

On
Deletions
(Accumu
lated upto
the date of 

sale)

Particulars   Gross Block at Cost     Depreciation / Amortisation       Net Block

As at
April 1,

2017

As at
April 1 ,

2017

As at
March 31,

2018

As at
March 31,

2018

As at
March 31,

2018

As at
March 31,

2017

Additions Deletions Translation 
Difference

Translation 
Difference

CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018   

 Note 4(c) -  Other Intangible assets            

Computer
Software  11.96   1.73   (0.29)  2.21   15.61   5.10   0.07   3.76   (0.27)  2.18   10.84   4.77   6.86 
             
TOTAL  11.96   1.73   (0.29)  2.21   15.61   5.10   0.07   3.76   (0.27)  2.18   10.84   4.77   6.86 

** Indicates accumulated depreciation on assets acquired from Saboo Coating Private Limited during the year as at the June 5,  2018    

Acquisition For
the Year

On
Deletions
(Accumu
lated upto
the date of 

sale)

Particulars   Gross Block at Cost     Depreciation / Amortisation       Net Block

As at
April 1 ,

2017

As at
April 1 ,

2017

As at
March 31,

2018

As at
March 31,

2018

As at
March 31,

2018

As at
March 31,

2017

Additions Deletions Translation 
Difference

Translation 
Difference

Note 4(b)  - Goodwill             

             

Goodwill *   178.90   64.18  -   21.49   264.57   -    -   -   -   -     264.57   178.90 
             
TOTAL   178.90   64.18  -     21.49   264.57   -     -     -     -     -     -     264.57   178.90 

in Crores

in Crores

* Includes Goodwill on consolidation   65.24 crores  (2016-17     1.06 crores). Goodwill of   64.18 crores is on account of acquisition of Saboo Coatings Private  
Limited during the year.           



191

Acquisition For
the Year

On
Deletions
(Accumu
lated upto
the date of 

sale)

Particulars   Gross Block at Cost     Depreciation / Amortisation       Net Block

As at
April 1 ,

2017

As at
April 1 ,

2017

As at
March 31,

2018

As at
March 31,

2018

As at
March 31,

2018

As at
March 31,

2017

Additions Deletions Trans
lation 
Differ
ence

Translation 
Difference

For
the Year

On Deletions 
(Accumulated 

upto the
date of  sale)

Particulars      Gross Block at Cost     Depreciation / Amortisation       Net Block

As at
April 1 ,

2016

As at
April 1 ,

2016

As at
March 31,

2017

As at
March 31,

2017

As at
March 31,

2017

As at
March 31,

2016

Additions Deletions Translation 
Difference

Translation 
Difference

For
the Year

On
Deletions 
(Accumu

lated upto 
the date of 

sale)

Particulars   Gross Block at Cost     Depreciation / Amortisation       Net Block

As at
April 1 ,

2016

As at
April 1 ,

2016

As at
March 31,

2017

As at
March 31,

2018

As at
March 31,

2018

As at
March 31,

2017

Additions Deletions Translation 
Difference

Translation 
Difference

 CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018  
           

## (i) Includes following assets ( color bank ) given under operating lease       

Plant & Equipment  172.85   46.09  -  -  218.94  67.28  -        40.10 -  - 107.38 111.56 105.57
Computer  19.20   6.46  (1.04)  -  24.62  7.79  -          5.31 (0.69) -  12.41  12.21  11.41
Total 192.05   52.55 (1.04)  -  243.56  75.07  -        45.41 (0.69) - 119.79  123.77  116.98

(ii) Also refer note 32 

(iii) Capital work in Progress    

           Particulars         Gross Block at Cost    

    As at      Additions   Capitalisation      As at 
   April 1,            March 31,
   2017              2018

 Buildings     13.49        8.72   (17.90) 4.31

 Plant & Equipment    48.24        187.42   (142.83) 92.83

 Other assets       0.48       7.61   (8.07) 0.02

TOTAL     62.21       203.75   (168.80) 97.16

Note 4(d) - Property, plant and equipment           
  
            

Land             
    Freehold  12.30   0.36   -   (0.09)  12.57   -   -   -   -   -   12.57   12.30 
    Leasehold  7.55   0.99   -   -   8.54   0.09   0.10   -   -   0.19   8.35   7.46 
             
Buildings             
   Freehold #  300.57   78.46   (1.36)  0.51   378.18   11.08   13.16   -   (0.35)  23.89   354.29   289.49
   Leasehold  23.97   3.25   -   -   27.22   1.08   1.03   -   -   2.11   25.11   22.89
             
Plant
& Machinery ##  435.59   177.66   (5.61)  (0.47)  607.17   58.57   69.04   (3.35)  (1.58)  122.68   484.49   377.02
Furniture and
Fixtures  22.04   5.60   (0.74)  (0.42)  26.48   3.00   5.22   (0.68)  (0.39)  7.15   19.33   19.04 
Computer ##  25.22   16.48   (5.27)  -   36.43   6.08   9.15   (5.04)  -   10.19   26.24   19.14
Office Equipment  7.20   2.01   (0.32)  -   8.89   1.09   1.76   (0.32)  -   2.53   6.36   6.11
Motor Cars
and Other Vehicles  13.40   5.34   (4.35)  (0.40)  13.99   0.37   3.62   (3.16)  (0.30)  0.53   13.46   13.03
             

TOTAL  847.84   290.15   (17.65)  (0.87)  1,119.47   81.36   103.08   (12.55)  (2.62)  169.27   950.20   766.48
             

in Crores

in Crores
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For
the Year

On Deletions 
(Accumulated 

upto the
date of  sale)

Particulars      Gross Block at Cost     Depreciation / Amortisation       Net Block

As at
April 1 ,

2016

As at
April 1 ,

2016

As at
March 31,

2017

As at
March 31,

2017

As at
March 31,

2017

As at
March 31,

2016

Additions Deletions Translation 
Difference

Translation 
Difference

Note 4 (e) - Goodwill            

Goodwill ^ 186.46   -     -     (7.56)  178.90   -     -     -     -   -   178.90   186.46 

TOTAL 186.46   -     -     (7.56)  178.90   -     -     -     -   -   178.90   186.46 
     

^ Includes Goodwill on consolidation    1.06 crores  (2015-2016   1.06 crores ) 

in Crores

For
the Year

On Deletions 
(Accumulated 

upto the
date of  sale)

Particulars      Gross Block at Cost     Depreciation / Amortisation       Net Block

As at
April 1 ,

2016

As at
April 1 ,

2016

As at
March 31,

2017

As at
March 31,

2017

As at
March 31,

2017

As at
March 31,

2016

Additions Deletions Translation 
Difference

Translation 
Difference

For
the Year

On Deletions 
(Accumulated 

upto the
date of  sale)

Particulars      Gross Block at Cost     Depreciation / Amortisation       Net Block

As at
April 1 ,

2016

As at
April 1 ,

2016

As at
March 31,

2017

As at
March 31,

2017

As at
March 31,

2017

As at
March 31,

2016

Additions Deletions Translation 
Difference

Translation 
Difference

Note 4(f) - Other Intangible Assets           
  
             

          
Computer Software  14.06   1.94   (3.28)  (0.76)  11.96   4.08   4.97   (3.19)  (0.76)  5.10   6.86   9.98  

            
TOTAL  14.06   1.94  (3.28)   (0.76)  11.96   4.08   4.97   (3.19)  (0.76)  5.10   6.86   9.98  

# Partly on leasehold land            
 
             
## (i) Includes following assets ( color bank ) given under operating lease 

             
Plant & Equipment  125.95   48.41  (1.51)   -     172.85   31.82   36.43  (0.97)   -     67.28   105.57   94.13  
Computer   14.51   4.69   -     -     19.20   3.75   4.04   -     -     7.79   11.41   10.76  
Total  140.46   53.10   (1.51)   -     192.05   35.57   40.47   (0.97)   -     75.07   116.98   104.89  

(ii) Also refer note 32  

in Crores

in Crores

CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018 



   
   
     
 

Group's share of Profit from joint ventures 0.64   10.05 

Group's share of Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss) for the year from joint ventures 0.05   (0.02)

Group's share of total comprehensive income for the year from joint ventures  0.69   10.03

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

in Crores

As at
March 31, 2018

As at
March 31, 2017

   
  
     
 

Carrying amount of interest in joint ventures                                                                      105.54  104.86

 Non-current assets  225.16   228.88

Current Assets  251.95  222.44

Non-Current Liabilities   (3.12)   (3.77)

Current Liabilities  (171.36)  (153.72)

Equity    302.63  293.83
     
     

in Crores

Note 5. Investment in Joint Ventures     
     

The Group has a 48.98% and 49% interest in Berger Becker Coatings Private Limited  and Berger Nippon Paint Automotive Coatings Private Limited respec-

tively (Company's Joint Venture with , which are involved in the manufacture and selling of paints). These joint ventures are private limited companies that 

are not listed on any public exchange. The Group’s interest in joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method in the consolidated financial 

statements. Both the joint ventures are individually immaterial to the reporting entity. Summarised financial information of the joint venture, based on its Ind 

AS financial statements are set out below

CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018 

in Crores
(iii) Capital work in Progress     

 Particulars       Gross Block at Cost     

    As at   Additions               Capitalisation  As at 
              April 1, 2016                 March 31, 2017

 Buildings      13.93        81.27     (81.71)    13.49  

 Plant & Equipment     36.54      215.29     (203.59)    48.24  

 Other assets        0.54          4.79      (4.85)      0.48  

 

TOTAL       51.01       301.35     (290.15)    62.21  

   
  
     
 

Total Income       489.21                   410.07

Expense   473.88 388.30

PAT        8.70 5.57

Total Comprehensive Income   8.79 13.62
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As at 
March 31, 2018

As at 
March 31, 2018

As at 
March 31, 2017

As at 
March 31, 2017

Non-Current                                                 Current

As at 
March 31, 2018

As at 
March 31, 2018

As at 
March 31, 2017

As at 
March 31, 2017

Non-Current                                                 Current

                                                Number of shares                                          in crores

As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2018As at March 31, 2017 As at March 31, 2017

Consolidated notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018 
      
Note 5a. Financial assets - Investments

Investments (Fully Paid)      
At fair value through profit
and loss (FVTPL):      
Equity Shares (Fully Paid)-
Unquoted      
Shaktikunj Apartments Limited *    1              1,498   1,498    0.00              0.00 
Charotar Gas Company *  10                   10        10    0.00    0.00 
Total Non-current
Investments at cost          0.00    0.00 
      
Investments at fair value through profit and loss (fully paid) reflect investment in  unquoted equity securities. Refer note 36 for determination of their fair value.

* Refer Note 41

Note 5b. Financial assets - Loans 
   
 

 
        

Security Deposits  20.42   13.71    1.96   8.22

Other Loans  0.01   -      -     3.11

Total loans and deposits  20.43   13.71    1.96   11.33

     
Note 5c. Other Financial assets     
 

Bank Deposits with original maturity more than twelve months  0.09  0.11  0.07   0.05 

Security Deposits  -     -      0.02   0.97 

Advances to related parties - towards Share Application money

pending allotment ##  2.44  2.45   -     -   

Interest accrued on deposits  -     -      1.77   0.66 

Other receivables*  0.00 1.43   1.95   2.98 

Total Other financial assets  2.53  3.99   3.81   4.66 

##
Berger Paints (Cyprus) Limited  2.44 2.13   

Lusako Trading Limited -    0.32   

(Share application money pending allotment) 2.44         2.45

* includes receivable from related parties     

 Berger Paints (Bangaladesh) Limited             0.39                  0.49

    0.39 0.49 

in Crores

in Crores

in Crores

Nominal Value per unit Currency

(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)

(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)
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Consolidated notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

As at 
March 31, 2018

As at 
March 31, 2018

As at 
March 31, 2017

As at 
March 31, 2017

Non-Current                                                  Current

As at 
March 31, 2018

As at 
March 31, 2017

     
 

     

Capital advances   16.50  10.13 0.28  - 
Advances other than capital advances

      Security Deposits   0.54  0.54 -  - 
      Other Advances   -  - 11.39  3.61
Prepayments   3.87  3.45 9.01  8.27
Subsidy receivable #   - - 28.38 -
Advances to others   -  - 0.33  -
Balances with statutory/ government authorities  14.16  22.16 171.85  46.52
        
Total Other Assets   35.07  36.28  221.24  58.40

Note 7. Inventories   
(at the lower of cost and net realisable value) 

in Crores
   
   

Raw materials [ Including in-transit   56 crores (March 31, 2017 -   58 crores)]  304.34  247.01 

 Packing material (Containers)[ Including in-transit    0.09 crores (March 31, 2017 -    Nil)]    23.30  18.45 

Work in process        68.54  58.42 

Finished goods     517.78  531.95 

Traded goods [ Including in-transit    2 crores (March 31, 2017 -    2 crores)]     76.87  67.45 

Stores and Spares       16.51  12.19 

   
Total inventories   1,007.34   935.47 

      
  

in Crores(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated) 
Note 6. Other Assets

# Excise duty disclosed in Statement of Profit and Loss for the three months period ended June 30, 2017 is net off excise duty benefit of     8.16 crores (Year ended 
March 31, 2017:   27.65 crores). Subsequent to the implementation of GST w.e.f July 1, 2017, the Company has claimed subsidy available under "Scheme of 
Budgetary Support under GST Regime to the eligible units" located in specified States amounting to    28.38 crores (March 31, 2017:    Nil).
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 Number of units                                       in crores

Nominal Value 
per unit

As at 
March 31, 2018

As at
March 31, 2017

As at
March 31, 2018

As at
March 31, 2017

CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018  
   
Note 8a. Financial assets - Current Investments   
  

     
Investments at Fair Value
Through Profit and Loss
(FVTPL):     
     
Investments in Mutual Funds 
- Unquoted     
Reliance Regular Savings Fund
- Debt Plan - Direct Growth Plan  10   -  28,272,744  -  66.42

Kotak Low Duration Fund - Direct - Growth  10   149,089  78,901  32.66  16.02

ICICI Prudential Savings Fund
- Direct Plan - Growth  10   1,177  347,336  31.82  8.75

Birla Sunlife Floating rate Fund - long term
- Direct Growth  10   740,774  -  15.95  -

IDFC Ultra Short Term Fund
- Direct - Growth  10   2,628,869  -  6.52  -

ICICI Prudential Income Opportunity Fund
- Direct Plan - Growth  10   4,611,451  -  11.42  -

Birla Sunlife Savings Fund
- Direct Growth  10   1,023,860  -  35.23  - 

Birla Sunlife Short Term Fund
- Direct Growth  10   867,942  -  18.69  -

Birla Sunlife Cash Plus
- Direct Growth  10   227,514  -  6.35  -

ICICI Prudential Money Market Fund
- Direct Growth  10   122,813  -  2.95  -

L&T Liquid Fund Direct Plan - Growth  10   14,048  -  3.35  -

Kotak Floater Short Term
- Direct - Growth  10   11,195  -  3.19  -

HDFC FMP 92d Fund - Direct
- Growth  10   21,970,314  -  22.13  -

UTI  Treasury Advantage Fund
- Institutional Option - Direct - Growth  10   83,216  -  20.08  -

Birla Sunlife Floating Rate Fund
Short term - Direct growth  10   -  1,132,335  -  24.56 

Franklin India Low Duration
Fund - Direct - Growth  10   -  14,847,574  -  27.76 

Franklin India Short Term Income
Plan - Weekly Dividend  10   10,320  10,320  3.95  3.62 

Franklin India Ultra Short Term
Bond Fund  10   -  4,574,710  -  10.22 

Franklin India Ultra Short Term Bond
Fund - Direct - Growth  10   4,073,155  11,329,882  9.83  25.30 
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                                                        Number of units                                           in crores

Nominal Value 
per unit

As at 
March 31, 2018

As at
March 31, 2017

As at
March 31, 2018

As at
March 31, 2017

As at 
March 31, 2018

As at 
March 31, 2018

As at 
March 31, 2017

As at 
March 31, 2017

Non-Current                                                  Current

HDFC Cash Management Fund
- Savings Plan - Direct  10   -     72,497   -     24.62 
HDFC Liquid Fund - Direct - Growth  10   -     31,217   -     10.02 
ICICI Prudential Corporate Bond Fund
- Direct plan - Growth  10   -     1,46,04,133   -     38.43
Kotak Income Opportunity fund
- Direct plan  10   -     1,71,32,765   -     31.98 
Reliance Corporate Bond Fund
- Direct - Growth  10   -     2,71,45,000   -     36.56 
Reliance Money Manager Fund
- Direct - Growth  10   -     77,918   -     17.74 
UTI Money Market Fund - Institutional
- Direct - Growth  10   17,817   1,38,508   3.47   25.27 
     
Aggregate amount of Unquoted Investments    227.59   367.27 
     
Aggregate amount of Repurchase price of 

  Unquoted Investments    227.59   367.27 
     
Refer note 36 for determination of fair value.     
     
     
Note 8b. Trade Receivables     
(Unsecured)     
     

     
Considered good*   -     -     692.40   578.14 
Doubtful   8.74   12.24   -   - 
   8.74   12.24   692.40   578.14 
Provision for doubtful receivables   (8.74)  (12.24)  -   - 

Total trade receivables   -     -     692.40   578.14 
     
* Includes debts due from private limited cmpanies in which directors of the
Company are directors     
Berger Becker Coatings Private Limited     1.52   0.20 
Berger Nippon Paint Automotive Coatings Private Ltd. (Formerly 
BNB Coatings India Private Limited/BNB Coatings India Limited )     5.40   1.89 
Wazir Estates Private Limited #      -     0.02 

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and generally has credit period from 30 to 90 days     
For terms and conditions relating to related party receivables, refer Note 34

# Refer Note 41    

in Crores

CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018
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As at 
March 31, 2018

As at 
March 31, 2017

As at 
March 31, 2018

As at 
March 31, 2017

As at 
March 31, 2018

As at 
March 31, 2017

As at
 March 31, 2018

As at 
March 31, 2017

Note 8c. Financial Assets-Cash and Cash Equivalents

Balances with banks:   

– On current accounts  23.47   30.62  

– Deposits with original maturity of less than three months #  48.99   0.15  

Cheques/drafts on hand  10.30   13.79  

Cash on hand  0.83   0.69  

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents  83.59   45.25  

Note 8d. Other bank balances
 
  

Other bank balances:   

– Balance with banks in Unpaid Dividend Account  5.54   4.84  

– Deposits with original maturity of not less than three months but less than twelve months #  115.81   52.33  

Earmarked balances  0.03   0.03  

Total other bank balances other than 8c above  121.38   57.20  

# Deposits at Banks earn interest between 7.50 % to 11% and are made for periods between 61 and 275 days 

 For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following
   

Balances with banks: 
– On current accounts  23.47   30.62  
– Deposits with original maturity of less than three months  48.99   0.15  
Cheques/drafts on hand  10.30   13.79  
Cash on hand  0.83   0.69  
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents  83.59   45.25  
Less- Bank Overdraft (Refer Note 14a)  (3.02)  (5.19) 
  80.57   40.07  

Note - 9. Equity Share Capital    
  
    

  Authorised Capital   
 120,00,00,000 Equity Shares of    1 each (March 31, 2017: 1,100,000,000 Equity Shares of    1 each)#  120.00   110.00  

  Issued Capital   
  97,11,22,908 Equity Shares of    1 each fully paid up (March 31, 2017: 971,078,127 Equity Shares of     1 each fully paid up)  97.11   97.11 
  
  97.11   97.11
  Subscribed and Paid-up Capital   
  97,10,31,428 Equity Shares of     1 each fully paid up (March 31, 2017: 970,986,647 Equity Shares of     1 each fully paid up)  97.10   97.10
   

 97.10   97.10  
 
    

in Crores

in Crores

in Crores

in Crores

CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

# In accordance with the Scheme of Amalgamation referred in note 34 (c), the authorized share capital of BJN India has merged into and combined with the 
Authorised Share capital of the Company. 
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As at March 31, 2018

No. of Shares

As at March 31, 2017

in Crores No. of Shares in Crores

As at March 31, 2018

No. of Shares

As at March 31, 2017

% holding No. of Shares % holding

As at 
March 31, 2018

As at 
March 31, 2017

    
    

a) The Reconciliation of share capital is given below:    
    
 
    

At the beginning of the year  97,09,86,647  97.10  69,34,77,912  69.35
Add: Shares issued on exercise of Employee Stock Options 
(Refer Note 31)*  44,781  0.00  117,570  0.01
Add: Bonus Shares issued and allotted during the year
(Refer Note (f) below)  -  -  277,391,165  27.74

At the end of the year  97,10,31,428  97.10  97,09,86,647  97.10

* Refer note 41
b) Terms/Rights attached to class of shares  
The Holding Company has only one class of Equity Shares having a par value of    1 each. Holder of each Equity Share is entitled to one vote per share. The 
Holding Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the sharehold-
ers in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend. In the event of liquidation of the Holding Company, the holders of equity shares 
will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Holding Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the 
number of equity shares held by the shareholders.   
    

c) Equity Shares held by the Holding Company and/or the subsidiaries/associates of Holding Company

    

U K Paints (India) Private Limited (Ultimate Holding Company)  48,65,45,399   48,65,45,399  

Jenson & Nicholson (Asia) Limited, UK  14,06,56,782   14,06,56,782  

Citland Commercial Credits Limited  3,09,15,659   3,09,15,659  

Wang Investment Finance Pvt. Ltd.  2,98,10,580   2,98,10,580  

Bigg Investment & Finance Pvt. Ltd.  79,52,420   79,52,420  
 

    
d) Details of Shareholders holding more than 5 percent of Equity Shares in the Holding Company    
     

    

U K Paints (India) Private Limited (Ultimate Holding Company)  48,65,45,399  50.11%  48,65,45,399  50.11%

Jenson & Nicholson (Asia) Limited, UK  14,06,56,782  14.49%  14,06,56,782  14.49%

Nalanda India Fund Limited 4,67,19,295 4.81%  5,07,49,406  5.23%

As per records of the Holding Company, including its register of shareholders/members and other declarations received from shareholders regarding 
beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownership of shares  as declared under the relevant provisions of the Compa-
nies Act , 2013     

e) Shares reserved for issue under Employee Stock Options:    
    
For details of shares reserved for issue under the Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOP) of the Holding Company, refer Note 31.   

CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018
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As at 
 March 31, 2018

As at 
March 31, 2017

in Crores

CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

f) Fully paid up equity shares allotted by way of bonus shares    

27,73,91,165 bonus shares were issued and allotted during the year by the Company to the eligible members of the Company holding ordinary shares of  
   1 each (ratio 2:5) by capitalizing    27.74 Crores out of the sum standing to the credit of Company’s Securities Premium Account. 

Note - 10. Other equity  

Reserves & Surplus  
 Securities Premium Account (refer Note 31)  112.34   111.31 
  Retained earnings  1,677.73   1,420.40 
  General Reserve  302.87   302.87 
Other reserves  
  Share based payment reserve  2.20   0.87 
  Capital reserve  0.19   0.19 
  Capital redemption reserve  0.04   0.04 
Items of OCI  
  Foreign Currency Translation Reserve  2.04   (31.22)
Total other equity  2,097.41   1,804.46 

Notes:
Securities Premium Account - Premium received on equity shares issued including those under employee stock option plan are recognised in the securities 
premium account net of utilization for bonus shares issued etc.

Retained Earnings - Retained earnings includes surplus in the Statement of Profit and Loss, Ind-AS related adjustments as on the date of transition, 
remeasurement gains/ losses on defined benefit plans and Revaluation reserve aggregating to    Nil (March 31, 2017:     0.83 crores ) created on revaluation 
of Leasehold Land, Freehold Land and Freehold Buildings of the Holding Company in 1989, 1985 and 1993 done by approved valuers. The aforementioned 
revaluation reserve is not a free reserve as per the Companies Act, 2013 and hence is not available for distribution as dividend.

General Reserve - Under the erstwhile Indian Companies Act 1956, a general reserve was created through an annual transfer of net income at a specified 
percentage in accordance with applicable regulations, to ensure that if a dividend distribution in a given year is more than 10% of the paid capital of the compa-
ny for that year, the total dividend distribution is less than the total distributable results for that year. Consequent to introduction of Companies Act 2013, the 
requirement to mandatorily transfer a specified percentage of the net profit to general reserve has been withdrawn.

Share based payment reserve - The Company has two employee stock option plan (ESOP) under which options to subscribe for the Company’s shares have 
been granted to specific employees. The Share based payment reserve is used to recognise the value of equity-settled share-based payments to employees as 
part of their remuneration. The year end balance is net off options exercised by the concerned employees. Refer to Note 32 for further details of these plans.  

Capital redemption reserve - Represents the amount equal to the face value of equity shares transferred at the time of buy-back of shares.

Foreign Currency Translation Reserve- Represents exchange difference on translation of financial statements of foreign subsidiaries . 
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 in Crores

Non-Current Current

Particulars
As at

March 31, 2018
As at

March 31, 2017
As at

March 31, 2018
As at

March 31, 2017

 in Crores
Non-Current Current

Particulars As at
March 31, 2018

As at
March 31, 2017

As at
March 31, 2018

As at
March 31, 2017

CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018  
   

     
Note 11. Other Financial Liabilities
 
     

(a)  Financial liabilities at fair value through Profit and Loss    
       -Foreign exchange forward contracts  -   -  -    4.11
(b) Other financial liabilities at amortized cost     
      -Interest accrued but not due on borrowings   -   - 0.89    0.91
      -Unpaid Dividends (to be credited to Investor Education     -   -  5.54    4.84
      and Protection Fund as and when due)
   -Deposits   6.37   5.16 37.85    37.31
   -Capital creditors  -  - 33.51   50.06
      -Accrued employee liabilities   -   - 46.52    35.07
   -Other Payables   0.90   0.43 20.39    22.32
(c)  Financial guarantee contracts [ refer note 34 (iii)]  -  - -   -
 Total other financial liabilities    7.27   5.59 144.70    154.62

     
          
Note 12. Provisions     
  

Provision for Employee Benefits     
- Provision for Gratuity (Refer Note 30)  -     -      4.84   4.40 
- Provision for Leave Encashment  1.20   1.46    14.18   13.75 
 -Provision for  Housing Fund 
& Warranty (Refer Note (a) & (b) below)  -     -      6.65   5.90 
-Provision for Decommissioning 
Cost (Refer Note (c) below)  2.92   2.71    -     -   
Others  0.44   -      5.21   5.67 
     
  4.56   4.17    30.88   29.72 
     
(a) Housing Fund     
At the beginning of the year     5.20   3.10 
Arisen during the year     0.85   2.10 
Utilized during the year     -     -   
At the end of the year     6.05   5.20 

Provision for housing fund cost has been recognised in compliance with  Sec 41 of Nepal Labour Act, 2048    
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 in Crores
Non-Current Current

Particulars As at
March 31, 2018

As at
March 31, 2017

As at
March 31, 2018

As at
March 31, 2017

 in Crores
Statement of Profit and Loss

and Other Comprehensive Income
Balance Sheet

Nature  - (Liability) / Asset March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 March 31, 2017March 31, 2018

CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018  
   

(b) Warranty Provision     
At the beginning of the year     0.70   0.30 
Arisen during the year     -     0.40 
Utilized during the year     (0.10)  -   
At the end of the year     0.60   0.70 
A provision for warranty is recognized when the underlying products or services are sold. The provision is based on historical warranty data and a 
weighing of all possible outcomes against their associated probabilities     
     
     
(c) Provision for Decommissioning Cost     
At the beginning of the year  2.71   2.51    
Arisen during the year  -     -      
Interest unwinding for the year   0.21   0.20    
At the end of the year  2.92   2.71    
 Provision for decommissioning cost has been recognised towards decommissioning/dismantling costs associated with Holding Company's factories  
constructed by the Holding Company on leasehold lands.     

     

Note 13a. Deferred Tax Assets & Liabilities (net)     
     

 
     

Deferred Tax Liabilities     
Arising out of temporary differences
in depreciable assets  91.25  76.96  (9.24)  (11.54) 
Difference in valuation method
of Inventories 0.05  0.04   (0.01)  (0.00)
Other 0.83  9.59   9.44  (5.51)
Total (A)  92.13  86.59   0.19  (17.05)
     
Deferred Tax Assets     
On expenses allowable against taxable
income in future years 6.91  4.48   (2.17)  (3.00)
Financial Assets at fair value through 
profit and loss  (1.54)  (1.03)   0.51  0.91
Decommissioning Liability  0.21  0.56   0.35  (0.11)
Others 3.00  0.26   (0.24)  (0.14)
Others through Other
Comprehensive Income 0.35  0.87   0.59  (0.64)
Total (B)   8.93  5.14   (0.96)  (2.98)
Deferred Tax Expenses/(Credit) (A-B)     (1.15)  14.07
Net Deferred Tax (Liabilities)/Assets (B-A)  (83.20)  (81.45)   



As at
March 31, 2018

As at
March 31, 2017

 in Crores
As at

March 31, 2018
As at

March 31, 2017

As at
March 31, 2018

As at
March 31, 2017

CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

During the year ended 31 March, 2018 and 31 March, 2017, the Holding Company has paid dividend to its shareholders. This has resulted in payment of 
Dividend Distribution Tax (DDT) to the taxation authorities. The Holding Company believes that DDT represents additional payment to taxation 
authority on behalf of the shareholders.     

Note 13b. Deferred Tax Assets & Liabilities    
    

   

Deferred Tax Liabilities      
Arising out of temporary differences in depreciable assets 0.26  0.42   (0.16)  (0.01)
Total (A)  0.26   0.42  (0.16)  (0.01)
      
Deferred Tax Assets      
Expenses allowable on payment/actual basis for tax purpose  0.74  0.91 (0.17)  (0.13) 
Others through Other Comprehensive Income   0.26   0.27 (0.01)  (0.11)  
Total (B)  1.00  1.18 (0.18)  (0.24) 
Deferred Tax Expenses/(Credit) (A-B)    0.02  (0.23)     

  Net Deferred Tax (Liabilities)/Assets (B-A) 0.74  0.76

Note 13c . Income Tax assets (net)     

   

Advance payment of income tax [ net of provision for tax of     836.89 crores   46.53  14.76 

( March 31, 2017 -    604.80 crores) ]   46.53  14.76 
      
   
Note 13(d) . Current tax liabilities (net)                         

Provision for income tax [net of advance tax of    117.42 crores ( March 31, 2017    Nil )]  5.25   -        

   5.25  - 
   

Note 13d(1). Income tax liabilities (net)

Provision for income tax [net of advance tax of     Nil ( March 31, 2017    2.89 crores)]  - 4.75
   
   - 4.75

 in Crores

 in Crores

 in Crores

As at
March 31, 2018

As at
March 31, 2018

Balance Sheet Statement of Profit and Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income

As at
March 31, 2017

As at
March 31, 2017

Nature  - (Liability) / Asset
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 in Crores

 in Crores

CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018  
     
Note 13(e) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate for March 31, 2018 and March 31, 2017: 
      
       
The tax on the Company's profit before tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the standard rate of corporate tax in India (34.608%) 
as follows:       

     
     
     March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Accounting Profit before income tax (before share of profit from J/V)      704.10  693.03 
Profit before income tax multiplied by standard rate of corporate
tax in India of 34.608% (31 March 2016: 34.608%)      243.67  239.84 
Effects of:       
Permanent differences affecting income tax expense:       
Additional deduction allowed in respect of
R&D activities carried out by the company      (2.22)  (4.61)
Difference in tax on exceptional item (sale of business) Refer Note 26      -  (10.00) 
Allowance for capital expenditure u/s 32AC      -  (8.71)
Disallowance of exceptional item (impairment)       -  9.69 
Effect of different tax rates in the components      (0.61)  1.20 
Other miscellaneous disallowances      3.67  1.26 
Net effective income tax      244.51  228.67 
       
Income tax expense  reported in the Statement of Profit and Loss      243.91  229.42 
Income tax expense reported in Other Comprehensive Income      0.60  (0.75) 
      244.51  228.67 
       
The Subsidiaries have unused tax losses which arose on incurrence of  business losses and unabsorbed depreciation under the respective tax loss for which 
no deferred tax asset has been recognised in the Balance Sheet. Refer table below:        

Financial Year  Particulars                                 March 31, 2018         Expiry Date    March 31, 2017  Expiry Date

2012-13 Business Loss    -        - 6.22  Dec 2017
2013-14 Business Loss 6.25    Dec 2018 5.86  Dec 2018
2014-15 Business Loss 6.48    Dec 2019 6.08  Dec 2019
2014-15 Business Loss 6.17    Dec 2020 3.01  Mar 2022
2014-15 Unabsorbed Depreciation 0.00    NA  0.89  NA
2015-16 Business Loss 0.95    Dec 2022 5.79  Dec 2020
2016-17 Business Loss 7.55    Dec 2023 0.89  Dec 2021
       
At the end of the reporting period, the aggregate amount of temporary differences associated with undistributed earnings of the subsidiaries for which deferred 
tax liabilities have not been recognised is    161.07 crores (2016-17:    110.51 crores). No liability has been recognised in respect of these differences because 
management controls the distributions of the earnings of the subsidiaries to the holding company and it has no intention to distribute the earnings of the subsid-
iaries.       
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 in Crores

 in Crores

Non-Current Current

Particulars As at
March 31, 2018

As at
March 31, 2017

As at
March 31, 2018

As at
March 31, 2017

Note 14a. Financial Liabilities- Borrowings

Secured      

Term Loan      

      From Banks (secured)  244.20   259.59    -     -    

Loans repayable on demand      

   From Banks      

       Bank Overdraft  -     -      3.02   5.19  

       Cash credit  -     -      140.71   30.51  

       Buyers' Credit (in foreign currency)  -     -      -     84.29  

       Long term maturity of finance lease obligations  5.27   2.49    -     -    

Other Loans  -     -      28.97   24.14  

 249.47   262.08    172.70   144.13

CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

Term Loan from banks are secured by a charge by way of mortgage on some specific fixed assets      

Term loan of    132.33 crores (2016-17:    140.67crores) is repayable by   June 7,  2019  and carries interest of 3 month LIBOR +140 Basis points. Term 

loan of     111.87 crores (2016-17:   118.92 crores) is repayable by April 14, 2019  and carries interest of 6 month LIBOR+ 140 Basis points

Bank overdraft are repayable on demand and carry interest rate of MIBOR+ 130 bps (March 31, 2017: MIBOR+ 130 bps) 

Cash Credits from banks are secured by way of first charge on book debts and current assets ranking pari passu between the lenders (first pari passu 

charge over entire current assets). Cash Credit is repayable on demand and carries interest at  7.3 % - 11.75% per annum  (March 31, 2017: 8%-10% per 

annum)     

     

The buyers' credit is repayable in six months and carries interest at    Nil (March 31, 2017: LIBOR +0.25%) and is secured by hypothecation of stocks 

and book debts, both present and future.     

Amendments to Ind AS 7 Statement of Cash Flows: 

The amendments to Ind AS 7 require entities to provide disclosure of changes in their liabilities arising from financing activities, including both 

changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes (such as foreign exchange gains or losses). The Company has provided the information for both 

the current and the comparative period as under  

    

                                         Particulars April 1, 2017 Cash flows Exchange  March 31, 
   difference 2018

Non Current  Borrowings      

      Term Loan   259.59   -     (15.39) 244.20 

     

Particulars April 1, 2016 Cash flows Exchange  March 31, 2017

    

Non Current  Borrowings      

      Term Loan   253.38   -     6.21  259.59
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                                          Particulars April 1, 2017 Cash flows Exchange  March 31,
   difference  2018

Current Borrowings      

       Bank overdraft   5.19  (2.17)  - 3.02

       Cash credit  30.51  110.20  - 140.71

       Buyers' Credit  84.29  (89.46)  5.17 0.00

       Other Loans   24.14  4.83  - 28.97

                                           Particulars April 1, 2016 Cash flows Exchange March 31, 
    2017

Current Borrowings      

       Bank overdraft   7.88  (2.69)  - 5.19

       Cash credit  61.69  (31.18)  - 30.51 

       Buyers' Credit  5.27  78.84  0.18 84.29 

       Other Loans   23.87  0.27  - 24.14 
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Note 14b. Financial Liabilities- Trade Payables  
  
    
     As at As at
 March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Acceptances  137.08   111.93 
Other than Acceptances  
- Total outstanding dues of Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises (See note below)  17.84   11.25 
 - Total outstanding dues of creditors other than Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises  800.33   638.02 
  955.25   761.20 

 As at As at
 March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Disclosure under the Micro, Small and Medium enterprises Development Act,
2006 are provided as under to the extent the Company has received intimation
from the suppliers regarding their status under the Act.  
  
Principal amount remaining unpaid at the end of the year 16.33   10.17
Interest due thereon remaining unpaid at the end of the year 1.51 1.08
 17.84 11.25
  
Delayed payment of Principal amount paid beyond appointed date during the entire 
financial year 27.00 16.48 
Interest actually paid under Section 16 of the Act during the entire accounting year - -
Amount of Interest due and payable for the period of delay in making the payment
(which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without
adding interest specified under this Act. 0.33 -
Amount of Interest due and payable for the period (where principal has been paid but interest
under the MSMED Act not paid) 0.06 0.17
Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the year 0.43 0.18
The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in succeeding years,
until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the Micro and
Small Enterprises for the purpose of disallowances as deductible expenditure under
Section 23 of this Act 1.51 1.08

Terms and conditions of the above trade payables:  
Trade payables are non interest bearing and are normally settled on 45-60 day terms  
For terms and conditions with related parties, refer to Note 34

 in Crores

CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018
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Note 15. Other liabilities           

 Non-Current   Current 
 As at As at  As at As at
 March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Others     
   Advance from customers  -     -      19.29   12.59 
   Statutory liabilities  -     -      73.43   75.99 
   Other liabilities  1.72   1.24    1.16   1.24 
  1.72   1.24    93.88   89.82 

Note 16a. Financial Assets
  
 As at As at
 March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Financial Assets - Non Current  
At Fair Value through profit and loss  
Investments *  0.00   0.00 
  
At Amortised Cost  
(a) Loans and Deposits  20.43   13.71 
(b)Other Financial Assets  2.53   3.99 
  22.96   17.70 
  
At Deemed Cost / Subsequent Additions at cost  
Investments in joint ventures  105.54   104.86 
  
Total Non Current Financial Assets (a)  128.50   122.56 
  
  
Financial Assets - Current  
At fair value through profit and loss  
(a)Investments  227.59   367.27 
  
At Amortised Cost  
(a) Loans and Deposits  1.96   11.33 
(b) Cash and Cash Equivalents  83.59   45.25 
(c) Bank balances other than (b) above  121.38   57.20 
(b) Trade receivables  692.40   578.14 
(e) Other financial assets  3.81   4.66 
  
Total Current Financial Assets (b)  1,130.73   1,063.85 
  
Total Financial Assets (a + b)  1,259.23   1,186.41 

 in Crores

 in Crores
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 in Crores
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Note 16b. Financial Liabilities  
  

 As at As at
 March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 

Financial Liabilities - Non Current  
At Amortised Cost  
(a) Borrowings  249.47   262.08
(b) Other Financial Liabilities  7.27   5.59
  
Total Non Current Financial Liabilities (a)  256.74   267.67
   
Financial Liabilities - Current  
At fair value through profit and loss  
Other Financial Liabilities  
-Foreign exchange forward contracts  -     4.11
  
At Amortised Cost  
(a) Borrowings  172.70   144.13
(b) Trade Payables  955.25   761.20
(c) Other financial liabilities  
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings  0.89   0.91
Unpaid Dividends (to be credited to Investor Education and Protection Fund as and when due)  5.54   4.84

 Others  
   Deposits  37.85   37.31
   Capital Creditors  33.51   50.06
   Accrued Employee Liabilities  46.52   35.07
   Other Payables  20.39   22.32
  
Total Current Financial Liabilities (b)  1,272.65   1,059.95

Total Financial Liabilities (a + b)  1,529.39   1,327.62

* Refer Note 41
   

Note 17. Distribution made and proposed   
 
                    

Cash dividends on Equity shares declared and paid:   
Final dividend for  March 31, 2017-    1.75 per share (March 31, 2016  -    1.00 per share)  169.93  97.09 
DDT on final dividend  34.59  19.76 

  204.52  116.85 
Proposed dividends on equity shares:   
Final dividend for March 31, 2018-    1.80 per share (March 31, 2017 -    1.75  per share) 174.78 169.93 
DDT on proposed dividend 35.93  34.59

 210.71  204.52 

As at March 31 2018, proposed dividend on equity shares are subject to approval in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. Pending such approval 
proposed dividend and dividend distribution tax thereon have not been recognised in these financial statements

 in Crores

As at
March 31, 2018

As at
March 31, 2017
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Note 18. Revenue from Operations     

 March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 

Sale of Products (including excise duty) Refer note below  5,232.78  5,033.60  
Other Operating revenue
 Scrap Sales         9.62   9.21 
 Others        39.72   7.64 
Total  5,282.12  5,050.45  
   
  

Note 19. Other Income     
  
 March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Interest Income from financial assets   
Deposits with banks  6.78   4.60

Other non operating income   
 Net gain on sale of mutual fund investments  18.11   26.99

   Fair value gain on mutual fund investments  4.41   2.97
   Foreign Exchange Gain (net)  1.77   1.72
   Others  14.80   18.26
  45.87   54.54

  
Note 20. Cost of materials consumed   
  

 March 31, 2018  March 31, 2017

Raw Materials Consumed
Opening Stocks  247.01    191.30
Add: Purchases  2,356.17    1,998.03
Less: Closing stock  (304.34)   (247.01)
  2,298.84    1,942.32
Packing Material Consumed   
Opening Stocks  18.45    12.92
Add: Purchases  384.15    346.81
Less: Closing stock  (23.30)   (18.45)
  379.30    341.28
   
Cost of materials consumed 2,678.14   2,283.60

Also refer note 39 for expenses on research and development 

Revenue from operations for period up to June 30, 2017 includes excise duty. From July 1,2017 onwards excise duty and most indirect taxes in India have 
been replaced by Goods and Service Tax (GST). The Company collects GST from its customers on behalf of the Government and hence, GST is not includ-
ed in Revenue from operations.Sale of products includes excise duty collected from customers of     116.39 crores  (March 31, 2017:    498.20 crores). Sale 
of products net of excise duty is    5,116.39 crores  (March 31, 2017    4,535.40 crores ). Revenue from operations for periods up to June 30, 2017 includes 
excise duty. In view of the aforesaid change in indirect taxes, Revenue from operations for year ended March 31, 2018 is not comparable with the amount 
reported for the year ended March 31, 2017.
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Note 21. (Increase)/Decrease in inventories of finished goods, work-in-process and stock - in - trade    
 

   March 31, 2018  March 31, 2017

Opening Stock
 Work-in-Process  58.42   49.58
 Finished Goods  531.95   407.42
 Traded goods  67.45   62.89
   657.82  519.89
Closing Stock    

 Work-in-Process  68.54   58.42
    Finished Goods  517.78   531.95
  Traded goods  76.87   67.45
    663.19   657.82
Others  -   (3.00)
(Increase)/Decrease in Excise Duty on Stock of Finished Goods   (94.60)*   15.84
(Increase)/decrease in inventories of finished goods, work-in-process and traded goods   (99.97)   (125.09)

* Includes reversal of excise duty on Inventory as at March 31, 2017. Due to implementation of GST in the current year, there is no excise duty element on  
the inventory as at March 31, 2018     

Note 22. Employee Benefits Expense  
  
 
 March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Salaries and Wages  305.74   263.85 
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds (Refer Note 30)  24.78   19.86 
Expense on Employee Stock Option Scheme (Refer Note 31)  2.36   1.60 
Staff Welfare Expenses  23.70   21.41 
  356.58   306.72 

  
Note 23. Finance Costs  

 March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Interest on debts and borrowings  24.34  16.02
Unwinding of discount on provisions (Refer Note 12)  0.21  0.20
  24.55  16.22

  
Note 24. Depreciation and amortization expense
  
 March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Depreciation of tangible assets (Note 4)  120.45   103.08 
Amortization of intangible assets (Note 4)  3.76   4.97 
  124.21   108.05 
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Note 25. Other Expense  

   March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Freight, octroi and delivery  336.02   320.86
Power and fuel  48.27   43.79
Consumption of stores and spare parts  9.69   7.99
Repairs to plant & machinery  3.77   5.26
Repairs to building 15.29  15.49
Repairs to others  5.25   5.19
Rent (Refer note 32)  53.03   47.30
Rates and taxes  9.48   12.05
Travelling  52.43   47.92
Advertisement and sales promotion expenses  248.73   241.34
Insurance  3.32   3.70
Processing charges  20.67   18.88
Directors' fees  0.02   0.01
Foreign Exchange loss (net)  1.43   -
Commission to Non-Executive Directors  0.45   0.43
Loss on sale/discard of Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets  0.01   0.35
Audit fees (Refer note 25.1)  0.82   0.69
CSR expenditure (Refer note 25.2)  10.43   8.18
Miscellaneous expenses # (Refer note 39)  173.09   155.24
   992.20   934.67

  
# Bad debts written off     8.43  crores ( 31 March 2017    8.21 crores)  
 
Note 25.1  Auditor's Remuneration  
  

   March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

As Auditor:  
      Audit fees  0.65  0.46 
      Tax audit fee  0.05  0.04 
Miscellaneous Certificates and Other Matters  0.09  0.16 
Reimbursement of expenses  0.03  0.03 
    0.82  0.69 

  
Note 25.2 Details of CSR expenditure:  

  
           March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

a) Gross amount required to be spent by the group  during the year  10.43  8.45

b) Amount spent during the year: - - 
   

(i) Construction/Acquistion of an asset - -
(ii) Purposes other than (i) above  10.43  8.18
Total  10.43  8.18

Corporate Social Responsibility  expensed    10.43 Crores (2016-17:     8.18 Crores) includes Company’s own programme for promoting employment 
enhancing vocational skill named 'iTrain' 
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Note 26. Exceptional Items
  ` 
   March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Profit on transfer of Company's paint division relating to 4 wheeler passenger cars and SUVs, -     44.20
3 wheelers and related ancillaries  
   -     44.20

  
During the previous year In the consolidated statement, as per the IND AS, the realized gain on slump sale  to  Berger Nippon Paint Automotive Coatings 
Private Limited (previously known as BNB Coatings India Private Limited) , an existing Joint Venture between Berger Paints India Limited and Nippon Paints 
Automotive Coatings Co.  Limited , Japan to the extent of 51% being borne by a third party investor has been recognised under the equity method in the share 
of the consolidated profit for the quarter, with a corresponding reduction of 49 % in the carrying amount of the investment in the consolidated balance sheet
  
   
Note 27. Earnings Per Share (EPS)   

   
Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Holding Company by the weighted average number 
of equity shares outstanding during the year.   

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the Holding Company by the weighted average number of equity 
shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity 
shares into equity shares.    
   
The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:   
   

   March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Net Profit after tax for calculation of Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share (    in crores) (I)  460.83   473.67 
Weighted average number of shares (II)   
- Basic  97,10,00,633   97,09,18,392 
- Diluted (refer note below)  97,12,47,574      97,10,59,627  

Earning per equity share [nominal value of    1 per share] [(I)/(II)]   
- Basic  4.75   4.88  

     - Diluted  4.74   4.88  
 
Effect of dilution:   
Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating Basic Earnings Per Share  97,10,00,633   97,09,18,392  
Dilution - Stock options granted under ESOP  246,941   141,235  
Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating diluted EPS  97,12,47,574   97,10,59,627  
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Note 28. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions       
       
The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of 
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions 
and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.  
     
Judgements, Estimates and assumptions       

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a 
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Group based its assumptions and 
estimates on parameters available when the Financial Statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, howev-
er, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Group. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when 
they occur. In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, estimates and assumptions, which 
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the Financial Statements.       

Defined Employer  Benefit plans       

The cost and the present value of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment leave encashment benefit are determined using actuarial 
valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in future. These include the determination 
of appropriate discount rate, estimating future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, 
a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. For further details refer 
Note 30.       
       
Fair value measurement of financial instruments and guarantees       

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the Balance Sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, 
their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the DCF model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where 
possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as 
liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments. See Note 36 
for further disclosures.       
       
Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment       

Property, plant and equipment represent a significant proportion of the asset base of the Group. The charge in respect of periodic depreciation is derived after 
determining an estimate of an asset’s expected useful life and the expected residual value at the end of its life. The useful lives and residual values of group's 
assets are determined by management at the time the asset is acquired and reviewed periodically, including at each financial year end. The lives are based on 
historical experience with similar assets as well as anticipation of future events, which may impact their life, such as changes in technology.   
     
Decommissioning Liability       

Decommissioning Liability has been recognised for items of property plant and equipment built or installed on specified leasehold land the terms of which 
said leases include decommissioning of such assets on expiry of the lease prior to handing over to the lessor. The decommissioning costs as at the end of the 
lease period have been estimated based on current costs by the Holding Company's own technical experts and have been escalated to the end of the leasehold 
period using suitable inflation factors. The said esclated cost as at the end of the lease period is now discounted to the present value of such liability by 
applying holding company's weighted average cost of capital.       

Impairment test for Goodwill       

a)    Goodwill from Bolix SA
       Goodwill of Rs. 199.63 crores had arisen on acquisition of Bolix SA, a wholly owned step down subsidiary of the Company in an earlier year. The  
 Group assesses the goodwill for any indication of impairment at annual basis. The Group is in the process of reorganisation of its business operations in  
 that Country and based on such plan, no further impairment has been considered necessary.      

b) Goodwill from Saboo Coatings Private Limited        
 During the  year, the company has acquired `Saboo Coatings Private Limited` and recorded Goodwill on acquisition of the same amounting
 to Rs. 64.18 crores.       
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Note 29. Information related to subsidiaries and joint ventures    

The subsidiaries considered in the consolidated financial statements are as follows:    

                                    Country of  % voting   % voting       
                                       Name of Company Incorporation power as at power as at Accounting period
  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Direct subsidiaries    
Berger Jenson & Nicholson (Nepal) Private Limited Nepal 100% 100% 15th March - 14th 
    March
Beepee Coatings Private Limited India 100% 100% 1st April - 31st 
    March
Berger Paints (Cyprus) Limited Cyprus 100% 100% 1st January - 31st 
    December
Lusako Trading Limited Cyprus 100% 100% 1st January - 31st 
    December
Indirect subsidiaries    

Berger Paints Overseas Limited [100% Subsidiary of Berger Russia 100% 100% 1st January - 31st
Paints (Cyprus) Limited ]    December
    Bolix S.A. (100% Subsidiary of Lusako Trading Limited) Poland 100% 100% 1st January - 31st
    December

Build-Trade BIS sp. z.o.o. (100% Subsidiary of Bolix S.A.) Poland 100% 100% 1st January - 31st
    December
Bolix UKRAINA OOO (99% Subsidiary of Bolix S.A.) Ukraine 99% 99% 1st January - 31st
    December
Soltherm External Insulations Limited (100% Subsidiary of United Kingdom 100% 100% 1st January - 31st
Bolix S.A.)    December

Soltherm Insolations Thermique Exterieure SAS (100% France 100% 100% 1st January - 31st
Subsidiary of Bolix S.A.)    December

Surefire Management Services Ltd (“SMS”).  United Kingdom  75% NA  1st January - 31st   
    December

Joint Ventures    

Berger Becker Coatings Private Limited India 48.98% 48.98% 1st April - 31st
    March
Berger Nippon Paint Automotive Coatings Private Limited India 49.00% 49.00% 1st April - 31st
(Formerly known as BNB Coatings Private Limited)     March

There are no material transactions/events that have occurred between December 31/March 14 and March 31 which might have a material impact on the 
profitability or financial position on these consolidated financial statements.
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Note 30. Gratuity and other post employment benefit plans    

(I) Defined benefit plans    
(a) Gratuity    
(i)The following table summarizes the components of net defined benefit expense toward gratuity recognised in the Statement of Profit and loss and OCI 
and the funded status and amounts recognised in the Balance Sheet.    

 
                                                            Particulars March 31, 2018          March 31, 2017

Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligation
Present value of defined benefit obligation as at year beginning  34.08  30.80
Current Service Cost  4.63  1.82
Interest Cost  2.51  2.18
Past Service cost (Plan amendments)  1.65
Remeasurements (gains)/losses    
-Actuarial (gains)/losses arising from changes in demographic assumptions  0.01  - 
-Actuarial (gains)/losses arising from changes in financial assumptions  (1.76)  2.06
-Actuarial (gains)/losses arising from changes in experience adjustments  (0.09)  0.11
Benefits paid  (3.07)  (2.89)
Present value of defined benefit  obligation as at year end  37.96  34.08

Changes in fair value of plan assets   
Fair value of plan assets as at year beginning  29.68  27.30
Interest income  3.61  2.18
Remeasurements (gains)/losses   
-Return on plan assets, (excluding amount included in net interest expense)  (0.09)  (0.25)
-Actuarial (gains)/losses arising from changes in financial assumptions (0.02)  -  
Employer's contribution 3.01  3.34
Benefits paid  (3.07)  (2.89) 
Fair Value of Plan Assets as at year end  33.12  29.68

Amounts Recognised in the Balance Sheet   
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the year end  37.96  34.08 
Fair value of the plan assets at the year end  33.12  29.68 
(Liability)/Asset Recognised in the Balance Sheet  (4.84)  (4.40) 
    
    
    
   
                                                                  Particulars 2017 - 2018     2016 - 2017  

Expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss:    
Current service cost  6.28  1.82   
Net interest cost/(income)  (1.10)  0.00   
Net cost recognised in the statement of profit and loss 5.18  1.82   

    
                                                                  Particulars 2017 - 2018 2016 - 2017 

Expense recognised in the Other Comprehensive Income:    
Remeasurements (gains)/losses  (1.73)  2.42    
Net cost recognised in the statement of profit and loss  (1.73)  2.42   

(ii) The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligations for the Group's plans are shown below   
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Significant Actuarial Assumptions March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017  

Discount Rate  7.65% 7.30%  

Employee Turnover Age wise 0.10%-0.50% Age wise 0.10%-0.50%  

Mortality Rate Indian Assured Lives Indian Assured Lives
 (Mortality 2006-08 modified) Ult (Mortality 2006-08 modified) Ult 

The estimates of future salary increases considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as 
supply and demand in the employment market    
Assumptions regarding future mortality experience are set in accordance with the published statistics by the Life Insurance Corporation of India  
The discount rate is based on the government securities yield    
The Group assesses these assumptions with its projected long-term plans of growth and prevalent industry standards.    

(iii) Major category of Plan Assets of the fair value of the total plan assets are as follows:-    
    

 March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017  

Assets under scheme of insurance  100% 100%  
    
    
(iv) A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions are as shown below    
    

 March 31, 2018  March 31, 2017 
Assumptions Discount rate  Discount rate 

Sensitivity Level 1% increase 1% decrease 1% increase 1% decrease
Impact on defined benefit obligation  (4.20)    4.92   (3.05)    3.58 
    
 March 31, 2018  March 31, 2017 
Assumptions Future Salary increase  Future Salary increase 
Sensitivity Level 1% increase 1% decrease 1% increase 1% decrease

Impact on defined benefit obligation  4.91   (4.27)    3.08   (2.84)  
    

Sensitivity for significant actuarial assumptions is computed by varying one actuarial assumption used for the valuation of the defined benefit obligation by 
one percentage, keeping all other actuarial assumptions constant. The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not 
change compared to the prior period.    
    
(v) Risk Exposure    
Since the employees gratuity fund is a defined benefit plan the liability to be provided will be subject to interest rate risk since the future valuation of 
benefit depends upon the yield of government bonds for matching maturities.    
    
(vi) Defined Benefit Liability and Employer Contributions    
Since the employees gratuity fund is a defined benefit plan maintained by Life Insurance Corporation of India the return is generated from a pool of assets 
invested by them and any deficit in the liability and return on plan assets  is funded by the Group on a yearly basis
In 2018-19, the Company expects to contribute    4.84 crores (March 31, 2017:    4.40 crores) to gratuity.
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(vii) Maturity profile of the defined benefit obligation 

 March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Weighted Average duration of the defined benefit obligation 9-12 Years  9-12 Years 

   Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting period)  1.04   0.95   

   Between 2 and 5 years  13.16   10.59   

   Between 5 and 10 years  21.67   15.44   
    
(b) Provident Fund    
Provident Fund for certain eligible employees is administered by the Holding Company through "Berger Paints Provident Fund (Covered)" as per the 
provisions of the Employees' Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952. The Rules for such a trust provide that in a provident fund set up by 
the employer,  any shortfall in the rate of interest on member contributions as compared to the relevant rate of interest declared by the Goverment of India for 
this purpose will have   to be met by the employer. Such  provident fund would in effect be a defined benefit plan in accordance with the requirement of Ind 
AS 19 - Employee Benefits. 
Based on valuation of related defined benefit obligation and plan assets at the year end carried out by an independent actuary no provision has been considered 
necessary in this regard in these financial statements. Key actuarial assumptions are as follows     
 

 March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Discount rate 7.65% 7.30% 
Expected rate of return on Plan Assets 8.55% 8.65%  

    
(c) Other Defined Benefit Plans    
The amounts for "Other Defined Benefit Plans" are below the rounding off norm adopted by the Group (refer Note 41) and hence the disclosures as required 
under Ind AS 19 - "Employee Benefits" have not been given.    
    
(II) Defined contribution plans    
During the year, the Group has recognised the following amounts in the Statement of Profit and Loss for defined contribution plans:   
 
    

 March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 

Provident and Family Pension Fund (applicable for eligible employees whose provident
fund accounts are maintained with the Regional Provident Fund Commissioner)  3.28  2.58  

Superannuation Fund 1.99 1.95  
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Note 31. Employee Stock Option Plan    
    

Berger Paints India Limited Employee Stock Option Scheme, 2010    
The Berger Paints India Limited – Employee Stock Option Plan  [‘the Plan’] was approved at the Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 29th July, 
2010. The objective of the plan is to:                         
1) Attract, retain and motivate Employees, 
2) Create and share wealth with the Employees, 
3) Recognise and reward employee performance with shares and 
4) Encourage employees to align individual performance with the objective of the Company. The terms and conditions of the Plan is reproduced below:
a) “Vesting Date” means the date on and from which the Option vests with the Participant and thereby becomes exercisable.
b) “Exercise Date” means the date on which the Participant exercises his Vested Options and in case of partial exercise shall mean each date on which the 
Participant exercises part of his Vested Options. 
c) “Vesting Period” means the period during which the Vesting of the Option granted to the Participant in pursuance of the Plan takes place.  
d) “Exercise Period” means a period of 3 years from the Vesting Date as defined above of the Plan within which the Vested Options can be exercised in 
pursuance of the Plan.                                                                                     
e) The Exercise Price of an Option shall be the face value of Rs. 2/- per Share. However, due to sub-division of Company’s share from F.V of    2/- to    1/- 
w.e.f from 9th January, 2015, the Compensation & Nomination & Remuneration Committee made fair and reasonable adjustments with respect to ESOP’s 
earlier approved and granted by the Compensation & Nomination & Remuneration Committee.
f) Cashless exercise of the Options are not permitted under the Plan. Participants to pay full Aggregate Exercise Price upon the Exercise of the 
Vested Options.
g) Subject to Participant’s continued employment as defined in Clause 14 of the Plan the Unvested Options shall vest with the Participant automatically in 
accordance with the following schedule : i) 33% of the total Options granted, rounded up to the nearest whole number, shall vest on the first anniversary of 
the Grant Date; ii) further 33% of the total Options granted, rounded up to the nearest whole number,  shall vest on the second anniversary of the Grant Date 
and iii) balance 34% of the total Options granted, rounded up to the whole number such that the total number of Options vested shall add up to 100%, shall 
vest on the third anniversary of the Grant Date.
h) The Date of grant of options :1st August, 2010.
   
Berger Paints India Limited Employee Stock Option Plan 2016    

The Berger Paints India Limited – Employee Stock Option Plan 2016 [‘the Plan’] was approved at the Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 3rd 
August, 2016. The objective of the plan is to:
1) Attract, retain and motivate Employees, 
2) Create and share wealth with the Employees, 
3) Recognise and reward employee performance with shares and 
4) Encourage employees to align individual performance with the objective of the Company. The terms and conditions of the Plan is reproduced below:
a) “Vesting Date” means the date on and from which the Option vests with the Participant and thereby becomes exercisable.
b) “Exercise Date” means the date on which the Participant exercises his Vested Options and in case of partial exercise shall mean each date on which the 
Participant exercises part of his Vested Options. 
c) “Vesting Period” means the period during which the Vesting of the Option granted to the Participant in pursuance of the Plan takes place.  
d) “Exercise Period” means a period of 3 years from the Vesting Date as defined above of the Plan within which the Vested Options can be exercised in 
pursuance of the Plan.
e) The Exercise Price of an Option shall be the face value of    1/- per Share
f) Cashless exercise of the Options are not permitted under the Plan. Participants to pay full Aggregate Exercise Price upon the Exercise of the
Vested Options.
g) Subject to Participant’s continued employment as defined in Clause 14 of the Plan the Unvested Options shall vest with the Participant automatically in 
accordance with the following schedule : i) 33% of the total Options granted, rounded up to the nearest whole number, shall vest on the first anniversary of 
the Grant Date; ii) further 33% of the total Options granted, rounded up to the nearest whole number,  shall vest on the second anniversary of the Grant Date 
and iii) balance 34% of the total Options granted, rounded up to the whole number such that the total number of Options vested shall add up to 100%, shall vest 
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on the third anniversary of the Grant Date.
h) The Date of grant of options : 9th November, 2016.
    

   As at As at
   March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 

a. Number of Stock Options outstanding (ESOP  Plan 2010: Grant I)  - -
 Number of Stock Options outstanding (ESOP Plan 2010: Grant II)  - -
 Number of Stock Options outstanding (ESOP Plan 2010: Grant III)  1,390 1,390
 Number of Stock Options outstanding (ESOP Plan 2010: Grant IV)  1,172 1,172
 Total Number of Options in force (Additional grant Options vested in lieu of bonus

 issues  from ESOP 2010 balances on 21.11.2016)  1,025  1,025
 Number of Stock Options outstanding (ESOP Plan 2016 : Grant I)  88,022  138,270
 Number of Stock Options outstanding (ESOP Plan 2016: Grant II)  156,384  -   
   2,47,993 1,41,857
b. Option granted during the year   
 ESOP  Plan 2016: Grant II    1,61,184 -
 ESOP  Plan 2016: Grant I: 1,40,811 options 34653 Additional Grant on 21.11.2016 in

 lieu of bonus issue from  ESOP 2010 balance shares
   -  1,75,464
c Number of Options vested (ESOP Plan 2010: Grant I)  - -
 Number of Options vested (ESOP Plan 2010: Grant II)  - -
 Number of Options vested (ESOP Plan 2010: Grant III)  - -
 Number of Options vested (ESOP Plan 2010: Grant IV)  - 84,280
 Number of Options vested (ESOP Plan 2016: Grant I)  45,397 -
 Number of Options vested (ESOP Plan 2016: Grant II)   - -
 Number of Additional grant Options vested in lieu of bonus issues  from ESOP Plan 2010

 balances on 21.11.2016  -  34,653
    45,397  1,18,933
d. Number of Options exercised (ESOP Plan 2010: Grant I)  - -
 Number of Options exercised (ESOP Plan 2010: Grant II)  - -
 Number of Options exercised (ESOP Plan 2010: Grant III) (834 options exercised 

 during 2016-17 were vested during the year 2015-16)  - 834
 Number of Options exercised (ESOP Plan 2010: Grant IV)  - 83,108
 Number of Options exercised (ESOP Plan 2016: Grant I)   44,781 -
 Number of Additional grant Options exercised in lieu of bonus issues  from ESOP Plan

 2010 balances on 21.11.2016  -  33,628
   44,781 1,17,570
e. Number of Shares arising on exercise (ESOP Plan 2010: Grant I)  - -
 Number of Shares arising on exercise (ESOP Plan 2010: Grant II)  - -
 Number of Shares arising on exercise (ESOP Plan 2010: Grant III)   - 834
 Number of Shares arising on exercise (ESOP Plan 2010: Grant IV)  - 83,108
 Number of Shares arising on exercise (ESOP Plan 2016: Grant I)   44,781 -
 Number of Additional shares arising as result on exercise from ESOP Plan 2010

 balances on 21.11.2016   -     33,628
   44,781 1,17,570
f. Number of Options lapsed (ESOP Plan 2010: Grant I)  - -
 Number of Options lapsed (ESOP Plan 2010: Grant II)  - -
 Number of Options lapsed (ESOP Plan 2010: Grant III)  - -
 Number of Options lapsed (ESOP Plan 2010: Grant IV)  - 1,172
 Number of Options lapsed (ESOP Plan 2016: Grant I)  5,467  2,541
 Number of Options lapsed (ESOP Plan 2016: Grant II)  4,800  -   
   10,267 3,713
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g. Variation of terms of Option  None during the period None during the period
    
 h. Total Number of Options in force (ESOP  Plan 2010: Grant I)  Nil Nil
 Total Number of Options in force (ESOP  Plan 2010: Grant II)  Nil Nil
 Total Number of Options in force (ESOP  Plan 2010: Grant III)  1,390  1,390
 Total Number of Options in force (ESOP  Plan 2010: Grant IV)  1,172  1,172
 Total Number of Options in force (Additional grant Options vested in lieu of bonus
 issues  from ESOP Plan 2010 balances on 21.11.2016)  1,025  1,025
 Total Number of Options in force (ESOP Plan 2016: Grant I)  88,022  1,38,270
 Total Number of Options in force (ESOP Plan 2016: Grant II)  1,56,384  -   
         2,47,993 1,41,857
 i. Weighted Average exercise price of the Share Options   
 Outstanding at the beginning of the year  1 1
 Granted during the year  1 1
 Forfeited during the year  - -
 Exercised during the year  1 1
 Expired during the year  1 1
 Outstanding at the end of the year  1 1
 Exercisable at the end of the period  1 1
    
 j. Weighted Average share price of options exercised during the year on the date of
 exercise      1 1
    
 k. Weighted Average fair value of the Options granted during the year   
 i. ESOP Plan 2016 Grant I (Fair value as on 31.03.2018)  NA 236.35
 ii. ESOP Plan 2016 Grant II (Fair value as on 31.03.2018)  250.74 NA
 iii. Additional grant in lieu of bonus issues  from ESOP Plan 2010 balances of Grant III
 and IV (Fair value as on 31.03.2017)  NA 238.99
 l. A description of the method and significant assumptions used during the year to estimate the fair value of Options granted, including the   
 following weighted average information:-   
 The Black Scholes Option Pricing Model for dividend paying stock has been used to compute the fair value of the Options. The significant   
 assumptions are:   
 i. Date of grant  
  a.  ESOP Plan 2016  09.11.2016 09.11.2016
  b. Additional grant in lieu of bonus issues from ESOP Plan 2010 balances 21.11.2016 21.11.2016
 ii. Weighted average share price  256.70  242.10 
 iii. Exercise Price   1  1
 iv. Risk Free Interest rate  7.40% 6.69%
 v. Expected Life:   
  a. For options vested on 01.08.2015  0.33 years 1.33 years
  b. For options vested on 01.08.2016  1.33 years 2.33 years
  c. For options vested on 09.11.2017  2.61 years 3 years from the vesting day
  d. For options yet to be vested  3 years from the vesting day 3 years from the vesting day
    
 vi. Expected Volatility  20% 26%
 vii. Expected dividend yield  0.67% 0.69%
 viii. Weighted Average fair value as on grant date  
  a. ESOP Plan 2016 (Grant date 09.11.2016)  229.10  229.10
  b. Additional grant in lieu of bonus issues from ESOP Plan 2010 balances (Grant date
     21.11.2016)   218.21 218.21
  c. ESOP Plan 2016 (Grant II)- 09.11.2017  247.75 NA
 ix.The price of the underlying share in the market at the time of option grant: 
  a. ESOP Plan 2010: Grant-III- 31.07.2012   138.70  138.70
  b. ESOP Plan 2010: Grant IV- 31.07.2013  205.45 205.45
  c. ESOP Plan 2016: Grant I- 08.11.2016  234.85 234.85
  d. Additional grant on 21.11.2016 in lieu of bonus issues from ESOP Plan 2010
      balances- 18.11.2016  187.10 187.10
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 e. ESOP Plan 2016 (Grant II)- 09.11.2017   253.70 NA
x.          Time to maturity  
 a. For options vested on 01.08.2015 (Grant III)  0.33 years 1.33 years
  b. For options vested on 01.08.2016 (Grant IV)  1.33 years 2.33 years
 c. Additional grants vested on 21.11.2016   0.33 years and 1.33 years 1.33 years and 2.33 years
 d. ESOP Plan 2016 (Grant I) vested on 08.11.2017 2.61 years NA
 e. For options yet to be vested 3 years from the vesting day 3 years from the vesting day
    Expected volatility during the expected term of the ESOP is based on historical volatility of the observed market prices of the Company's publicly traded 
equity shares during a period equivalent to the expected term of the ESOP.   
The fair values of our ESOP are based on the market value of our stock on the date of grant.   

m. The following table summarizes information about Share Options outstanding as at year end:-   
         As at
  March 31, 2018  
 Range of exercise prices No. of options outstanding Weighted average remaining  Weighted average exercise price
 per option (  )    contractual life  (  )
   1    1,946  0.33 years     1
   1    1,641  1.33 years     1
   1    88,022  2.61 years     1
   1    1,56,384  Yet to be vested         1
 

     

Note 32. Leases    
Operating lease — Group as lessee     
The Group's leasing arrangement are in the nature of cancellable operating leases. The Group has taken various depots, offices etc. on Operating Leases. These 
leases have a life of between 1 year to 20 years (March 31, 2017 - 1 year to 20 year) which is renewable by mutual consent of concerned parties. No contingent 
rent is payable by the Holding Company in respect of the above leases. Some of the lease agreements have price escalation clauses. Related lease rentals have 
been disclosed under the head "Rent" in Note 25 of Statement of Profit and Loss. There are no restrictions placed upon the Holding Company by such leases.
Operating lease — Group as lessor     
The Holding Company has given Color bank (tinting machines) on operating lease to its dealers.The Holding Company enters into 3- 5 years cancellable lease 
agreements. However the corresponding lease rentals may be receivable for a shorter period or may be waived off/refunded on acheivement of certain sales 
targets by the concerned dealers. The minimum aggregate lease payments to be received in future is considered as    Nil. Accordingly the disclosure of the 
minimum lease payments receivable at the Balance sheet date is not made.The amounts received from customers pending to be refunded back are recognised 
as liabilities and are included in "Deposits" under "Other financial liabilities" in Note 11. Also refer note 4.  
Finance lease — Group as lessee     
During the year ended March 31, 2018, Bolix S.A, an indirect subsidiary of the Holding company, has started the leasing of 25 cars, and three leasing 
agreements for dispensing and mixing devices which were classified as finance leases and the value of all  cars in net finance lease and 122 pieces of dispens-
ing and mixing devices as at March 31, 2018 amounting  to     6.06 crores. During the year ended March 31, 2017, Bolix S.A, an indirect subsidiary of the 
Holding Company, has started the leasing of 13 cars, which were classified as finance leases and the value of all 35 cars in net finance lease as at March 31, 
2017 amounts to    2.63 crores.     
Minimum lease payments for all cars used under the finance lease agreements are as follows:     
 
 March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Upto 1 year 1.90   1.48 
From 1 year to 5 years 3.73   1.24 
 5.63   2.72 

     
The total amount of the minimum lease payments, net of finance charges (interest) is consistent with the level of commitments from the lease agreements 
    

  
 
  As at
  March 31, 2017  
 Range of exercise prices No. of options outstanding Weighted average remaining  Weighted average exercise price
 per option (  )    contractual life  (  )

   1    1,946  1.33 years     1
   1    1,641  2.33 years     1
   1    1,38,270  Yet to be vested     1
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 in Crores

 

 March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Minimum Lease payments 5.63  2.60
Finance Charges (Interest) (0.36)  (0.11)
Lease liabilities 5.27  2.49

Note 33. Commitment and Contingencies    
      

 As at          As at
 March 31, 2018          March 31, 2017

a.   Commitments
 i) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital expenditure and not  39.77  37.42

     provided for (net of advances)   

b.     Contingent Liabilities    

 ii) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts:    

      Income Tax  3.39  19.20

      Sales Tax 30.63  29.49

      Excise Duty & Customs  27.39  28.78

  61.41  77.47
 The Group has been advised by its lawyers that none of the claims are tenable and is therefore contesting the same and hence has not been  

 provided for in the books. The future cash flows on account of the above cannot be determined unless the judgements /decisions are received from  
 the ultimate judicial forums. No reimbursements is expected to arise to the Group in repect of above cases. 

c. i) Outstanding Bank guarantees  9.89   34.24
 ii) Corporate bank guarantee 258.93 253.18
Immovable assets aggregating    236.40 crores  (March 31, 2017:    232.95 crores)  have been mortgaged by deposit of title deeds in favour of BNP Paribas 
& Standard Chartered towards loan extended to its subsidiary, M/s Lusako Trading Limited a Subsidiary of the Company. The loan is utilised by the said 
subsidiary for its business purposes.

Note 34(a). Disclosure in respect of Related Parties pursuant to Ind AS 24        

List of Related Parties         

 I. Holding and Subsidiary Companies:        

 Name of related parties   Nature of relationship    

 U K Paints (India) Private Limited   Holding Company     
 Berger Jenson & Nicholson (Nepal) Private Limited   Wholly Owned Subsidiary    
 Beepee Coatings Private Limited   Wholly Owned Subsidiary    
 Berger Paints (Cyprus) Limited   Wholly Owned Subsidiary    
 Lusako Trading Limited   Wholly Owned Subsidiary    
 Saboo Coatings Private Limited   Wholly Owned Subsidiary (acquired after close of business hours
     on 5th June, 2017)
 Berger Paints Overseas Limited   Wholly Owned Subsidiary of Berger Paints (Cyprus) Limited 
 Bolix S.A.   Wholly Owned Subsidiary of Lusako Trading Limited
 BUILD-TRADE BIS sp. z o.o   Wholly Owned  Subsidiary of Bolix S.A.   
 Bolix UKRAINA sp.z o.o   Wholly Owned  Subsidiary of Bolix S.A.   
 Soltherm External Insulations Limited   Wholly Owned  Subsidiary of Bolix S.A.   
 Soltherm Insolations Thermique Exterieure   Wholly Owned  Subsidiary of Bolix S.A.   
 BJN Paints India Limited    Erstwhile wholly owned step down subsidiary which merged into  
     the Company [refer note 34 (c)]    
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March 31, 2018
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 in Crores

 
 
II.  Other related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year:      
a) Key Management Personnel        
 Name of related parties   Nature of relationship    
 Mr. K S Dhingra   Director     
 Mr. G S Dhingra   Director     
 Mr. Kanwardip Singh Dhingra   Whole time director and relative of Mr G S Dhingra  
 Mrs. Rishma Kaur   Whole time director and relative of Mr K S Dhingra  
 Mr. Abhijit Roy   Managing Director & CEO    
 Mr. Srijit Dasgupta   Director Finance & Chief Financial Officer   
 Mr. Aniruddha Sen   Senior Vice President & Company Secretary   
 Mr. Kamal Ranjan Das   Independent Director     
 Mr. Naresh Gujral   Independent Director     
 Mr. Dhirendra Swarup   Independent Director     
 Mr. Gopal Krishna Pillai   Independent Director     

b) Others        

 Name of related parties  Nature of relationship    
 Berger Becker Coatings Private Limited  Joint Venture of the Company    
 Berger Nippon Paint Automotive Coatings Private Limited  Joint Venture of the Company    
 Jenson & Nicholson (Asia) Limited  Fellow Subsidiary     
 Berger Paints (Bangaladesh) Limited  Fellow Subsidiary     
 Citland Commercial Credits Limited  Fellow Subsidiary     
 Wang Investment  Finance Private Limited  Fellow Subsidiary     
 Kanwar Properties Private Limited  Fellow Subsidiary     
 Berger Paints Provident Fund (Covered)  Post-employment benefit plan of the Company  
 Berger Paints Officers (Non-Management Category) Superannuation Fund  Post-employment benefit plan of the Company  
 Berger Paints Management Staff Superannuation Fund  Post-employment benefit plan of the Company  
 BAICL Employees Superannuation Fund  Post-employment benefit plan of the Company  
 BAICL Employees Gratuity Fund  Post-employment benefit plan of the Company  
 Seaward Packaging Private Limited  Entity controlled by Key Managerial Personnel  
 Flex Properties Private Limited  Entity controlled by Key Managerial Personnel  
 Wazir Estates Private Limited  Entity controlled by Key Managerial Personnel  
 Bigg Investment & Finance Private Limited  Entity controlled by Key Managerial Personnel  
 KSD Family Trust  Mr K S Dhingra - Settlor Trustee    
 GBS Dhingra Family Trust  Mr G S Dhingra - Settlor Trustee    
 Mrs. Meeta Dhingra  Spouse of  Mr K S Dhingra    
 Mrs. Vinu Dhingra  Spouse of Mr G S Dhingra    
 Mrs. Jessima Kumar  Daughter of  Mr K S Dhingra    
 Ms. Dipti Dhingra  Daughter of  Mr K S Dhingra    
 Mrs. Sunaina Kohli  Daughter of Mr G S Dhingra    
 Mrs. Anshna Sawhney  Daughter of Mr G S Dhingra

   
Note 34 (b)   

A. During the year the following transactions were carried out with the related parties in the ordinary course of business:   

Transaction Related Party  March 31, 2018      March 31, 2017 
Sale of Goods Berger Becker Coatings Private Limited  1.57   1.09 
 Berger Nippon Paint Automotive Coatings Private Limited  18.67   15.94 
 Wazir Estates Private Limited  0.04   0.07 
 Berger Paints (Bangaladesh) Limited  0.70   0.48 
 U K Paints (India) Private Limited  0.40   0.40 
 Mr. K S Dhingra *  0.03   0.00 
 Mr. G S Dhingra *  0.00   0.00 
 Seaward Packaging Private Limited *  0.00   0.00 
Royalty Income Berger Paints (Bangaladesh) Limited  0.29   0.10  
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Purchase of Goods U K Paints (India) Private Limited  68.15  62.24
 Berger Becker Coatings Private Limited  -  0.16
 Seaward Packaging Private Limited  37.88  31.20
 Berger Nippon Paint Automotive Coatings Private Limited  0.71  0.07
Processing Charges U K Paints (India) Private Limited  18.57  15.75
 Seaward Packaging Private Limited  - 0.04
Rent Expenses U K Paints (India) Private Limited  3.94 3.84
 Flex Properties Private Limited  0.18 0.16
 Kanwar Properties Private Limited  0.38 -
 Mr. K S Dhingra  0.24 0.19
 Mr. G S Dhingra  0.24 0.19
Security Deposit Given U K Paints (India) Private Limited  - 0.05
Security Deposit Refunded U K Paints (India) Private Limited  0.11 -
Processing Income Berger Nippon Paint Automotive Coatings Private Limited  2.22 1.38
Rendering of Manpower Services U K Paints (India) Private Limited  0.02 -
 Berger Becker Coatings Private Limited  0.16 0.20
Business Transfer in relation to the 4 Berger Nippon Paint Automotive Coatings Private Limited  - 90.00
wheelers passenger cars and SUV, 
3 wheelers and related ancillaries
(Refer Note No 26) 
Contribution to Provident Fund Berger Paints Provident Fund (Covered) 13.26 12.70
Contribution to Gratuity Fund BAICL Employees Gratuity Fund  0.05 0.11
Contribution to Superannuation Fund Berger Paints Officers (Non-Management Category)
 Superannuation Fund  0.58 0.64
 Berger Paints Management Staff Superannuation Fund 1.28 1.34
 BAICL Employees Superannuation Fund 0.08 0.06
Directors Commission & Fees Mr. K S Dhingra 0.10 0.10
 Mr. G S Dhingra 0.10 0.10
 Mr. Kamal Ranjan Das 0.03 0.03
 Mr. Naresh Gujral 0.07 0.07
 Mr. Dhirendra Swarup 0.07 0.07
 Mr. Gopal Krishna Pillai 0.07 0.07
Equity Contribution Berger Nippon Paint Automotive Coatings Private Limited  - 89.67
Key Management Personnel  Mr. Abhijit Roy 2.58  2.20
Compensation Mr. Srijit Dasgupta 1.40  1.29
 Mr. Aniruddha Sen 0.94  0.88
 Mr. Kanwardip Singh Dhingra 0.23  0.26
 Mrs. Rishma Kaur 0.23  0.27
Dividend Payment U K Paints (India) Private Limited 85.15  47.25
 Jenson & Nicholson (Asia) Limited 24.61  14.07
 Others 17.66  11.52

B. Balances outstanding at the year end (including commitments):   
Outstanding  Related Party March 31, 2018   March 31, 2017 
 Payable U K Paints (India) Private Limited  24.46  21.31
 Seaward Packaging Private Limited  9.45  7.12
 Berger Paints Officers (Non-Management Category)
 Superannuation Fund  - 0.05
 Berger Paints Management Staff Superannuation Fund  -  0.11
 Flex Properties Private Limited *  0.00  -
 Wazir Estates Private Limited *  0.00  (0.02)
 Kanwar Properties Private Limited  0.08  0.08
 Mr. Abhijit Roy  0.44  0.37
 Mr. Srijit Dasgupta  0.06  -
 Mr. K S Dhingra *  0.00  0.00
 Mr. G S Dhingra *  0.00 0.00
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% of
consolidated 

assets

% of
consolidated

profit and loss

% of
consolidated

OCI

% of
consolidated

TCI
Amount Amount Amount Amount
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Receivable Berger Becker Coatings Private Limited  1.52   0.20 
 Berger Nippon Paint Automotive Coatings Private Limited  5.40   1.89 
 Berger Paints (Bangaladesh) Limited  0.67   0.84 
Corporate guarantee outstanding  Berger Becker Coatings Private Limited  10.21   - 
   

C. Details of remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel is given below   
   

Particulars         March 31, 2018   March 31, 2017
     - Short-term employee benefits   4.80   4.32 
     - Post employment benefits   0.51   0.36 
     - Share based payment   0.07   0.21 
   5.38   4.89 

   
The amounts disclosed in the table are the amounts recognised as an expense during the reporting period related to key management personnel. No share 
options have been granted to the non-executive members of the Board of Directors under this scheme. Refer to Note 31 for further details  of the scheme. 
  
* Refer Note 41   
Notes:   
a) Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties:   
The transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions. Outstanding balances at the year-end 
are unsecured and interest free and settlement occurs in cash except unless otherwise mentioned.

Note 34 (c)   
During the year, National Company Law Tribunal has approved the Scheme of amalgamation (‘the Scheme’) between the Company and BJN Paints India 
Limited (‘BJN’), India, a wholly owned step down subsidiary of the Company. The Scheme came into effect from March 29, 2018 after completion of all 
related regulatory formalities.  

Note 35(a)  Disclosure of additional information pertaining to the Holding Company, Subsidiaries and Joint Ventures   
       
 As At March 31, 2018  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2018 March 31, 2018 

 Net assets     Share of Profit/Loss  OCI TCI
 
                     Entity Name  
         

     

Holding         
     
Berger Paints India Limited  95.34  2,092.24  92.12   424.51   3.37  1.16   85.95   425.67 

Indian Subsidiaries         
1) Beepee Coatings Private Limited  0.45   9.94   0.52   2.39   0.08  0.03   0.49  2.42 
2)  Saboo Coatings Private Limited  0.86   18.84  0.69   3.19   (0.17)  (0.06)  0.63  3.13 
Foreign Subsidiaries         
     
1)Berger Jenson & Nicholson 6.03   132.28   7.80   35.94   -     -     7.26  35.94
(Nepal) Private Limited  
2)Berger Paints (Cyprus)  (1.55)  (33.99)  (1.02)  (4.72)  -     -     (0.95) (4.72)
Limited consolidated with
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 in Crores
Berger Paints Overseas Limited 
3)Lusako Trading Limited (5.30)  (116.35)  (0.24)  (1.12)  -     -     (0.23) (1.12)
consolidated with Bolix S.A. & Group *
 
Joint Ventures         
1)Berger Becker Coatings Private Limited 0.31  6.85  1.49   6.85   0.09   0.03   1.39  6.88 
 

2)Berger Nippon Paint Automotive 
Coatings Private Limited (0.28)  (6.21)   (1.35)  (6.21)  0.06  0.02   (1.25) (6.19)
Foreign Currency Translation Reserve  90.91     96.59  33.26   6.72  33.26 
 100.00  2,194.51  100.00  460.83   100.00   34.44   100.00  495.27
         
 * Group includes Build-Trade BIS sp. z.o.o., Bolix UKRAINA OOO, Soltherm External Insulations Limited and Soltherm Insolations Thermique 
   Exterieure SAS

Note:  The above figures are after eliminating intra group transactions and intra group balances as on March 31, 2018
   

Note 35(b).  Disclosure of additional information pertaining to the Parent Company , Subsidiaries and Joint Ventures (Contd.)
       
 As at March 31, 2017 March 31, 2017  March 31, 2017      March 31, 2017
               Net assets                Share of Profit/Loss  OCI          TCI  

   

 Holding              

 Berger Paints India Limited 102.05 1,940.61  90.75  429.87   6.32   (1.20)  94.27  428.67 
         
     
 Indian Subsidiaries         
 1) Beepee Coatings Private Limited  (0.10) (1.90)  0.09  0.43   2.49   (0.47)  (0.01) (0.04)
         
 Foreign Subsidiaries         
     
 1) Berger Jenson & Nicholson  5.35 101.66 5.88   27.86   -  -  6.13   27.86 
 (Nepal) Private Limited  
 2) Berger Paints (Cyprus) Limited   (1.57)  (29.86)  0.64  3.04   -  -  0.67  3.04 
 consolidated with Berger Paints 
 Overseas Limited 
         
 3) Lusako Trading Limited consolidated (8.28) (157.52) 0.51   2.41   -  -  0.53  2.41 
 with Bolix S.A. & Group * 
         
 Joint Ventures         
     
 1) Berger Becker Coatings 
    Private Limited  2.15 40.69  1.51  7.13   0.14  (0.03)  1.55   7.10 
 2) Berger Nippon Paint Automotive 
 Coatings Private Limited 0.40 7.88  0.62  2.92   (0.05) 0.01  0.65  2.93 
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 in Crores

    
     

Note 36 Fair Value Hierarchy     
     
 The table shown below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value. The different levels have been defined below:-   
 Level 1: Quoted Prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities    
 Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or  
 indirectly (i.e., derived from prices)    
 Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs)    

a) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value through profit and loss at  March 31, 2018    
 

 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial Assets    
Investment in Mutual Funds - 227.59 -  227.59
Investment in unquoted equity instruments*  - -  0.00 -
Financial Liabilities    
Derivatives not designated as hedges - - - -
     

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value through profit and loss at 31 March 2017    

 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial Assets    
Investment in Mutual Funds -  367.27  -   367.27
Investment in unquoted equity instruments* - - 0.00  -
Financial Liabilities    
Derivatives not designated as hedges  -  4.11  -   4.11
     

     
(b) Financial instruments at amortized cost     
The carrying amount of financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised cost in the financial statements are a reasonable approximation of 
their fair values since the Group does not anticipate that the carrying amounts would be significantly different from the values that would eventually be 
received or settled    
     
(c) During the year there has been no transfer from one level to another     
     
(d) Also refer note 16a & 16b 

(e) *Refer note 41    
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 Foreign Currency Translation Reserve - - - - 91.10  (17.25)  (3.79)  (17.25)
     
 100.00  1,901.56  100.00   473.66   100.00  (18.94)  100.00  454.72 
              

* Group includes Build-Trade BIS sp. z.o.o and  Bolix UKRAINA OOO        
Note:  The above figures are after eliminating intra group transactions and intra group balances as on March 31, 2017
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Note 37. Financial risk management objectives and policies      
      
The Group's principal financial liabilities, other than derivatives, comprise borrowings and trade payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to 
finance The Group's working capital requirements . The Group has various financial assets such as trade receivables, loans, investments, short-term deposits 
and cash & cash equivalents , which arise directly from its operations. The Group also holds 'Fair Value Through Other comprehensive Income' (FVTOCI)  
investments and enters into derivative transactions by way of forward exchange contracts to hedge its payables   .    
  
The Group is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s Board of Directors oversees the management of these risks. The Group’s Board 
of Directors is supported by the Business Process and Risk Management Committee (BPRMC) that advises on financial risks and the appropriate financial 
risk governance framework for The Group. The BPRMC provides assurance to The Group’s Board of Directors that The Group’s financial risk activities are 
governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with The Group’s policies and 
risk objectives. All derivative activities for risk management purposes are carried out by personnels that have the appropriate skills, experience and supervi-
sion. It is The Group’s policy that no trading in derivatives for speculative purposes may be undertaken. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies 
for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below.      

Market Risk      
      
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market factors. Market risk compris-
es three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk , liquidity risk and commodity risk. Financial instruments 
affected by market risk include loans and borrowings, deposits, FVTOCI investments and financial derivative.
      
The sensitivity analysis have been prepared on the basis that the amount of net debt, the ratio of fixed to floating interest rates of the debt and derivatives and 
the proportion of financial instruments in foreign currencies are all constant at March 31, 2018.
The analysis exclude the impact of movements in market variables on the carrying values of gratuity and other post-retirement obligations. 
The following assumptions have been made in calculating the sensitivity analysis:

financial liabilities held at March 31, 2018 and March 31, 2017

 
Interest rate risk      
The Group has incurred short term debt to finance its working capital, which exposes it to interest rate risk. Borrowings issued at variable rates expose the 
Group to  interest rate risk. Borrowing issued at fixed rates expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk. The Group's interest rate risk management policy 
includes achieving the lowest possible cost of debt financing, while managing volatility of interest rates, applying a prudent mix of fixed and floating debt 
through evaluation of various bank loans and money market instruments.       
The Group has incurred long term debt to finance acquisition, which exposes it to interest rate risk. Some of the Group's borrowings are index linked, that is 
their cost is linked to changes in the London inter-bank offer rate (LIBOR) .       
Although The Group has significant variable rate interest bearing liabilities at March 31, 2018, there would not be any material impact on pretax profit of The 
Group on account of any anticipated fluctuations in interest       
      
Foreign currency risk      
The Group has a policy of entering into foreign exchange forward contracts to manage risk of foreign exchange fluctuations on borrowings and payables. 
These contracts are not designated in hedge relationships and are measured at fair value through profit or loss. Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair 
value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in exchange rates of any currency . The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes 
in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Company’s operating activities by way of direct imports or financing of imports through foreign currency 
instruments.      
The Group proactively hedged its currency exposures in case of a significant movement in exchange rates for imports and in case the hedged cost of foreign 
currency instrument is lower than the domestic cost of borrowing in case of short term import financing .
As at March 31, 2018, the Company hedged 2% (March 31, 2017: 58%) for 6 months, of its expected foreign currency payables. This foreign currency risk 
on payables is hedged by using foreign currency forward contracts.     
Commodity price risk      
The Group doesn’t enter into any long term contract with its suppliers for hedging its commodity price risk      
Equity price risk      
The Group does not have any investments in listed securities or in Equity Mutual Funds and thereby is not exposed to any Equity price risk.  
Credit risk      
Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Group 
is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks and financial 
institutions, and other financial instruments.      
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Trade receivables      
Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to the Group’s established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk 
management. Credit quality of a customer is assessed based on an extensive credit rating scorecard and individual credit limits are defined in accordance with 
this assessment. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored by BPRMC and corrective actions taken.    
Financial instruments and cash deposits      
Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Group’s treasury department in accordance with the Group’s policy. 
Investments of surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned to each counterparty. Counterparty credit limits are 
reviewed by the Group’s Board of Directors on an annual basis, and may be updated throughout the year subject to approval of the Group’s Finance Commit-
tee. The limits are set to minimise the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss through counterparty’s potential failure to make payments.  
     
The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the balance sheet at  March 31, 2018 and  March 31, 2017 is the carrying amounts as 
illustrated in Note 11.      
Liquidity risk      
The Group monitors its risk of a shortage of funds using a liquidity planning tool.       

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank overdrafts, cash credit facilities and 
buyers' credit facilities. The Group assessed the concentration of risk with respect to refinancing its debt and concluded it to be low. The Group has access to 
a sufficient variety of sources of funding and debt.      

The table below summarises the maturity profile of The Group’s financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments.

      
 On demand Less than 3 months 3 to 12 months 1 to 5 years > 5 years Total
Year ended March 31, 2018      
Borrowings  143.73  28.97   -    -     172.70
Other financial liabilities  5.54   92.93   39.86  6.37  -     144.70
Trade payables  1.51   953.74   -      -     955.25
 150.78   1,075.63 39.86 6.37   -     1,272.65
Year ended March 31, 2017      
Borrowings  34.89   85.10   24.14   -     -     144.13
Other financial liabilities  4.84   82.12  62.50   5.16  -     154.62
Trade payables  1.06   760.14   -     -     -     761.20
  40.79   927.36   86.64  5.16  -     1,059.95
      
      
    
Note 38. Capital management  
For the purpose of the Holding Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium and all other equity reserves attributable 
to the equity holders of the holding. The primary objective of the Holding Company’s capital management is to maximise the shareholder value. The Holding 
Company only avails short term borrowings to breach its working capital gap and finances its capital expenditure through internal generation of funds. The 
Holding company has a generally low debt equity ratio      
  

 March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Borrowings (refer note 14a)  172.70  144.13
Less: cash and cash equivalents
(refer note 8c)   (83.59)  (45.25)
Net debt  89.11 98.86
  
Total capital  2,194.51  1,901.56
Capital and net debt  2,283.62  2,000.43
Gearing ratio 4% 5%

  
In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants attached 
to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to 
immediately call loans and borrowings. There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and borrowing in the current 
period.  
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended March 31, 2018 and  March 31, 2017.  
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Note 39 Expenditure on Research & Development      

a. Details of Research & Development expenses incurred during the year, debited under various heads of Statement of Profit and Loss is given below 
     

     March 31, 2018         March 31, 2017

Employee Benefit Expenses       10.05      9.08
Materials and Stores & Spares consumption     0.99    0.97
Power and Fuel      0.39     0.43
Depreciation      1.95     1.75
Others      1.17     0.77
     14.55    13.00
      
b. Details of Capital expenditure incurred for Research & Development are given below      

Capital Expenditure      1.40    3.51
      
      1.40    3.51
Total       15.95    16.51
Above includes allowable expenditure under section 35 (2AB) of the Income Tax Act        
Capital expenditure    0.51 crores (March 31, 2017     1.10 crores)        
Revenue expenditure    9.54 crores (March 31, 2017    8.72 crores)      
The Holding Company has a research & development unit situated in Howrah, Kolkata which focuses on research on  new and existing paint products, 
formulation for cost optimization, environment friendly products etc.      
      
Note 40. Segment Information      
The Group is engaged in the business of manufacturing and selling paints.  Based on the nature of products, production process, regulatory  environment, 
customers and distribution methods there are no reportable segment(s) other than "Paints". 

            
Note 41. All figures are in Rupees Crores. Figures marked with (*) are below the rounding off norm adopted by the Holding Company.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY OF BERGER PAINTS INDIA LIMITED
(CONSOLIDATED) – FIVE YEARS AT A GLANCE

 ` Crores

 2017-18* 2016-17* 2015-16* 2014-15^ 2013-14

Gross Revenue 5,282.12

 7.79 (2.29) 11.69 15.64
45.87

992.20

852.86
% to Net Revenue 16.51 16.98 16.09 12.65 12.08

124.21 108.05 98.65 92.50 70.71
Finance Cost 24.55

704.10
0.64 10.05 5.69 - -

704.74
Exceptional Item - 44.20 - - -

704.74
Tax Expense 

21.00

Shareholders’ Funds:      
Share Capital 97.10
Reserves and Surplus 2,097.41

2,194.51 1,901.56 1,562.09 1,314.06 1,120.33

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 3,943.39 3,440.33 2,877.32 2,667.02 2,594.86

Fixed Assets 
Investments 

ASSETS 3,943.39 3,440.33 2,877.32 2,667.02 2,594.86

Cash Earnings Per Share (`) 6.02
Earnings Per Share - Basic (`) 4.75
Earnings Per Share - Diluted (`) 4.74
Book Value Per Share (`) 22.59 19.58 16.09 18.96 16.16

Wt Avg No. of Shares 97,12,47,574.26
585.04 

 
in periods prior to GST implementation have been adjusted suitably for Excise duty on sale of goods, to enable comparability of Revenue from operations 

 



BERGER PAINTS INDIA LIMITED

EAST – 1
DURGAPUR 
G. T. Road, Khairasole, Durgapur –  

** 
 

– 711 411 

KOLKATA – 1 
– 700 014 

 

KOLKATA – 2+ 
 

– 700 114 

KOLKATA – 4+ 
Apeejay Industries Limited Complex  
47, Hide Road, P.S. Taratolla, Kolkata – 700 088 

+ 
 

– 711 114 

PANIHATI+ + 

 
– 700 114 

CHANDANNAGAR (HOOGHLY)* 
 

Dist. Hooghly –
PATNA – 1 

– 800 002 

PATNA – 2 
 

– – 800 007 

MUZAFFARPUR 
 

 
–

RAIPUR 
G D Warehousing, Warehouse No.10  

 
–  

SILIGURI 

Dabgram, Block Rajganj, P.S. Bhaktinagar, 
Beside Hotel Cindrella, Dist. Jalpaiguri –  

MALDA 
Kamla Bari, Jadupur, (Sadhlapur), Gabgacchi  

–  

EAST – 2
AGARTALA 

 
Agartala, Tripura (West) – 799 007 

 
(Proposed to be shifted to: Saw Mill, Khayerpur 
 Agartala, Tripura – 799 008)

B  

 

CUTTACK 
 

P.S. Tangi, Cuttack – 754 025 
 

(Proposed to be shifted to:  Chaudhury Complex, Manguli Square 
Cuttack – 754 025)

– 1 
 

– 2 
 

 
 

– 3 
 

  

+ +  
 

 
(Proposed to be shifted to: Progressive Alliance, C/o: Vishal Estate 
P.O. Gauripur, Amingao, Kamrup Rural (Assam), Landmark – Near 
Bhramputra Industrial Estate)

JORHAT# 
Dag No. 2143/2565 of P P No.335/652 Charangia Gaon 
Porbatia Mouza, Jorhat West Circle, Dist. – Jorhat, Assam

TEZPUR*** 
 Tezpur 

JAMSHEDPUR 
 

 

RANCHI 
 

Ranchi, Jharkhand –  

SAMBALPUR 
Global Warehouse, Remed, Sambalpur –  
Phone : 0789 446 9691 

SHILLONG 
 

East Khasi Hills, Dist. Shillong –  

SOUTH – 1

CHENNAI –  1+ 
 

Phone : 044 669 14000

CHENNAI – 2 
Plot No.D – 18, Ambattur Industrial Estate, Ambattur  
Chennai - 600 058 

COIMBATORE 

Thudiyalur Post, Coimbatore –  

HYDERABAD  –  1+ 

 

HYDERABAD – 2 

Jillelaguda, Hyderabad – 500 079 

KURNOOL 

Road, Near Hanuman Weight Bridge, Kurnool –  

MADURAI 
 

  625 009 
 

PUDUCHERRY 
 605 008 

 

TIRUNELVELI 
 

Palayamkottai, Tirunelveli – 627 002 

TIRUPATI 
 

Renigunta Industrial Estate, Renigunta-517 520  

TRICHY 
 

Ariyamangalam, Trichy – 620 010 
 

 
 

 521 108  
 

VISAKHAPATNAM 
Plot No. 188, D-Block, IDA, Autonagar 
Visakhapatnam –  

SOUTH – 2
ALLEPPEY 

 

Aroor, Alleppey –  
 

(Proposed to be shifted to: Tharayil Parambu, Eramalloor –  Ezhupunna 
Road, Ezhupunna Panchayat, Ward No.12/3, Eramalloor P.O. Cherthala 
Taluk, Alleppey District, Kerala - 688 537)

BENGALURU (OFFICE ONLY) 
 

Bengaluru - 560 002 
 

Fax : 080 2670 9641
BENGALURU – 1+ 

Bannerghata Road, Bengaluru –  
Phone: 080 2842 9721  
Fax: 080 2842 9722 
(Proposed to be shifted to: Survey No.43, New CMC No.7/43 & 
43/1, Kechenahalli Grama, R.V. Niketan Post, 8th Mile, Kengeri 
Hobli, Mysore Road, Bengaluru – 560 059)

* Shop only 

* *  
+ +  Regional Distribution Centre 
+  Home Decor Centre 
* * *  
#



BENGALURU – 3 
 

Bengaluru - 560 058 

BENGALURU+ + 
 

Panchayat & Post, Nelamangala Taluq, Bengaluru Rural District 
 

CALICUT 

Junction, Near ALPB School, Parammal, N H Bypass Road 
 

HOSUR 
 

HUBLI 
 

P. B. Road, Gabbur, Hubli – 580 028 

KANNUR 

Dist. Kannur, Kerala – 670 591 
Phone: 0497 278 6556

KOCHI (OFFICE ONLY) 
K.K. Road 

Chembumukku, Ernakulam – 682 021 

KOLLAM 
 

 

KOTTAYAM 

 

MANGALORE 
Plot No - 409 & 410, Industrial Area  

 

MYSORE 
 

– 570 016 
Phone: 

THRISSUR 
 

 
 

THRISSUR+ + 

 
 

TRIVANDRUM 
 

 
Phone : 0471 228 4027 
Fax : 0471 228 0102 

– 1

AURANGABAD 
 

 

+ + 

 

 

 
 

GHATKOPAR 
 

 
 

Fax : 022 2516 6406

GOA 
Inteloc-S1, Rhea-Estate, NH – 17, Village Nuvem, Taluka Salcete 

 
 

KALYAN 
 

 
 

 
Fax : 02522 280 667

VASAI 
Shed No.4-A, Silver Compound, Waken Pada Survey No.161  

 
Pelhar H. No.8, Vasai (East), Dist. Palghar – 401 202

KOLHAPUR 

Station, Gudmudshing, Taluka Karveer, Dist. Kolhapur – 416 119 

MUMBAI (OFFICE ONLY) 
804, Windfall, Sahar Plaza, J. B. Nagar, Andheri Kurla Road 

 

NAGPUR 

 
 

NASHIK 

Taluka Dindori, Dist. Nashik – 422 201 
 

PUNE 
 

 
Phone : 020 6478 4010 to 25 

THANE** 
 

SOLAPUR# 
Lonawat Arcade, Gate No.301/2B, Pune Road, At Post – Kondi 
Taluka – North Solapur, Solapur – Pune Highway 
Dist: Solapur – 413 006

– 2

AHMEDABAD 
 

(Landmark – Concept Jeep Workshop), Sanathal Cross 
Road, SP Ring Road, Village Sanathal, Taluka - Sanand  
Dist: Ahmedabad –

RAJKOT 

 

SURAT 

 

VADODARA 

 
 

NORTH – 1
BHATINDA 

 
 

CHANDIGARH 
 

JALLANDHAR 
Vakiya Abadi, Near Nakodar Road, Village – Khambra  
Dist. Jalandhar – 144 026  

JAMMU 
 

JAMMU** 
 

IGC, Samba, Jammu.
LUDHIANA 

 
Ludhiana – 141 008 

MOHALI 
 

Punjab – 160 059 

 
 

SRINAGAR 
Sutho Kathair Bagh, Tehsil-Chadoora, Dist. - Budgam, Srinagar - 15  

NORTH – 2
AMBALA 

 
 

 

BIKANER 
 

 
 

FARIDABAD 
Plot No.40, Sector – 6, Faridabad
GURGAON 

 
Daultabad Road, Industrial Area, Gurgaon - 122 001 

JAIPUR+ 
Plot. No. 114A –  

  
 

* Shop only 

* *  
+ +  Regional Distribution Centre 
+  Home Decor Centre 
* * *  
#



JODHPUR 
 

 

KOTA 
 

Phone : 0744 2490168

UDAIPUR 
Plot No.–1, NH – 8, Near Amberi Flyover  

 

CENTRAL – 1

ASAF ALI 
 

DELHI (OFFICE ONLY) 
 

Yojana Vihar, Delhi – 110 092 

JANAKPURI 
 

 
 

Fax : 011 2554 8654

MANDOLI 
–2 & JR –10, JR Complex, 

–  

MUNDKA INDUSTRIAL 
 

 

MUNDKA+ + 

 

OKHLA+ 
 

 
 

– 110 020 

PUNJABI BAGH 

 
 

RITHALA 
Khasra No.915-916, Guleria Complex 

– 110 085  

CENTRAL – 2

AGRA 
Near Canara Bank, Salasar Cold Store Compound 
Gulab Nagar, Hathras Road  
Agra – 282 006 
Phone: 0562 699 0640-47

BAREILLY 
 

Bareilly –  

DEVLA+ +  
Village – – Dadri Road 
Greater Noida, Tehsil Dadri, District Gautam Budh Nagar 
Uttar Pradesh –  

 
(Proposed to be shifted to: Khasra No.09, Gulistanpur, Surajpur 
Dadri Road / I.C.D, Dadri Gulistanpur Road, 
Near IOC Petrol Pump, Devla, Greater Noida)

GHAZIABAD 
Cloud –  
Ghaziabad –  

MORADABAD 
 

 

NOIDA 
C – – 2, Sector – 81, Noida –  

CENTRAL – 3

ALLAHABAD 
– Karchana 

– 211 008 

DEHRADUN 
 

Near Himalayan Drugs Factory,  Dehradun – 248 001 

GORAKHPUR 
Behind Essar Petrol Pump, Ekdanga, Vill. Harraya  

–  

 
–  

 
 

 

KANPUR 
 

 
(Proposed to be shifted to : Gram Rampur, Bhimsen Tehsil 
Kanpur Nagar)

 
C – 518 & C – 519 Transport Nagar 

– 226 012 

 
 

– 226 024 

VARANASI 
Pama Complex, DLW Road, 
Shivadaspur, Lehartara,Varanasi - 221 002 

CENTRAL – 4

BHOPAL 
 

 
Gram – Aadampur, Tehsil Huzur 
Dist – Bhopal –  

 
Survey No. 1610, Beside Saroj Fuel Shoppe (BPCL Petrol 
Pump ), Near Vicky Factory Cross Road  

– 474 001 

INDORE 
Sunidhi Warehouse, 

 
 

JABALPUR 
 

Patan Bypass, Chouraha, Patan Road, Gram Sukha 
Jabalpur –  

* Shop only 

* *  
+ +  Regional Distribution Centre 
+  Home Decor Centre 
* * *  
#



BRITISH PAINTS DIVISION
SALES DEPOTS

 
 

– 110 015 
 

9015554160  

CENTRAL DELHI 

Delhi – 110 006 
 

 
Email: centraldelhi@britishpaints.in

SOUTH DELHI 

–  
 

 
Email: southdelhi@britishpaints.in

MANDOLI 
 

–  
Email: eastdelhi@britishpaints.in 

GHAZIABAD 

Cinema, Ghaziabad, Uttar Pradesh 
 

 
Email: ghaziabad@britishpaints.in

NOIDA 
–  

 
 

Email: noida@britishpaints.in

KANPUR 
 

G.T. Road, Kanpur – 208025 
 

 
Email: kanpur@britishpaints.in

ALLAHABAD 
– 211 011 

 
 

Email: allahabad@britishpaints.in

AGRA 
Khasra No. 1294, Village Baipur,  Near Sabzi 

– 282 007, Uttar Pradesh  
 

Email: agra@britishpaints.in

GORAKHPUR 
Hariya ( Nausad ), Near Gaurav Petrol Pump  
Khajini Road, Bahrampur 
Gorakhpur –  
Phone: 766 8074844 
Email: gorakhpur@britishpaints.in

VARANASI 
Pama Complex, Near Vishal Auto Agency 

 
 

 
Email: varanasi@britishpaints.in

FARIDABAD 
SSI Plot No.20, NH-5 NIT Faridabad –121 001 

 
Email: faridabad@britishpaints.in

GURGAON 

Krishan Nagar, Gurgaon –122 001, Haryana 
 

Email: gurgaon@britishpaints.in

PANIPAT 

School adjoining Annapurna Banquet Hall 
Plot No. 02, Panipat –  

 
Email: panipat@britishpaints.in

 
 

–  
Dist. Nainital, Uttrakhand      

 

DEHRADUN 
 

– 248 001 
 

Email: dehradun@britishpaints.in

ZIRAKPUR 
 

 
Near Ramada Hotel, Tehasil: Dera Bassi 

–  
 

Email: mohali@britishpaints.in

AMRITSAR 

Pull, Amritsar  
 

Email : amritsar@britishpaints.in

LUDHIANA 
 

Ludhiana –  
Phone: 0161 2220270, 95697 54425 
Email: ludhiana@britishpaints.in

JALANDHAR 
Asiatic Compound,Usha Dharma Kanda 

 
Phone: 0181 265 1096 

 
Email: jalandhar@britishpaints.in

JAMMU 
 

– 180 010 
 

Email: jammu@britishpaints.in

SRINAGAR 
Ground Floor, Khasra No.1578, Khevat 

Automobiles, Pharoo Road, NR-NH-1A 
– 190 015 

 
Email: srinagar@britishpaints.in

 
 

 
 

–  
 

AGARTALA  
 

Agartala, Tripura (W) – 799 007 
 

 
Email: agartala@britishpaints.in 

PATNA 

Pahari, Patna –  800007  
 

patna@britishpaints.in

RANCHI 

 
 

 
Email: ranchi@britishpaints.in

PUNE  
Gate no.1100, 
Road Vadki, Pune –  

 
Email: pune@britishpaints.in

SOLAPUR 

–  
 

Email: solapur@britishpaints.in

MUMBAI 
Plot No – A 88 TTC Industrial Area  
Khairane Village,Thane Belapur Road  

–  400 705 
 

Email: mumbai@britishpaints.in

GOA 
 

 
 

 
Email: goa@britishpaints.in

AHMEDABAD 

Hotel, N.H.No.8, Aslali, Ahmedabad –  

BARODA 

–  
 

 
Email: baroda@britishpaints.in

SURAT 

 
 

Email: surat@britishpaints.in

INDORE 
 

–  452 010 
 

Email: indore@britishpaints.in

BHOPAL 

Industrial Area, Govindpura, Bhopal – 462 021 
 

 
Email: bhopal@britishpaints.in

RAIPUR 

 
Raipur –  

 
Email: raipur@britishpaints.in

HYDERABAD 
Road No 01  

IDA 
Nacharam, Hyderabad – 500076.

TIRUPATI 

– 517 506 
 

Email: tirupati@britishpaints.in          

 
 

– 520 007, Andhra Pradesh 
 

COCHIN 
 

–  
 

 
Email: cochin@britishpaints.in

THRISSUR 

Chelakkotukara, Thrissur, Kerala – 680 005 
 

Email: thrissur@britishpaints.in

CALICUT 
 

 
 

 
Email: calicut@britishpaints.in

BANGLORE 
 

– 560026, Karnataka 
Phone: 8088640704 
Email: blore@britishpaints.in

HUBLI 
 

Industrial Estate, Gokul Road 
 

 
Email: hubli@britishpaints.in

JAIPUR 
A-145, Jagdamba Nagar, Behind Herapura 

 
Jaipur –  

 
Email: jaipur@britishpaints.in

KOTA 
 

Industrial Area, Kota, Rajasthan 
 

Email: kota@britishpaints.in 

SILCHAR 
 

Assam –  
 

Email: silchar@britishpaints.in
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